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Year ended 31 December
BZE12A318LLFE

2017 2016
2017 2016 4F
$'000 $'000
FET FAT
Revenue A 1,250,706 478,354 469,241 161%
Profit from operations BT 43,900 56,545 34,461 (22%)
(Loss)/profit before FEIERR FE R AT
non-controlling interests (E518) & F (166,086) 36,132 326,530 (560%)
Non-controlling interests FEIZERR A A (867) - - N/A
N3 A
(Loss)/profit attributable to AATERRR
equity shareholders PE1L (&58) %R
of the Company (165,219) 36,132 326,530 (557 %)
(Loss)/earnings per share BK (58) BA
Basic (HK$) EARCET) (0.069) 0.017 0.164 (506%)

Diluted (HK$) 5% () (0.073) 0.001 0.151 (7,400%)
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) and
the management of Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited ((the
"Company”) and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “Year").

During the Year, the overall grid-connected capacity of the state’s grid was
115 million kilowatts, representing an increase of 72.34% year-on-year as
compared with that of 2016. The demand of clean energy has continued
to grow over the years. During the Year, the whole photovoltaic industry
is undergoing a transformation from scale expansion to quality-effective
development and from a highly subsidy policy-dependent model to a low
subsidy-dependent but increasing competitive model. It is expected that
in the near future, mergers and reorganisations within the photovoltaic
industry will be accelerated with the gradual withdrawing of inefficient
production models. We believe the photovoltaic industry will focus on
its status of leading enterprises with core competitiveness. Besides, the
cross-industries integration of the photovoltaic industry will be further
promoted and the industry itself will be integrated with poverty alleviation,
agricultural, climate and environmental industries. The industry will also
closely adhere to the “One Belt and One Road” policy promulgated by the
government of People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") with its production
capacity shifting and expanding to countries participating in the “One
Belt and One Road” which will catalyze the sustainable and healthy
development of the photovoltaic industry.

During the Year, the Company has complied with the idea of developing
new and green energy advocated by the state council of the PRC.
According to the “13th Five-Year Plan for Electric Power Development”
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission, the Chinese
government aims to increase the proportion of renewable energy in the
overall energy production and consumption substantially in the future
with the ratio reaches 15% by 2020, of which the photovoltaic power
accounts for 5% of the renewable energy generated. The Group will
continue to explore and open up the photovoltaic market in Jiangsu. With
the experience of operating the two existing photovoltaic power stations,
the Company has successfully applied for the approval of engaging in
another T0MW photovoltaic power project. The said project is expected
to be completed and come into operation by mid-2018.
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During the Year, the PRC's economy continued to grow steadily despite
the peripheral downward pressure. The tobacco industry has been
experiencing steady sales, improving structure, inventory reduction as
well as increasing tax. The Company coped with the above changes
and challenges and led the staffs of the tobacco sector of the Group
to overcome all the difficulties by optimizing management, expanding
markets, strengthening product quality and closely following the
diversified development strategy of tobacco. With the experience
accumulated in the tobacco accessory products industry in the past several
years, the Company continued to innovate new products and optimize
new processes while ensuring production quality, enhancing the stability
of existing customers as well as actively expanding customers’ resources.
The Company also utilized its own advantages such as the application of
advanced technology as well as its reputation in branding. Meanwhile,
the Company’s increased its personnel investment in its sales team,
strengthened business development, actively explored new markets and
maintained its profitability. In order to cope with the increasing demand
of the Company’s products, the Company has been developing the third
industrial line which is expected to be completed and put into use in
2018.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my thankfulness
and appreciation to my fellow Directors, management team and all the
staff members of the Group for their contributions and hard work during
the Year. | would also like to extend my most sincere gratitude to all our
shareholders and business partners for their continuous supports.

Guo, Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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(As at 31 December 2017)
(EBZ=2017F12A83181)
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(As at 31 December 2017)
(E#Z=2017%12/83181)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E W L T

OVERVIEW

For the Year, the Group recorded an increase in revenue as compared
to the year ended 31 December 2016. However, the Group recorded a
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the Year as
compared to a profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Looking backward, we went on public as a packaging materials
manufacturer and has continuously explored new opportunities in various
industries. The principal activities of the Group can be differentiated into
five segments, namely, (i) manufacturing and sales of BOPP film (comprising
self-manufactured cigarette film and self-manufactured non-cigarette-
related films), (i) sales of sub-processing cigarette films (comprising anti-
counterfeiting cigarette films and slitting imported film), (iii) properties
development and related services, (iv) generation of photovoltaic power,
and (v) cloud-related business.

One of our factories located in Qingdao city of Shandong Province mainly
produces BOPP films. Its market occupancy rate has ranked top 3 in
recent years. Another factory, which has been relocated in 2017, is now
located at the economic and technological development zone in Huai
An City, manufacturing anti-counterfeiting films and colour films of the
cigarette. In addition, a development project located in Xuzhou, Jiangsu,
has successfully been marketed to the purchasers during the Year and
contributed a large portion to the Group’s revenue for the Year. The Group
has two photovoltaic power stations which are located in Wei Ji Town, Sui
Ning County and Xuzhou City in Jiangsu Province. The stations were put
into operation on 28 December 2015 and 25 June 2016 respectively. The
Group has a total of 15 data centers which are mainly located at Jiangsu,
Anhui, Hubei, Chongging, Jiangxi, Shanghai, Zhejiang and Shandong
provinces.
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RESULTS OF OPERATION
REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group include manufacturing and sales of
BOPP films, sales of sub-processing cigarette films, properties development
and related services, generation of photovoltaic power and cloud-related
business. Our revenue is mainly generated from the sales of goods sold
and service provided excluding returns, discounts, value added taxes and
other sales taxes. During the Year, our revenue increased by approximately
HK$772.3 million, or approximately 161.4%, from approximately
HK$478.4 million to approximately HK$1,250.7 million. The increase in
revenue is mainly due to the increase in revenue generated from property
development and more details can be found as follows:

Manufacturing and sales of BOPP films

The revenue generated from manufacturing and sales of BOPP films
increased by approximately 17.0%, from approximately HK$271.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$318.1 million
for the Year, primarily due to high demand of external customers for
cigarette-related films.

Sales of sub-processing cigarette films

During the Year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue generated
from the sales of sub-processing cigarette films. This was mainly due to
(i) the decrease of the sales of our anti-counterfeiting cigarette films by
approximately 25.6%, from approximately HK$67.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$50.3 million for the Year,
and (ii) the sales of our slitting imported cigarette films has decreased by
approximately 71.7%, from approximately HK$71.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$20.1 million for the Year,
both primarily due to the decrease in customers’ orders.
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Properties development and related services

The revenue generated from properties development and related
services during the Year was mainly from the sale of properties and the
provision of property management services. During the Year, the property
management services provided by Xuzhou Lvzhou Estate Management
Company Limited contributed an income of approximately HK$2.8 million
to the Group. The completion and delivery of the properties developed
by Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate Development Co. Ltd contributed
approximately HK$809.6 million for the Group.

Generation of photovoltaic power

For the Year, the Group has two photovoltaic power stations that are in
operation, with a total grid-connected capacity of 30 megawatts (“MW").
The revenue generated from this segment increased by approximately
42.6%, from approximately HK$31.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately HK$45.5 million for the Year, which was
primarily due to the full utilisation of power generation capacity of both
photovoltaic power stations.

Cloud-related business

The Group acquired 15 cloud data centers on 30 June 2016. The revenue
generated from this segment decreased by approximately HK$30.2 million
or approximately 87.5% from approximately HK$34.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$4.3 million for the Year.
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in the number
of cloud-related business projects. The revenue generated in operating
the cloud platforms by Jiangsu Guang He Hui Yun Technology Company
Limited (as appointed by Bloom Shine Investments Limited (“Bloom
Shine")) for the Year amounted to approximately RMB5.0 million while
the operation revenue of cloud platforms before tax and surcharges
contributed to the Group was nil, which failed to meet the 2017 Revenue
Guarantee (as defined below). For details of non-fulfilment of 2017
Revenue Guarantee, please refer to Note 31(b) in this annual report.

GROSS PROFIT

Our gross profit decreased by approximately HK$17.5 million, or
approximately 10.1%, from approximately HK$173.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$156.1 million for the
Year. Our gross profit margin decreased from approximately 36.3% for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately 12.5% for the Year.
The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the giant costs
incurred by (i) property construction and (ii) the increase in the price of
raw materials for manufacturing films such as polypropylene material.
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DISTRIBUTION COST

Our selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately HK$16.2
million, or approximately 43.5%, from approximately HK$37.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$21.0 million for
the Year. The decrease was due to the reduction in advertising and selling
expenses for the pre-sales of our properties located in Xuzhou since March
2016.

ADMINISTRATIVE COST

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$0.7 million,
or approximately 0.7%, from approximately HK$95.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately HK$96.0 million for the Year.

IMPAIRMENT LOSS

During the Year, the Group recorded an impairment loss of approximately
HK$217.5 million in the cloud-related business sector. The impairment
loss was comprised of the decrease in value on goodwill of approximately
HK$49.6 million, property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$5.1
million and intangible assets of approximately HK$162.8 million.

FINANCE COST

The finance cost decreased by approximately HK$0.1 million from
approximately HK$8.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately HK$8.5 million for the Year.

INCOME TAX

Our income tax decreased from approximately HK$11.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to a negative amount of approximately
HK$16.1 million for the Year. It was due to the impairment loss on the
cloud-related business.

LOSS ATTRIBUTED TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded a loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$165.2 million
for the Year as compared to a profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of approximately HK$36.1 million. This was mainly due to
the increase in impairment loss.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$274.3 million (which were denominated
in HK$, RMB and US$) as compared with approximately HK$171.0 million
as at 31 December 2016, representing an increase of approximately
HK$103.3 million. Such increase was mainly due to the Group’s net
cash inflow of operating activities, net cash outflow of both investment
activities and financing activities that amounted to approximately
HK$123.7 million, approximately HK$22.9 million and approximately
HK$29.4 million respectively.

BORROWING AND GEARING RATIO

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017
was approximately HK$178.6 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$187.0 million) which were denominated in HK$, RMB and US$, of
which approximately HK$178.6 million were current interest-bearing
borrowings (31 December 2016: HK$186.5 million) and nil was non-
current interest-bearing borrowings (31 December 2016: HK$0.5 million).
The Group’s gearing ratio, measured by net debt divided by shareholders’
equity at the end of the Year and multiplied by 100%, decreased from
28% on 31 December 2016 to -11% on 31 December 2017. The
decrease in the gearing was primarily due to conversion of convertible
bond and increase in bank balance.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATE

For the Year, the Group was exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases made by the subsidiaries located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") which gave rise to receivables, payables,
cash balances and bank loans that were denominated in US$. Currently,
the Group has no hedging policy with respect to the foreign exchange
exposure.

As the functional currency for all subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB, these
subsidiaries were not exposed to any currency risks due to the exchange
rate movement of RMB during the Year. For subsidiaries established
outside the PRC, they had no material financial assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB. Accordingly, the Group’s exposure to RMB risk is
insignificant.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group’s total capital expenditure amounted to
approximately HK$25.9 million which was mainly used in relocating one
of our factories in Huai An City.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged its lease prepayments,
machinery and building that held for its own use with a net book value
of approximately HK$143.4 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$145.4 million) for the purpose of securing loans with carrying value
of approximately HK$48.0 million (31 December 2016: approximately
HK$16.0 million).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed above, there is no significant event after the Year up to
the date of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investment, material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed approximately 352
employees (as compared with 390 employees on 31 December 2016)
with total staff cost of approximately HK$72.7 million. The Group’s
remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to market
terms and individual merits. The Company has also adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme and a share option scheme to provide incentive or
reward to high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
Year (for the year ended 31 December 2016: Nil).

PROSPECTS

At present, the Company has established a close and cooperative
relationship with Chinese tobacco companies, and thus has accumulated
a large number of advantages in technological innovation, cost control,
production and operation efficiency, and supply of raw materials for
industrial chain. The Company will actively grasp the opportunities for
rapid development such as developing high-tech anti-counterfeiting films
and private customized tobacco films. We will also actively participate
in the bidding of various films. Through product design conception and
production process innovation, the Company will continue to enhance
the brand connotation of customers in order to consolidate the status of
the industry. Thus, the Company will further integrate the advantages of
the industrial chain and seek to increase the proportion of supply within
the system as well as implementing supply chain management services in
order to reduce costs and increase efficiency. We will continue to expand
the Company’s tobacco film coverage through advanced design. Due to
the increasing instability of property market in the PRC and the escalating
cost in properties development, the Group will no longer involve in any
new property development projects.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Relevant Period. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (31 December 2016: Nil).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSHERERE

Mr. Guo Yumin
BEREE

Mr. Guo Yumin, aged 56, is the founder and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June 2012.
Mr. Guo is responsible for the overall management and formulation of
business strategy of the Group.

Mr. Guo graduated from the distant-learning college of the School of
the Central Committee of Communist Party of China in 1988, majoring
in economic management. Since 1998, Mr. Guo has been engaging in
cigarette packaging business and established a strong business tie with
the senior members of some cigarette manufacturers. He brings extensive
business and management experience in commercial business to our
management team.

In 2005, Mr. Guo established Guangdong Province Jiangsu Chamber of
Commerce and he had been the chairperson for six consecutive years. In
2010, Mr. Guo established Shenzhen Xuzhou Chamber of Commerce and
has been its legal representative since then.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu, an executive Director and is the
father of Mr. Guo Cheng, an executive Director.

Mr. Guo is the director of Sheen China Group Holdings Inc., Sheen
China Group Holdings Limited, Century Leader Asia Limited, Ling Xian
Fei Yu Import & Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“Ling Xian Fei Yu”), Sheen
China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sheen HK"), Xuzhou New Advantage Real
Estate Development Company Limited (“Xuzhou New Advantage Real
Estate”), Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management Co. Ltd. and Xuzhou
Sheentai New Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd., the subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Guo is also the sole director and sole shareholder of Sheen Tai
Group Holding Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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Ms. Xia Yu, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on 22 June
2012. She is responsible for general management of the Group.

Ms. Xia studied financial accounting (distant-learning) in Jiangsu
Commerce College (which was combined with other colleges to form
Yangzhou University) and graduated in June 1992. Ms. Xia has 20
years of experience in the cigarette-related business, as well as business
management and financial management in cigarette packaging business.

Ms. Xia is the director of Sheen HK and Qingdao Ener Packaging
Technology Co., Ltd (“Qingdao Ener”), the subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and a
controlling shareholder of the Company, and the step-mother of Mr. Guo
Cheng, an executive Director.
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Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
BafsLE

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director ~ B EG%4E - 5158 - R 2013F 1 A1 BEZE BT
on 1 January 2013. Mr. Zeng is responsible for the overall management EF o B ABEREBERHEEEE -
and business of the Group.

Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University with a Bachelor of Physic ARS8 FEXEMMIAE - YIRS E A
degree in 1988 and obtained a Master degree of Materials Science from 2 » W 1991 FESHTT K EME RIBE 247 -
Zhejiang University in 1991. Mr. Zeng possesses more than 19 years of ~ EEAEERBEFEEBATEREGBRBI10F 2R - 2
experience in the cigarette-related industry in the PRC and is familiar with ~ FEREFETIH 2 B ©

the practice of the tobacco market in the PRC.

Mr. Zeng is the director of Jiangsu Sheen Color Science Technology Co., E4ERANEEMBE R TIIHF SR ERRAR AR
Ltd (“Jiangsu Sheen Color"), a subsidiary of the Group. (IHSEBOMES -
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Mr. Guo Cheng
R EE

Mr. Guo Cheng, aged 32, was appointed as an executive Director on
20 May 2015. Mr. Guo studied in courses of international trade in RMIT
University. Mr. Guo has years of experience in investing and corporate
management of the cigarette packaging material industry. Mr. Guo is the
son of Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and the step-son of Ms. Xia
Yu, an executive Director.
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Ms. Fan Qing
ezt

Ms. Fan Qing, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 June 2012. Ms. Fan has extensive experience in business
management and in-depth knowledge in the financial investment in both
the PRC and Hong Kong.

Ms. Fan received a master's degree in business administration from the
Graduate School of Renmin University of China in 2000. She obtained
a certificate issued by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange after completing a
training course for the senior management member of a listed company
in the PRC. She had been serving as the vice-president of Shenzhen
Capital Group Co. Ltd. for nine years. Ms. Fan is currently the chairman
of the board of directors of an investment management company in
Shenzhen and the independent director of Shenzhen Terca Technology
Co., Ltd. (stock code: SZ002213), a company whose shares are listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, BBS, JP, aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Fong was admitted as a
barrister and solicitor in Ontario, Canada in 1980, a solicitor in England
and Wales in 1986 and in Hong Kong in 1987. He has practiced law for
over 30 years and is a member of the law societies of Hong Kong, Upper
Canada and England.

Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in Canada in 1974 and his
Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law School in Toronto in 1978.
Mr. Fong is appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the
China-appointed Attesting Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is a member
of the Hong Kong Communications Authority. Mr. Fong is currently the
independent non-executive director of the following companies whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited) (stock code: 124), Greenland Hong
Kong Holdings Limited (formerly known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited)
(stock code: 337), China Investment Development Limited (stock code:
204), Evergreen International Holdings Limited (stock code: 238), Xinming
China Holdings Limited (stock code: 2699) and WuXi Biologics (Cayman)
Inc. (stock code: 2269). Mr. Fong is also an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited. From May 2010 to
May 2016, Mr. Fong was an independent non-executive director of China
Oilfield Services Limited (stock code: 2883), whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
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Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 June 2012. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and finance.

Mr. Lo received a bachelor’s degree of business administration from the
University of Hong Kong in 1993 and a master’s degree of professional
accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a
certified public accountant, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, fellow member of CPA Australia and an
associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. Lo is a practising accountant in Hong Kong, and has become the
managing partner of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited since 2014. Mr. Lo is
currently the independent non-executive director of Sun Hing Vision Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 125), China Zhongwang Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1333), China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (stock code: 715),
Xinming China Holdings Limited (stock code: 2699), China Oceanwide
International Financial Limited (stock code: 952), Wan Kei Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1718) and G-Resources Group Limited (stock code:
1051). Mr. Lo is also the member of the Shanghai Pudong New Area
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the
founding executive vice-president and council member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association and the Divisional Deputy
President 2018 — Greater China of CPA Australia.

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy
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Senior Management

Mr. Ren Quanhao, aged 53, was appointed as vice president of the
Group on 8 June 2017. Mr. Ren graduated from Qingdao Institute
of Construction Engineering (now known as Qingdao University of
Technology) with a bachelor degree of construction environment and
service engineering in July 1986. Mr. Ren has over 30 years work
experience in different industries. Prior to joining the Group, he was a
director of a packing company in the People’s Republic of China. He is
currently in charge of packing materials business.

Mr. Dong Zhenghua, aged 62, graduated from a self-taught course
in Chinese literature from Nanjing Normal University in 1986, and
obtained the qualification certification as an economist in 1993. Mr. Dong
passed the uniform examination organized by the Chinese government
authorities and obtained the qualifications for enterprise legal adviser in
2003. Mr. Dong possesses extensive experience in advising and handling
corporate-related legal matters. Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong
graduated from a 2-year course in laws jointly organised by the China
University of Political Science and Law and the Open University of China
and obtained the qualification of intermediate professional manager as
approved by the Jiangsu Province Enterprise Professional Manager Training
& Certification Committee. Mr. Dong is currently the in-house legal
advisor of the Company and is responsible for advising on legal matters of
the Group.

Mr. Huang Bo, aged 51, graduated from a post-secondary part-time
course in economic management at Party School of Chinese Communist
Party of Shandong Province in 1996. From 2000 to 2003, Mr. Huang was
employed to work at the Qingdao municipal government in economic
and auditing fields. From 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Huang worked in
a packaging company and became the chief accounting officer in 2007.
In 2009, Mr. Huang was certified as an accreditation grade senior by
International Profession Certification Association. Mr. Huang joined the
Group since 2009 and has more than 13 years of experience in financial
management in cigarette packaging trading field.

Ms. Tong Xiaomeng, aged 41, graduated from lJilin Railway Economic
School in 1996, majoring in financial accounting in transportation field.
In 2002, Ms. Tong passed the intermediate level of national examination
of department of finance in the PRC and was issued a certificate to certify
her qualification level in accountancy. Ms. Tong joined the Group in
2000, possesses extensive years of experience in accounting and financial
management.

Mr. Yu Xiaofeng, aged 54, graduated from Zhejiang Institute of
Engineering (which is currently known as Zhejiang University of
Technology) with a bachelor’s degree of science in 1983. Mr. Yu joined the
Group in 2002 and is currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour, and
also the general manager of Jiangsu Sheen Colour. Mr. Yu has extensive
experience in the technology aspect, production and facility management
of the printing related business. Mr. Yu was familiar with the technology
in connection with the printing of cigarette films and paper boxes.
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Ms. Li Jing, aged 37, passed the higher education self-taught
examination for economic management of the China University of Mining
and Technology in 2005. In 2009, Ms. Li graduated from the distant-
learning college of the School of the Central Committee of Communist
Party of China, majoring in economic management. Ms. Li joined the
Group in 2002 and is currently the director of Jiangsu Sheen Colour.

Mr. Jiang Chang, aged 46, studied applied chemistry (distant-learning)
and graduated from Hubei University in 2000. Mr. Jiang has been engaged
in the packaging materials business for more than 10 years and has
been in-depth experience in the production facilities and the production
management in relation to the manufacturing of BOPP films, in particular,
films for cigarette packaging. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in 2010. He is
currently the general manager of Qingdao Ener and is responsible for its
operation of production process.

Mr. Wang Xuguang, aged 38, graduated from Laiyang Agricultural
College in 2004, majoring in accounting. He has a bachelor’s degree
in management. Mr. Wang jointed the Group in November 2011 and
is currently the chief financial officer of Qingdao Ener. Mr. Wang has
extensive experience in accounting and finance management.

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 47, graduated from Nanjing University in
1994, majoring in economic management. He worked at China Life,
where he was engaged in life insurance business. Since 2001, he has
been involved in property-related work. Mr. Wang is currently the general
manager of Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate, responsible for work of
Xuzhou Property.

Ms. Fan Li, aged 42, graduated from Jiangsu Radio and TV University
with a finance diploma in July 1997 and from Nanjing University of
Science and Technology in July 2002 with a bachelor’s degree, majoring
in finance. She has obtained the qualifications of middle-level accountant,
tax accountant and certified management accountant of the PRC. Ms.
Fan has been engaged in finance work for property companies for years
and has extensive experience in finance management and knowledge of
taxation. Ms. Fan joined the Group on 1 February 2014 and is currently
the chief financial officer of Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate.

Mr. Zhu Hengjin, aged 31, obtained a certificate of diploma of
hairdressing salon management from Headmasters Advanced Academy
in 2008. In 2011, Mr. Zhu joined the Group and is currently the human
resources manager of the Company.
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The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating elements of
good corporate governance in the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability.
The Directors continuously observe the principles of good corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort
to identifying and formalizing best practice.

The Group’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Board considered that the Company had complied with the code
provisions of the Code during the year ended 31 December 2017 except
for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the Code as
stated below.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. During the year, there have been no chief executive in
the Company, details of the deviation are set out in the section headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

The key corporate governance practices of the Group are summarised as
follows:

Appointment, Re-Election and Retirement of the
Directors

Pursuant to article 108(a) of the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his/her appointment and any Director appointed by the
Board as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company.
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Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
and Mr. Guo Cheng will retire as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in 2018 (the “AGM"). Mr. Guo Cheng has informed
the Board that he would not offer himself for re-election and accordingly
will retire as Director upon the conclusion of the AGM. Save for Mr. Guo
Cheng, the other two retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election as Directors at the Annual General Meeting.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Zeng Xiangyang, being
executive Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 13 July 2015 and may be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.

Mr. Guo Cheng, being an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
20 May 2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months' written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
13 July 2016 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions by
Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Director’s
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this annual report.
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Board of Directors

The Board comprises four executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors as at the date of this report, details of which are set
out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)

Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

Mr. Guo Cheng

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

The brief biographical details of and relationship among the existing
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors
has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and strategic planning
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group. The Company
has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2017. All independent
non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Guo Yumin is the spouse of Ms. Xia Yu. Mr. Guo Cheng is the son of
Mr. Guo Yumin, an executive Director and the chairman of the Board, and
the step-son of Ms. Xia Yu, an executive Director. Save as disclosed above,
there are no other relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the Board.
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Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board's primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of other
stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in setting
forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its statutory
responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic plan, key
operational initiatives, major investments and funding decisions. It also
reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies principal risks of the
Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to
manage these risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions
of the Group are delegated to the management.

The Board is also delegated with the corporate governance functions
under code provision D.3.1 of the Code. The Board has reviewed and
discussed the corporate governance policy of the Group and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the corporate governance policy.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this report, there
have been no chief executive officer in the Company. Mr. Guo Yumin
acted as the Chairman of the Board, and responsible for the overall
management and formulation of business strategy of the Group.

The Board does not have the intention to fill the position of the chief
executive officer of the Company at present and believes that the absence
of the chief executive officer will not have adverse effect to the Company,
as decisions of the Company will be made collectively by the executive
Directors. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Board
and the need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform the role
of chief executive. Appointment will be made to fill the post to comply
with code provision A.2.1 of the Code if necessary.
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Board Meetings and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior
to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their views
at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after deliberation at
Board meetings. Directors who are considered having conflict of interests
or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting
on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings
and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments, the
final version of which are endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed
term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination Committee
meetings and general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are summarized as follows:

Board
meeting
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman) PEREE(ZE) 1414
Ms. Xia Yu Rt 13/14
Mr. Zeng Xiangyang Pkt 14/14
Mr. Guo Cheng PAEE 13114
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Ms. Fan Qing EERT 13/14
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FREE 13/14
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy BERESE 13/14

Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Ms. Fan Qing did not attend the general
meeting as they had other commitments on the date of general meeting.
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Board Committees

The Board has established specific committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), with written terms of reference which are
available for viewing on the website of the Company to assist them in the
efficient implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have
been delegated to the above committees.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee currently has three
members comprising Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (being the Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all being independent
non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the final results of the Group for 2016 and the 2017 interim
results and report of the Company. The Audit Committee had reviewed
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function for the year ended 31
December 2017. The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December
2017 had been reviewed by the Audit Committee before submission
to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee had also reviewed this
annual report, and confirmed that this annual report complies with the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2017. Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meetings are set out above.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 22 June
2012 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee include mainly: (i) reviewing the terms of the remuneration
package of each Director and member of senior management, and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any adjustment thereof;
and (i) reviewing and evaluating the performance of individual executive
Directors for determining the amount of bonus (if any) payable to them.
No Director shall participate in any discussion about his or her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
members, namely, Ms. Fan Qing (Chairperson), Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both

EEZET

EEgCRUBTEEES
ZE8g)) ¥MZEE((H

DRRESZZES (B

B

([REZ8®])) EWZEE®
BRE

Z8g )RR ZES

HEmMBESEERAR
AU B - B AT R TE - LMEE®
ERER PR EEE -
EREES

ARARIFR 2012496 A 22 BIREST RIS ST BHE SR E
MY BZZEES  WEM THBRESNE - FXEE
CWME-EKE  DRIREEELAE(BEZZEESE
) BTN AMEL  2EHABYIFNTE
%o

REZ2017F12A31BLEFER EZZEGEE
BAREER 2016 FHIRAZELE - AARIH2017 FH
HEERRE - ERZ BRI AEEREZE 2017
F12 A31 BIEFRREBRE R &R EBIE G Z 5 A R A
HEZINEEM AN - REBREZE 2017412 A31
HIEFENRBEERZREETSENIE L HEZX
ZEgEH ERZEQNCEMAFR  THEAR
FHREFE ETRAARE ©

HE2017F12A31BIEFE EREESR7TT
SREE BREEENERZESERNLFEFE
BRI -

FHEES

ANRAFEIR20124% 6 A 22 BIRE ST AIE ST BHE K S
FMEEe  UEETHBESE FHEZEeH
FERERE  ((BHSESRRREEASNTE
HERGR  URARAZRRNESSIEL#EREE
() EBE G ERNRITESZNRE  UETENT
FBENELCRE(WE) EEHIE2HEEEEAY
FME R - FNEZEEERE=-EKE - 272
BEAXT(EREEBINTESE)  BEELE (B



RREBEEARAT
TR

Corporate Governance Report
PEEARE

of which are independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Guo Yumin,
an executive Director. The majority of members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors. The remuneration of
the Directors was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities within the Group and general market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Code to make recommendations to the Board
on remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the
members of senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2017. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration
Committee meetings are set out above.

At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee had reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior executives and
reviewed the remuneration packages and performance of the Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 22 June 2012
with written terms of reference which are in compliance with code
provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
include mainly: (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change;
(i) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and making recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; and (iii) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman), an
executive Director, Ms. Fan Qing and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, both of which
are independent non-executive Directors. The majority of members of the
Nomination Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 December 2017. Details of the attendance of the Nomination
Committee meeting are set out above.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, reviewed the qualifications of the
Directors, the progress on the implementation of the board diversity policy
and other related matters of the Company.
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Diversity of the Board

The Group has adopted policy in relation to the diversity of the members
of the Board and the summary of the policy is as follows:

(1)  selection of Board members will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, which would include but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; and

(2)  the Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
diversity policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the
diversity policy.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent of the Company as at the date
of this report.

Professional Development of the Directors

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2017, namely, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zeng
Xiang Yang, Ms. Xia Yu, Mr. Guo Cheng, Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Fong Wo,
Felix and Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy, had participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors had provided the relevant record to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to
all Directors for their continuous professional development. Each Director
is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and the governance policies of the Group. All
the Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable training
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration payment of the Group in the year
ended 31 December 2017 falls within the following band:
b ne Y A (GO Al b O

RMB1,000,000 or below

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the report of the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report. There are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

External Auditor's Remuneration

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2017. There was no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the fee payable to RSM Hong Kong in respect of its
statutory audit services provided to the Company was HK$1,400,000.
Fees for non-audit services for the same period was HK$Nil.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board and the senior management are responsible for improving and
monitoring the risk management and internal control of the Group. In
this regard, the Audit Committee has performed a regular review of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group within the
Reporting Period in which the results were summarized and reported to
the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. The Group
also sets up an internal audit team comprise management of subsidiaries,
which plays a major role in monitoring the corporate governance of
the Group and providing objective assurance to the Board that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated by the management.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The risk management framework of the Group and main responsibilities
of the members in the framework are described as follows:
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Member Main Responsibilities 24=
The Board e Set up goals for risk management strategy, assess E=E

and determine the nature and extent of risk
acceptable to achieve the strategy goals;

e Establish and maintain a proper and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and

e Review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems annually.

B
N
bl

Audit Committee e Assist the Board in overseeing the risk level
and the design and performance of the risk
management and internal control systems;

e Discuss the risk management and internal
control systems with the management, ensure
the management has fulfilled its responsibility of
establishing effective systems;

e Ensure that the internal audit function has
sufficient resources for operation and has a proper
position, review and supervise its performance;

e Keep updated of various major risks confronted
by the Group and the risk management status,
make decisions for effective risk control;

e Report the risk status of the Group and issues
to be concerned or improved to the Board on a
regular basis;

e Facilitate risk management and assessment,
regularly appoint relevant accountable persons to
implement risk assessment;

e Organise and promote the establishment of the
risk management system at the group level;

e Review material risk assessment report and
various risk management reports;

e Review major risk management measures, rectify
and deal with the decisions made or actions
adopted by relevant organisation or individuals
beyond the risk management system;

e Engage relevant persons to organise and
coordinate various departments and projects
to carry out identification and assessment of
significant risks at the group level, summarise and
analyse such information, submit risk assessment
and various risk management reports; and

e Carry out risk management for other major issues.
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Member Main Responsibilities

Internal audit e Ensure that the subsidiaries carry out the risk
team assessment in compliance with the risk assessment

manual formulated by the Group;

e Review and approve the risk assessment results of
the subsidiaries in respect of the business;

e Ensure that the subsidiaries implement effective
risk management;

e Monitor the principal business risks confronted by
the subsidiaries and the effectiveness of relevant
risk management measures; and

e Allocate resources such as fund and workforce
to the subsidiaries for implementation of the risk
assessment projects.

The Process Used to Identify, Assess and Management
of Principal Risks

The risk management process of the Group is described as follows:

Risk identification

identify the current risks confronted.

Risk analysis - conduct analysis on the risk including the
impact extent and possibility of occurrence.

Risk response - choose a proper risk response method and
develop a risk mitigation strategy.

Control measures  — propose up-to-date internal control measures
and policy and process.

Risk control - continuously monitor the risks identified and
implement relevant internal control measures
to ensure the effective operation of the risk
response strategy.

Risk management - summarise results of risk assessment and
report analysis and internal audit, formulate and
report an action plan.
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The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve material
internal control defects:

The Group establishes a risk management information and communication
channel that is functional within the whole basic risk control procedure,
connects different levels in the reporting system and different
departments and operation units, so as to ensure timely, accurate and
complete communication of information, laying a solid foundation for the
monitoring and improvement of risk management.

Different departments and business units of the Group regularly inspect
and examine their own risk management process in order to locate
the shortcomings and remedy the situation if possible. Their inspection
and examination reports are delivered to the Group’s risk management
department in time.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no material issue relating to
the Group’s risk management and internal controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group; and (ii) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Company Secretary

Ms. Pang Yuk Fong (“Ms. Pang”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 1 October 2017. Ms. Pang has adequate knowledge on
the Company to discharge her duty as the Company Secretary. Ms.
Pang confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year.
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The Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary
Meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner.

Communications with Shareholders and Investors

In order to keep Shareholders well informed of the business activities and
direction of the Group, information about the Group has been provided
to the Shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.sheentai.com
as a channel to facilitate effective communication with its Shareholders
and the public. The Company will continue to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investors. A shareholders
communication policy was adopted on 22 June 2012 to comply with code
provision E.1.4 of the Code.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries directly to
the Company through the following e-mail: investorrelation@sheentai.com.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing. Contact details are as follows:

HK Address:  Room 1903,19/F Jubilee Centre, 18 Fenwick Street,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3998 4118/3998 4128

Fax: (852) 3998 4100

E-mail: investorrelations@sheentai.com

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board
and/or relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the Shareholders’ questions.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings by
Shareholders

Shareholders are requested to follow article 64 of the Articles for including
a resolution at an extraordinary general meeting. The requirements and
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “The Shareholders’
Right to Convene an Extraordinary Meeting”.

Pursuant to article 113 of the Articles, no person (other than a retiring
Director) shall be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting unless a notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the Head Office
or at the Registration Office no earlier than the day after the dispatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the Company
may be given will be at least 7 days.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director is posted on the website of the Company.
Significant Changes in Constitutional Documents

There had been no significant changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited’s second sustainability
report, examining our approach to sustainability, effort and performance
in 2017, as well as our plans for the future.

The board believes that a sound structure is well balanced between
economic growth, the environment and society. In addition to business
growth, the Group is also responsible for creating an excellent future
in the field of environmental protection, social responsibility, corporate
governance and other areas. With this in mind, we continuously improve
our approach towards people, the society and the environment.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
has been prepared with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide of the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX"). This report is to
review the environmental, social and corporate governance performance
of the Group for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

The emissions have been calculated in accordance with the guidelines
laid down by the Environmental Protection Department of HKSAR. The
following entities were chosen for inclusion in this ESG Report because of
their significant contributions to the Group:

Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited

Sheen China Group Holdings Limited

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd.
Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.

Xuzhou Sheentai New Energy Power Generation Co., Ltd.
Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

Other businesses which are not covered in this report include low-
percentage ownership companies, as well as small and start-up
companies.

This report is designed to allow shareholders of the Company, potential
investors and the public to have a more comprehensive understanding of
the Group’s governance and culture. For any comments or suggestions
related to this report, please kindly contact our Public Relations
Department.

, Social and Governance Report
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Employment Policy

As the Group believes that employees are fundamental to business
operations and we always prioritise the well-being of all employees and
strive to maintain a healthy personnel structure.

The Group believes that a well balance between employees’ remuneration
and the Group’s financial strength will benefit the Group’s development.
Accordingly, the Group actively guarantees the rights and interests of
employees. We review our employee remuneration policy periodically and
adjust employee remuneration in accordance to the market situation, the
financial strength of the Group and the contribution of the employees.

The Group provides reasonable working hours and rest periods applicable to
all our employees. Working hours and statutory holidays to the employees
comply with the legal requirements of national labor governing laws and
regulations. Other statutory benefits include contributions to the medical
insurance, employment injury insurance and endowment insurance.

Meanwhile, we recognise the
benefits of having an employee
diversity policy. We seek to
provide equal opportunities in
the workplace. To safeguard
the employees’ interests and to
establish a healthy and harmonious
work environment, there is no
discrimination in employees’
remuneration, performance
assessment, promotion on ground
of gender, race, age, marital status
and any other factors.
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As at 31 December 2017, The Group had 352 employees in total. The
Group had a male/female composition ratio of 2.7:1.

The Group's employees by gender and age are illustrated as below:

EMPLOYEES BY GENDER
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Health and Safety REHEZS

Safety is a core tenet in our operation. We believe that our employees
are the most important asset and resource. The health and safety of our
employees is always the top priority of our Group.

The Group has continued to carry out regular monitoring and evaluation
of occupational hazards to ensure the health and safety of our working
environment. We strive to prevent and eliminate any occupational hazards
and improve our working environment.

RERASEEFNZLORE - AREHEEFEEIRR
EZNEEMER - A AKERE THREMLE2E
HEZ -

AEEEHREEZTFHREBUNLEZBER
B DHEREHREELRZEOTERE - BT 2
LN ETIE - HEREHGERERS L E
WEHMINTIERE




RREBEEARAT
TR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HgkERWmE

The Group is committed to provide a hygienic working environment and
guarantee workplace safety for all staff. Production staff are equipped
with worker protection items such as personal protective equipment in
order to minimise the negative impact on employees’ health.

Through regular inspections, the Group has supervised and troubleshot
safety risks in a timely manner in order to gradually strengthen our
safety production standard. The Group held regular training session
to strengthen employees’ safety awareness for avoiding accidents in
workplace during the Year.
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Meanwhile, the Group provided medical insurance and other health-
benefits for suitable employees. During the Year, the Group made every

efforts to improve the working environment, endeavouring to provide a
safety and comfortable workplace for all employees.

Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of developing the talents of the
employees and striving for the mutual growth between the Group and
its employees. We provide the new employees induction trainings on the
Group’s culture, policies, production safety and other necessary skills for
discharging duties at work.

To help the employees to upgrade their skills and enhance the Group’s
efficiency and productivity, we provide our staff on job training and encourage
the staff to attend job-related, courses, seminars or conferences etc.

The Group will evaluate the training effects subsequently, as to enhance
the effectiveness of trainings, which further improve the technical skills and
professional literacy of the Group’s employees with satisfactory results.
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To establish a good relationship and to provide a harmonious work
environment, the Group encourages communication between the
employees and the management staff, which can help to address
employees’ concerns and protect their interests. The employee
representatives could represent the employees to communicate with the
Group through our internal communication system. Such communication
system enables the Group to collect employees’ opinions and suggestions,
and helps the Group to deliver the latest corporate news to all staff in a
timely manner.
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Labour Standards

The Group recruitment policies are implemented in strict compliance with
both Hong Kong and PRC legislations and regulations to prohibit any form
of child and/or forced labour. The Group strives to avoid any child labour
and forced labour. In case of discovery of any non-compliance, the Group
will cooperate with relevant labor authorities and will immediately take
every effort to assist the victim employee.

The laws and regulations prohibiting child labor and forced labor
governing The Group mainly include:

Employment Ordinance of HKSAR

Labor Law of the PRC

Labor Contract Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on Protection of Minors

Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child Labor (State Council Order No. 364)

In 2017, the Group did not violate any of the abovementioned laws and
regulations.
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Supply Chain Management

As supply chain management is always one of the key elements in the
Group’s quality control system, we strive to establish a long term relationship
and seek to form a deeper connection with all of our suppliers.

Our suppliers are expected to adhere to our high standards, demonstrating
continuous development in a variety of operational, economic, social
and environmental areas. A well evaluation program is taken for our
suppliers’ selection, which reviews the supplier profile and facilities,
production capacities, quality control system and other aspects related to
manufacturing process. Suppliers are required to pass the evaluation to
become a quality supplier.

Meanwhile, the Group also carries out regular reviews for suppliers. In
case there is any significant change for supplier qualification, the Group
may suspend and, if necessary, cancel its qualification as a qualified
supplier to ensure that all suppliers conform to the Group’s highest
standard.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to provide clients with quality and safe products to
establish good reputation and credibility. We aim to achieve the highest
standard with all the products and services offered throughout our
operations.

To ensure the quality of the products, the Group has formulated a quality
inspection management system in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations. Each department is tasked with achieving their own quality
based targets in consideration of both the industry and market standards.
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The Group also implements a source-to-end inspection framework, which
is from material procurement and sourcing process to finished product and
storage. Any quality defect material or product will be suspended from
production line in order to prevent potential risks and protect interests of
clients and the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group operation strictly comply with the local and national legislation,
such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong and relevant
legislation on anti-corruption of mainland China.

The Group strives to maintain a healthy and rational environment for its
development. To effectively strengthen the Group integrity, we continue
to improve the internal supervision and anti-corruption management.
The Group also requires the employees to follow the code of conducts to
eliminate corruption, bribery or any form of dishonesty behavior in any
circumstance. Any suspected criminal offence will be promptly reported to
the relevant authorities.

During the reporting period, there is no reported case on the above
mentioned dishonest behavior.

The Community

The Group believes public welfare is important and necessary for the
development of the Group. We always seek to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates.

We believe that the development of a better future for our community
relies on joint participation of people, corporations and the government.
Continuous efforts were taken in the past year. We have been active in
engaging in charitable activities, donations, supporting and caring for
people in need, as well as environmental protection activities.

In addition, the Group also encourages all employees to actively
participate in volunteer activities and environmental protection activities.
We hope it can raise their community awareness and concern, and thus
inspiring more people to participate in community services and develop a
better future for our community.

A& BRI E i — BN YRR R R 17 # B B

W i) - (E{e] & R B O P SIS S A ST 2 R
RERER - ABERR - BREPNAEEIF
RES

REB BN EBERETE M MEFOERER
plan B e [B7 ERRER &G ] R BAEERER
EB

BMBO#EREY —BARENERIRE - ROEH
THRARNSEBSNREEEE - T NREBHE
B o AEBE RSN KIS EARNZSLTE - [
RNERKE TERIEETITASTA  LMBERARBRATE
5 RSN THET R - MEBRARA R
N RETALTETA  BYBNEEERAER
BRI o

EA#EttHEW REBIDZAEHR DB P ERAVEST

HERE

AEERAHEARREEAFRRTNERZ IR -
BANEREAXTZENFEHRTREANTE -

BN BEBEREMGETHES  BRVAEL
BRENEE - Ml aERMBNESTH - —F
RERTROBEER - AHBRMESR2ESEAS
mE MBEZEFRLREEDE -

RBSHMATXEE2EE TEG2RE T RRRED -
ﬁzﬁﬁﬂ_‘%ﬁ% BBESETIHRENTENEENE
CHEEZE AR ELR R o



JER R EEARDT
—EFFR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEkERRE

The Environment

The Group advocates a green office concept in which it integrates a low-
carbon principle into its operation, with an aim to develop paperless,
energy-saving and low carbon offices, and to minimise the consumption
of energy, water, electricity and other resources.

The Group pays great attention to environmental protection and pollutant
emission during production and operation. By establishing a management
system in accordance with the national laws and regulations, the Group
constantly monitor and review the emission performance during production.

The Group will make every effort on clean production, energy-saving,
consumption reduction, pollution reduction and efficiency improvement,
aims to minimise the impact and safeguard of the ecosystem.

The Group strictly complies with national laws and regulations in the PRC,
including but not limited to:

- Environment Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China

- Law of the Peoples Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution

- Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution

- Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste

- Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Pollution From Environmental Noise

- Regulations on the Safety Administration of Dangerous Chemicals

- Regulations on the Administration of Construction Project
Environmental Protection

- Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China
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Pollutant

The following table illustrated the main emission during the Reporting

Period.

, Social and Governance Report

TR

TR T HRERRNEEGRIER -

ol (d 1

Requirements as in relevant

laws or regulations

2017 (Max Allowable Value)
Category Pollutant Emission BEERERER
k=< SRY B E (BRAARFE)
Wastewater Total Wastewater Discharge 63,742m3 N/A 38 A
2N KRB E 63,742 37 F7K -
Air Total Dust <0.12 mg/m? 8 mg/m?
ZER HEE <0.12ZR/IFAK 8E /MK
Chemical Hazardous Benzene <0.6 mg/m? 6 mg/m?
ZRPCEREY PN <0.6 /7K 67 /K
Toluene <1.2 mg/m? 50 mg/m?
SIE <12ZR/3I7K 5025 /3 7K
Xylene <3.3 mg/m? 50 mg/m?
ZHRX <33=ZR/MTK 50 =5 /3 K
Ethyl acetate <0.27 mg/m? 200 mg/m?
LB Bs <027 2R /LITK 200= 5 /37 75K
Methanol <1.3 mg/m? 25 mg/m?
Bz <13=R/IK 25253/ K
Iso-Propyl alcohol <0.3 mg/m? 350 mg/m?
ERE <03=ZR /3 TK 350 =52 /375K
Methyl Ethyl Ketone <4 mg/m? 300 mg/m?
TR <425 /TR 300 =5 /327K
Acetone <6.7 mg/m? 300 mg/m?
AR <6.7= /3 J7K 300 =52 /3275 K
Noise Noise level <80dB(A) 85dB(A)
R E e <809 A 8559 E

Table 1 — Main Emission during the report year
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Greenhouse Gases Emission

The Group aims to develop a low-carbon production environment. The
total amount of carbon dioxide emission of our Group is approximately
16,033.37 tonnes in 2017.

The performance of carbon activities can be measured using ratio
indicators of GHG emissions per employee. The ratio indicator per
employee in year 2017 is 45.55 tonnes CO2 equivalent per employee.
Since the largest source from the companies’ business activity is the
indirect emission of electricity purchase during production, energy saving
will become a main part of the operation principle in the future.

DISTRIBUTION OF CO2 EMISSIONS

Bz 2 B
0.26%
17.79%
1.37%

The Group strives to improve the energy efficiency and reduce emission of
greenhouse gases in all phases of our operation, aiming to realize a low-
carbon society.

We continuously devote efforts to reducing the CO2 emission by lowering
energy consumption, as well as powering off lighting, air conditioning and
electrical appliances when they are not in use. In 2017, the new factory
come into operation, equipped with LED light source and energy-saving
production equipment.

49
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We hope the above described activities can further improve the energy-
saving operations, and ultimately achieve the purpose of energy
conservation, consumption reduction. In 2018, we will keep working on
energy usage reduction by further improving energy-saving operations.

HMFEREB DR aEE NG - fEE— T R EARE
B2 EhRE i iE - RAEDIETAEREFE - BUSHAM B
) o FE20185F/Z - RIMGEES N - HESERBE
TfE-e

Use of Resources

It is always an important responsibility of the Group to decrease waste
production. We strive to promote “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” for all the
resources in order to reduce the waste.

The Group is moving towards a more sustainable rate of using resource.
We are working actively to reduce the amount of waste. Moreover,
besides reducing waste, we hope by utilising resources effectively and
responsibly and achieve a sustainable development.

The following chart shows the companies’ resources consumption during
Reporting Period:

Electricity

BIRAEA
AEBRERLENERBMNEZEAE - RS
REERNS  BAESREREEE R EY -
YHER - BRAE] -

AEBRNEBEFEAAFEN T AER - RFIES

WMAOBEYE - WERBSEBMARHEER  BMERA
FEER

TR T RERANEREFEBRL

Natural Gas

BN KXAR
Consumption EREE 19,506,569kWh 1,507,835m? 1,943litre 63,742m? 827.5kg
19,506,569 T FLEs 1,507,835 3 /7oK 19437 63,7427k 827511
Carbon Intensity (in tonnes e
of CO2-equivalent) (&g
PAAEET) 12,919.581 2,849.160 3.138 37.735 3.972

Table 2 — Resources Consumption during the report year
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The Group advocates the principles of conservation, recycling and reuse.
We are working on various sustainable development activities to ensure
that the resources are used effectively and to safeguard the ecosystems of
Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group will continue to promote the green concept of low carbon
operation. We encourage more usage of electronic communications, use
of recycle paper for printing and copying, set up recycle bins or any other
recycle activities, which aim to utilize resource effectively so as to reduce
waste disposal.

The Group also set up various training and education sessions which it
expected to promote our environmental principles and raise the awareness
of employees regarding the environment. In the meantime, we initiated to
promote tree planting activities around the factory, which aimed to build
an eco-friendly working environment in order to safeguard the ecosystems
of local communities.

Methodology

This Report covers general disclosures and the Key Performance Indicators
that are defined in the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Reporting Guide of The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
("HKEX").

The GHG Emission Calculation in this report was based on current best
practices. The methodology was taken based on the following criteria:

- EPD’s “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or
Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” 2010 Edition.

- Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
- Greenhouse Gas Protocol.

- ESG Reporting Guide by HKEX

Note 1: EPD’s Guidelines specified value has been taken as the standard for any

unspecified factor.
Note 2: Due to the business nature, the significant emissions of Sheen Tai Holdings
Group are the GHG emissions, mainly from the use of electricity.
Note 3: Some premise is operating with the water supply that solely controlled by
the building management, which is not feasible to record consumption for
water withdrawal and discharge.

AEEEBEHNOER  RIGEM -
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The Directors are pleased to present to the Shareholders this annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in the consolidated financial statements Note 22 in this annual
report.

Business Review

Further discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group during the
Year, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, Chapter
622, can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. Those discussions form part of this
directors’ report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent to the businesses in which the
Group is engaged and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarized below.

i)  Price fluctuation in major raw materials may have
a material effect on the Group's performance

The major raw materials for production of the Group are
polypropylene and imported BOPP films. Any substantial increase in
prices of polypropylene and/or imported BOPP films may adversely
affect the profitability of the Group if the Group is unable to pass all
or part of such increase to its customers.

ii) The Group relies on certain major suppliers

The Group has relied on and expects to continue to rely on certain
major suppliers for a significant portion of the purchases. If they
fail to make timely delivery of their products and the Group fails to
source from other suppliers in a timely and cost-effective manner,
the operation of the Group could be delayed. The relationship
between the Group and its customers could also be adversely
affected as a result of any such delays, which could in turn
materially and adversely affect the business operations and financial
performance of the Group.
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iiii)

iv)

&R

The fluctuation of exchange rate may have a
material effect on the business and performance
of the Group

The sales of the Group are denominated in RMB and the purchases
are denominated in US$ and RMB. The Group does not engage
in any exchange rate hedging activities. Any fluctuation in the
exchange rates of RMB and US$ may have an adverse effect on
the results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Appreciation of the value of US$ may increase the costs of the
Group and thus subject the Group to increased competition from
domestic competitors, and depreciation in the value of RMB may
adversely affect the earnings, as well as the value of the net assets
and dividends from the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

PRC political, economic and social conditions and
government policies could affect the business of the
Group

All of the operating assets of the Group are located in the PRC and
the Group expects that a majority of the revenue will continue to
be derived from the operations in the PRC. The results of operations
and prospects are subject, to a significant degree, to economic,
political and legal developments in the PRC. The economy of the
PRC differs from the economies of most developed countries in
many respects, including the extent of government involvement,
the level of development, the growth rate, and government control
of foreign exchange. The Group cannot predict whether changes in
the PRC’s political, economic and social conditions, laws, regulations
and policies will have any material adverse effect on the current or
future business, results of operation or financial condition of the
Group.

Environmental Policies and Compliance with Laws and
Regulations

Details of environmental Policies and performance are set out in the

"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Group is committed to ensuring that the Group’s operation is in

compliance with applicable laws and regulations. As far as the Directors

are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the relevant

laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Directors recognises that employees, customers and business partners
are the keys to the sustainable development of the Group.

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of the
Group. The Group attracts and retains key personnel and talents with
appropriate skills, experience and competence which would complement
and meet the corporate and business objectives of the Group. The Group
ensures all employees are reasonably remunerated and the remuneration
packages of employees are reviewed regularly and necessary adjustments
are made to the remuneration packages to align with the market
standards.

The Group also stays connected with its customers and suppliers and has
ongoing communication with the customers and suppliers through various
channels such as telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings to
obtain their feedback and suggestions.

Results

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of this annual report.

Final Dividends

The Board does not recommend payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

Closure of the Register of Members

For determining entitlement to attend the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") to be held on 25 May 2018 (Friday), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 21 May 2018 (Monday) to
25 May 2018 (Friday), both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of Shares will be registered. The record date will be on 25 May 2018
(Friday). In order to qualify for attending the AGM, all transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2018 (Friday).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in the consolidated financial statements Note
18 in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements Note 30 in this annual report.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
in five year financial summary. This summary does not form part of the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the Year are set out in the
consolidated financial statements Note 27 in this annual report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

Save as disclosed below, there was no purchase, sale or redemption of
the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year.

On 31 March 2017, upon fulfilment of a revenue guarantee guaranteed
by Bloom Shine pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement, a
supplemental agreement thereto dated 23 June 2016 and a supplemental
deed dated 25 July 2016 entered into between the Company and the
Vendor (collectively the “Agreements and Deed”), a second tranche
convertible bond (the “Second Tranche Convertible Bond") in the
principal amount of HK$47,232,000 was issued to the Vendor pursuant
to the Agreements and Deed. Based on a conversion price of HK$0.72
per share, 65,600,000 conversion shares were allotted and issued to the
holder of the Second Tranche Convertible Bond. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 17 and 18 March 2016,
23 and 30 June 2016, 25 July 2016 and 31 March 2017.
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Transfer to Reserves

The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity shareholder of
approximately HK$166.1 million (2016: profit attributable to equity
shareholders of HK$36.1 million). There will be no transfer to reserves
for the Year. Other movements in reserve are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity in this annual report.

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and significant
Investment

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Significant Investment, Material Acquisition and Disposal” in
this annual report, there were no significant investments held nor other
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Subsequent Events

Details of important event affecting the Group subsequent to 31
December 2017 are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Subsequent Events” in this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
29.8% of the total sales for the Year and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 12.0% of the total sales
for the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 80.0% of the total purchases for the Year and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 33.1% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Directors

The Directors who held office during the Year and as at the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Guo Yumin (Chairman)

Ms. Xia Yu

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang

Mr. Guo Cheng

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (resigned on 20 January 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. Fan Qing
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy

In accordance with article (the “Articles”) 112 of the Company’s article
of association (the “Articles of Association”), any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his/her appointment and any Director appointed by the
Board as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a), at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

Pursuant Article 108, Mr. Guo Yumin, Mr. Zheng Xiangyang and Mr. Guo
Cheng will retire as Directors at the AGM. Mr. Guo Cheng has informed
the Board that he would not offer himself for re-election and accordingly
will retire as Director upon the conclusion of the AGM. Save for Mr. Guo
Cheng, the other two retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election as Directors at the Annual General Meeting.

Each of Mr. Guo Yumin, Ms. Xia Yu and Mr. Zheng Xiangyang, all being
executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 13 July 2015 and may be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice.
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Mr. Guo Cheng, being an executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
20 May 2015 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months' written notice.

Each of Ms. Fan Qing, Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, all
being independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing from
13 July 2016 and may be terminated by either party by giving at least
three months’ written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Biographies of Directors and Other Senior Management

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are
disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Directors Emoluments

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 15 in this annual report. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities within the Company.

Interests of Directors in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

No contract of significance has been entered into during the Year between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or
any of its subsidiaries.

A (BITES) EARRIFIL—DREEL - &
20155 A20HBRAEH=F WAJA— RS —7F
BHERORZEAEmBAMTIALL -

ERELLE - EEEEERAMES (B AEBLIEWTT
BEE)EARNRBIIRBEEL - B20165F7H13H

RAR-F TH—FAEHEL=@AZEEENT
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

The Board has established a committee (the “Committee”) comprising
all the independent non-executive Directors which was delegated with
the authority to review the non-competition undertakings (the “Non-
competition Undertakings”) given by Sheen Tai Group Holding Limited
("Sheentai BVI") and Mr. Guo Yumin (“Mr. Guo") in a deed of non-
competition entered into between Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo in favour
of the Company on 28 June 2012. The Committee was not aware of
any non-compliance of the Non-competition Undertakings given by
Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo for the year ended 31 December 2017 and up
to the date of this annual report. Each of Sheentai BVI and Mr. Guo has
confirmed that he/it had complied with the Non-competition Undertakings
given by him/it from the date of the Non-competition Undertakings and
up to the date of this annual report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in a state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the PRC government which covers the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong
Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in the consolidated
financial statements Note 4(t) in this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the relevant rules of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s
distributable reserves as at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$709.2 million.
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Directors’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(a

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of the
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

nd the u

(i)

Long Position in the Shares a nderlying Shares
b DO v k) (TPTNY[TETR N v o) d UK

Name of Director Capacity/Nature

gt 1HE

Mr. Guo Yumin

("Mr. Guo") (Note 1)
PER(EBEE]D G EE e (1)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

BERBEAANHiE2)

Interest of spouse (Notes 3 and 4)

BB (A5t 3 R 4)
Ms. Xia Yu (“Ms. Xia")
BER(TELZx]) BoidtE R (M1at5)
Beneficial owner (Note 3)
Emfa A Hi73)
Beneficial owner (Note 6)

BB (Hite)

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang
("Mr. Zeng")
Brks((gEEl)

Interest of spouse (Note 5)

EERKG HRROKEZWERN

RE

(a

Interest of a controlled corporation

M

H2017F 12 A31H » ARREFXZmETTH
ABRARBIREFMAEZE (EERESH
MEEGEN ([HERBEHG ) EXVE) K
7 BERD REHF - BHEREES KB
BIEBIEXVEE 7 M 8D BAE AN A KB
Frries MoKk B (BIERIEES R EKIZE
WO E (e R BB 2 TSR A ) » 3k
BIREE S R ERE 5] 58 352 K B R R s& 16 AT
BECMAERS AR - SRR TR RIF &
102 EMAREFETEFRFHIRESTRIZA
MEARA R RBRFTRERABIAT

L)

L

RAERRSG 2 H AR KRG

Number of

Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
interested interest

e o)
ERRHOR BHEEDLL
HERGHE HEH
1,229,086,000 50.06%
272,356,164 11.09%
33,094,000 1.35%
1,501,442,164 61.15%
33,094,000 1.35%
4,000,000 0.16%
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Number of
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Shares and
underlying Approximate
Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature interested interest
=Yg £o] BHEEDL
EEpE 513 HE ERROEE FOE
Mr. Guo Cheng Beneficial owner (Note 7) 2,350,000 0.10%
S BEnEBA(H:E7)
Interest of spouse (Note 8) 47,656,000 1.94%
BBz (H1it 8)
Ms. Fan Qing (“Ms. Fan”) Beneficial owner (Note 9) 800,000 0.03%
et ([Eat]) BnEBA(H:E9)
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix Beneficial owner (Note 10) 800,000 0.03%
(“Mr. Fong”) EmEB A (i 10)
FMEE(TFEED
Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy (“Mr. Lo") Beneficial owner (Note 11) 800,000 0.03%
EEESA(TEELEE]D BEmBEEANMETE11)
(i) Long Position in the Ordinary Shares of Associated (i) REEIEZEROZER

Corporation
» e H d (

Number of

Name of associated share held/ Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/Nature interested interest
Ec e )

EEpg B EE AR B HE EaROEE EREDL
Mr. Guo Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner 1 100%
A EmEA A
Ms. Xia (Note 5) Sheentai BVI Interest of spouse 1 100%
B+ (Mats5) ity g

Notes: BT

1. Mr. Guo beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Sheentai 1. 20 % 4 B % A Sheentai BVIF) 2 30 2 817

B e Ett - RIEFHLBEEE - 35
A4 3% 48 B3 E R Sheentai BVIE B 0 T A
1,229,086,000 I ik R IE B = - R E A
Sheentai BVIFYME—E = -

BVI. Therefore Mr. Guo is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the
1,229,086,000 Shares held by Sheentai BVI for the purpose of the
SFO. Mr. Guo is the sole director of Sheentai BVI.
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10.

11.

These 272,356,164 Shares and underlying Shares represent the
272,356,164 Shares owned by Mr. Guo.

These 33,094,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent the
33,094,000 Shares owned by Ms. Xia.

Mr. Guo is the spouse of Ms. Xia. Accordingly, Mr. Guo is deemed, or
taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in which
Ms. Xia is interested.

Ms. Xia is the spouse of Mr. Guo. Accordingly, Ms. Xia is deemed, or
taken to be interested in all the Shares and underlying Shares in which
Mr. Guo is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

These 4,000,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent:
(a) the 2,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Mr. Zeng; and

(b) the 2,000,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Zeng upon full exercise of the share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company on 22 June 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme”,
each share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is
referred to as “Share Option”) to him.

These 2,350,000 Shares and underlying Shares represent:
(a) the 750,000 Shares owned by Mr. Guo Cheng; and

(b) the 1,600,000 underlying Shares which may be allotted and
issued to Mr. Guo Cheng upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.

These 47,656,000 Shares represent the Shares owned by Ms. Lam Ka
Yee. Mr. Guo Cheng is the spouse of Ms. Lam. Accordingly, Mr. Guo
Cheng is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in which
Ms. Lam is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Ms. Fan upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to her.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Fong upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.

These 800,000 underlying Shares represent the 800,000 Shares which
may be allotted and issued to Mr. Lo upon full exercise of the Share
Options granted to him.

5%272,356,164 [ % 17 [2 A8 A% (7 15 26 55 A #E
AH)272,356,164 A% -

33,094,000 IRfx 10 KRR D IEE Z TH# A
#933,094,000 &A% 5 °

BRERELTORE - At > SPEEWER
HEENERTHEERNPIE KD RABRK
DR e -

BERTRIEENES - Bt - RIZEZ L
BIEP - EXLRERNEFENBEEREEGR
sRHYPTA B R ARRRR ) i A M -

4,000,000 J& A% 15 M ABRARR D E -
(@)  ELAHEARY2,000,000 MG ¢ K

(b) REBEHITERIEARRQFN212F6A
R2ARMA BB ([ B R ET
B BEERESIEENSOHER
TR [BRRE]) R E A AR HMER
18 AT B 1A EL AR B 2 347 /Y 2,000,000
FRARRERR D ©

5% 2,350,000 A& A1) M ARRA AR (945 -
(@) B AEBAR 750,000 A% © &

(b)  AEBITERBHEER TR BRER
Bl ) EL il 8% 1 1T #9 1,600,000 A 4 A
Bedn o

47,656,000 R AR D IEMEE X T HEB R
19 o SEEE BN EWEE - Btk - SLES
REIEEHITE » 20k £ IR BE R
T BESENAERNDPHEGE

# 800,000 % A8 BA I& (5 FE M B BT E RSB &
TERENEREZTERAERE RETH
800,000 J&A% 15 °

5%800,000 A% 18 B8 A% (0 48 A B AT M) J5 5%
AREERERTER AR ERETH
800,000 %A% 5 °

% 800,000 i 8 B A 1 35 10 A BRAT (L [7) /& 5
ERHHBREBRATEARERRETH
800,000 A&A& 17 -
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(b)  So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2017, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company as disclosed in paragraph (a) above) had interests or
short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who are,
directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Group:

TeCompany
f b\ Akibll Lo

Capacity/Nature of interest

B0 EEME

Sheentai BVI Beneficial owner

BEEEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company, its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

(b) HEEMA R2017F12A318 A TFAL
(EX@BFAEEZARBESKESITHRA
BRRIN) FRRR 1 SR B R (0 P A IR IR 75 55 K P
EIEFIEXVEF2 RE 3D BRIGEAERAR
AN R ENERZSAR - REESMEE
BEEWEREFNTAEMBR T ERNEBEME
b B ARIMREAE LR ENTMER KA
TE1E 10% A FERERS

Number of
Shares held/
interested
Fii®E
RRRAOEE

Percentage of
shareholding

IRHEH D LA

1,229,086,000 50.06%

B EXHTESESN - 201712 A318  HEEW
AL (KRAREERZRTRABRIN MGAARE
RS SRR RR D P S R AR IR B 5 R EA B A& MFI 28 XV
HE2RFIDBZEXAARREHE - KL ARRA
AIRIEE SN BEENIE 336 (R EFE 2 B
I TORA -

EEREROESFHER

BEXTESERRD  BEROREFOBEIX
Bl —BRAAEEEN  RAFEEMEHE - ARF
HERRR] - B A B[R RHE A R BT SR

R EARREFRERITRABKEBREARE
BUEIEAR R R SAT A B A A BB M D S B T &

Approximate
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Share Option Schemes BT El

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a) BEXRDEABEABRETE
Pursuant to the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share BI% 20124 6 A 22 BERH & X AFEERIE
Option Scheme”) adopted on 22 June 2012, the Company had IRt E (R HERENBRESE]) K
granted options to subscribe for 10,000,000 Shares (which were A BB # 7] 5208 10,000,000 f& B 1 (L FE AR
adjusted to 40,000,000 Shares after the share subdivision of the AR IR 2015F 9 A25 HEMEEARE
Company becoming effective on 25 September 2015) to employees, 40,000,000 &A% 1) RFBAER T AL EIES -
directors, consultants and advisers of our Group. BE - HRAKER -
Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted under RAFHRAE - RIBEE X AR SR BRES
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report: EIMARITEOERESBHIN T

(O \ g vy !

Number of Option lapsed  Outstanding Outstanding

options prior to as at During the reporting period as at

granted on 1 January 1 January RE&REHR 31 December

Name of grantee 22 June 2012 2017 2017 Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2017

R2012%  R017F  R2017F R2017 %

6828 1B1BAI%¥ 1A1H 12A31H

RRALE EREREHA if 1Y W AT W AT

Director EZ

Mr. Guo Yumin PERLAE 2,000,000 - 600,000 600,000 - - -

Ms. Xia Yu BEat 2,000,000 - 600,000 600,000 - - -

Mr.BauSiuFung (note) ~ EVNEEAE (M) 2,000,000 - 600,000 600,000 - - -

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang ey 2,000,000 - 600,000 600,000 - - -

Mr. Guo Cheng PEE 1,000,000 - 300,000 300,000 - - -

Employees ESRER 31,000,000 8,030,000 6,180,000 6,180,000 - - -

and advisers

Total S 40,000,000 8,030,000 8,880,000 8,880,000 - - -

Note: Mr. Bau Siu Fung resigned as a Director and the Company Secretary MaE - #0/NLEAER20178F1 208 KX 201749

on 20 January 2017 and 30 September 2017 respectively. A30BD BB IEERARWE -
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Note:

The subscription price for Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is HK$0.6029 per Share (which had been adjusted to HK$0.1507 per share
after the share subdivision of the Company becoming effective on 25
September 2015), being the amount of the combined net asset value of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 as stated in the audited combined financial
statements of the Group attributable to each share (assuming 400,000,000
shares of the Company are in issue as at 31 December 2011). Options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall vested in 5 tranches
in the proportion of 10%, 15%, 20%, 25% and 30% on 14 July 2013, 14
July 2014, 14 July 2015, 14 July 2016 and 14 July 2017, and shall expire on
13 July 2018, being the sixth anniversary of the date of initial listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange.

A summary of the principal terms and conditions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is set out as follows.

On 22 June 2012, the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was approved by the
then sole shareholder of the Company.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees,
directors, consultants and advisers of the Group and to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options can be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 10,000,000, representing
approximately 2.44% of the total issued shares of the Company as at the
date of listing. Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 shares
of the Company (which were adjusted to 40,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025
each after the shares subdivision of the Company becoming effective on
25 September 2015) had been granted by the Company under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme before the date of listing. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, no further options can be granted after the date of
listing.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$0.6029 per share (which was adjusted to HK$0.1507
each after the share subdivision of the Company becoming effective on 25
September 2015), being the amount of the combined net asset value of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 as stated in the audited combined financial
statement of the Group attributable to each share of HK$0.01 each (assuming
400,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each are in issue as at 31 December 2011).

Options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are exercisable during
the period as set out in the paragraph headed “Outstanding Pre-IPO Share
Options” under Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 29
June 2012.

Save as determined by our Board and provided in the offer of the grant of
the relevant options, the exercise of the options under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme are not subject to any performance targets being met.

BRAFABREFEREAETRNIORBEATR
0.6029 78 7T (R EA A RIRMIFAN 201599 A 25 H
ERE D AREENIR0.150787T) - IAEENKLE
FrEMMBRERTAHETRKRMEEREERR 201
F12A31 BNEHEEFEMNEEE(BREN2011F
12 A 31 BE#77400,000,000 G AR R EIRELD) © RIE
BRAFAEENBREZEEOBRERD T
10% * 15% * 20% * 25% % 30% KILL 515> Bl #2013
£7H148 2014978148 - 201557 7148 -
2016F7A14B &2017F7 A 148 FEEA
Wi 20185F 7 A 13 BEH (BIRMD AN BE R FrE R L
K H EIRBAT SR 7B ) o

BIRAFIEE AR S 8] 2 R R AR OB 2 8
Pl

R2012F6 8228 » X AHESHERESZE
TEAR D T)E M — AR B -

BRAMEENBREAENENEERARIBEE
7 YRAAEENER  EBE  FAALREBRH
BEOMNERIA R B AR BT AR -

BEEXARBEBRE TR ERRERESR
=D EE & 10,000,000 8% - FEER LB EARQF
O BTN ARENL2.44% < P E BEIRT - ANAF
R E R ARBEEAIERETE D R ERERER
710,000,000 f& A 2 & J (72015 9 A 25H
A BIRR 9 1 40 A 28U1% 9% 5 40,000,000 AR & AR EHE
0.0025 B TTHIRR D) o IBIE B IR A& Al IR ERT
B T RHRA I TR — AR -

BRNFABENBREAZTARRRNNREBESR
F020.6029 7T (REA R B RMIFMMR 201549 A
25 HAREBEAZRESTR0.15078 L) © IALER
BT A OIS IRE A FTECE AR 0.01 BT IR 1D FE (S
AEER 2011912 A31 BREHTEEFENEER
272011412 A 31 BE #17400,000,000 % &% 0.01
BILRIAR ARG ) ©

BRAFREENBRENETHERENRNARBEA
20124 6 A 29 BMBRERZNE R [BEIIDE X
AR E AT —ERATEHARTTE -

BREEFSRAEERAHBRENROZOERE
Sh - RIBE R AR E AT AES BITT R AR B A
EREMRRRE -
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The amount payable by the grantee of an option under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
an option is HK$ 1.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
commencing on 22 June 2012, being the date on which the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme was adopted by the Company and ending on the day
immediately prior to 13 July 2012, being the date of listing of the shares
of the Company, after which period no further options will be granted
thereunder but in all other respects the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the exercise of any
options granted.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 22 June 2012. A summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme is set out as follows.

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of
the Group and to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

2. Participants

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms
as it may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time),
director, consultant or adviser of the Group, or any substantial
shareholder of the Group, or any distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider
of the Group, options to subscribe for such number of Shares
as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may
be, the independent non-executive Directors) from time to
time on the basis of his contribution or potential contribution
to the development and growth of the Group.

(b)

N
\

R ANIR H B AR HE Z R IR I AR AR E IR A
HEFNRREA BN/ BT

BRAFRBEERERET S E 201266 8228 (8]
RARRMNE R AREENERETZBESH BEE
BE2012F7 A13 8 (BIARRARIBH LT EE) AIE R
IEHARI AR - 118 BRR R i — SR AR AE i IR L 52
o BE R AFBERIERET EHE AT EE M E
H A B+ R RAEA AT TE TR BT (I RS AR AE -

IR B

ARATIN20124 6 A 22 B — B E 2
([BRAESTE ) - BB 2R G
R EEHNT

1. BKEERE A

PRI E AR R B ES - ARAE
EER (2R  EF  FHAL
B - DR AeR - HER - R
P - AEBHARGHERRHEINE
BIAR B A EBEF AL ES -

>

SHE

E=e2RNERIRATREARAE
MERIFERAARETAER (ZRER
B EBF #FWALTHERIAKEE
A EZRRIAEEEM D HE - AE
R IR BF - BERBAER
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of all the shares in issue as at the date of listing of the
shares of the Company (or such numbers of shares as shall
result from a sub-division or a consolidation of the shares
of the Company from time to time), i.e. 40,000,000 shares
representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of listing. On 25 September 2015, each of
the existing issued and unissued shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company was sub-
divided into four sub-divided shares of HK$0.0025 each (the
“Shares Subdivision”). As such, the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company
is adjusted from 40,000,000 to 160,000,000.

On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options
to subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company (which were adjusted to
58,400,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each after the Shares
Subdivision) were granted to certain Directors and employees
of the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

Therefore, as at the date of this annual report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme and any other scheme of the Company was
53,650,000 representing approximately 2.19% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.
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Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer
of the grant of the relevant options, there is no performance
target which must be achieved before any of the options can
be exercised.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on acceptance
of the option

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option is HK$1.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of grant of the option.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on the date on 22 June 2012 (the
date on which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally
adopted by the Company) and shall expire at the close of
business on the business day immediately preceding the
tenth anniversary thereof unless terminated earlier by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
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On 29 January 2015, a total of 14,600,000 share options
to subscribe for a total of 14,600,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company were granted to certain
Directors and employees of the Company under the Share

M20158 18298 A #R B & H&
14,600,000 J% A< 2 7] & % E {E0.017%5
JT Ky 3B A% /914,600,000 17 B8 A% 4 -
ERERARAMBRIESIETETAE
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ARIEERIES - RATERLBRES
2,100,000 7 BERETIIR TES - URE
4 4£2,100,000 AR B © FFIEEL
BMARRAF HEA2015F1 A29BHAE -

Option Scheme. Among the share options granted above,
2,100,000 share options were granted to the Directors to
subscribe for a total of 2,100,000 shares of the Company. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated

29 January 2015.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated FELEARBIBEA2015F9F24H/
24 September 2015 in relation to the adjustment to the NE - ABEBEARRBRMDIFAR 2015
options granted under the Share Option Scheme upon the F9 A 25 BAMGI 2 EIRRERE -

share subdivision of the Company becoming effective on 25
September 2015.

RAHE B RIFBIE BB AR
TR BRI T -

Set out below are details of the outstanding options granted
under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:
G i) ()

Outstanding

gl by > v il ko)
Number of Option lapsed

options granted prior to as at During the reporting period as at

on 29 January 1 January 1 January RE&REHR 31 December

Name of grantee 2015 2017 2017 Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2017

R20158  R17E  R2017F R2017 5

18298 1R1BA%H 1A1A 12A31H

AERALR EREBREHE HERE HARTE T HARTHE
Director EZ

Mr. Guo Cheng EiEER 1,600,000 - 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000

Mr. Zeng Xiangyang BrfEE 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000

Mr.Bau SiuFung (note) ~ B/NESEAE(HE) 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 -

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix Ll 800,000 - 800,000 - - - 800,000

Ms. Fan Qing BEAT 800,000 - 800,000 - - - 800,000

Mr. Lo Wa Kei, Roy EEELHE 800,000 - 800,000 - - - 800,000

Employees ESREH 50,400,000 500,000 49,900,000 - - 2,250,000 47,650,000

and advisers
Total At 58,400,000 500,000 57,900,000 - - 4,250,000 53,650,000

Note: Mr. Bau Siu Fung resigned as a Director and the Company MisE : A8/ 25 4 B R201781A208 &
Secretary on 20 January 2017 and 30 September 2017 2017F9R30B D RIBEES LA
respectively. W& -
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Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed approximately 352 full-
time staff members. The Directors and senior management receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, allowances, benefits in
kind and/or discretionary bonuses relating to our performance. The
Group also established the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme to incentivize the senior management and employees,
further details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Option Schemes” in this report. When reviewing and determining the
specific remuneration packages for the executive Directors and senior
management, the Company takes into consideration factors such as their
individual performance, qualification, experience and seniority, salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment elsewhere in the Group and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Group determines the staff's
remuneration based on factors such as qualifications and work experience.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Article of Association, every Director is
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this annual report as
required under the Listing Rules.
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Auditor

RSM Hong Kong ("RSM") has acted as auditors of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017 from 13 October 2017. The Company has
changed its external auditors on 12 October 2017 from KPMG to RSM as
the audit fee cannot be reached with KPMG.

RSM will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the
reappointment of RSM as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board of

Guo Yumin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sheen Tai
Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 179, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM

FEREEE (F8) SaTEERRAm
FRRFEERFE-1/\5K
FE—H=t+hFig

TG +8522598 5123
{8H +8522598 7230

RSM Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123
F+85225987230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified
is the impairment of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

BREETEE (&)

Key Audit Matter
BERETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAREHREF N AEEREETEE

Impairment of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets

Refer to notes 20, 18 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position were, before testing for impairment,
goodwill of approximately HK$49,645,000, property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$38,084,000 and other intangible
assets of approximately HK$163,061,000 which were attributable
to the cash-generating unit (“CGU") engaging in the cloud-related
business, namely Treasure Cloud Group CGU.

Management is required to test goodwill for impairment at least
annually. The financial performance of this CGU deteriorated for the
year ended 31 December 2017, which increases the risk that the
carrying amount of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets may be impaired.

Management has performed impairment assessment of this CGU by
estimating its value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
its property, plant and equipment and engaged a firm of independent
external valuers to assist in preparing the value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal calculations. The value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal calculations required the exercise of significant
management judgement and estimates.

Impairment losses of approximately HK$49,645,000, HK$5,099,000
and HK$162,807,000 were recorded during the year in respect of
goodwill, property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets
respectively.

BE - YE  BERRERAMEVEEZHE
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Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
included:

o Assessing the external valuer's qualifications, experience and
expertise and considering their objectivity and independence;

U working with our in house valuation specialists to review the
integrity of the value in use model and the appropriateness of
the discount rate adopted by management;

o checking input data to supporting evidence including approved
budgets and considering the accuracy of management’s
previous budgets;

U challenging the reasonableness of management’s key
assumptions underlying the cash flow forecasts in view of the
historical performance of the CGU and our understanding of
the business;

o testing key inputs used in determining the fair value less costs
of disposal of property, plant and equipment, to supporting
data; and

o considering the adequacy of the impairment testing disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

BB B e M BRRAENEE

(%)

s HESRAKEKLSTERNREMIFLE
i RIBFAERNENRE  BERGFES
ERABEREAOBRTHEEN - KM ATaeE
BHEEENSELERNELSARE - 10
REMALSBFEEANEEN WAV EER
AN E R IRBEEAELBRA M B RP A
MRE BEEEOERETRE  AIRMEESH
RIFBREBER - RAINBRTENZEE TR
EHIEFBUSHRETRE - A - RKFIAL

BRI S E R TR ELE -

o FHESAUBHROERIHIA  BEAA
B BEEE URBEVBRREETTER
R ZFFEIA

s NEREANERAXRBEHHNBESEIE
B HEENEINRE  UWEHGRSMBREKE
RER - BMBEEREFTHIR  EEM
W7 - RIAFEFBRAEREE -

BREMBRS  RMEEFZE S0 (EhEE) 8
MEHE - ERLEREAETBRIETEER &
R AFIETFT P BB B R ER I I M) (AT B R ERFS o

BAEMEAZBEREN  FHBRRMCTAER
BYMENERERBEER  YRMOFEBETES
BERRE L ER MBI AERERNE DS
B UREEROERT - BN HES

77




78

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Independent Auditor’s Report
PERVE L Gk s

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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2017

2017 £
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Revenue WA 8 1,250,706 478,354
Cost of sales SHERKAR (1,094,571) (304,798)
Gross profit EF 156,135 173,556
Other income =N 9 16,485 10,022
Other gains and losses H s K EsiE 10 (7,445) 5,562
Distribution costs S EHRLAR (21,000) (37,236)
Administrative expenses THFAY (96,045) (95,341)
Other operating expenses Hig ez (4,230) (18)
Profit from operations FEE— il 43,900 56,545
Finance costs BEERAR 11 (8,513) (8,561)
Impairment of goodwill EERE 20 (49,645) =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment M - BRE REERE 18 (5,099) -
Impairment of intangible assets EREERE 21 (162,807) =
(Loss)/profit before tax BiA (B58) A (182,164) 47,984
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigsisfe, (H) 12 16,078 (11,852)
(Loss)/profit for the year R (EER) BR 13 (166,086) 36,132
Attributable to: BT A B4 :

Equity shareholders of the Company NN EIEZAR R (165,219) 36,132

Non-controlling interests SEIE RS (867) -

(166,086) 36,132

(Loss)/earnings per share SR (FE) B

Basic (HK$ per share) HAR(FRAT) 17 (0.069) 0.017

Diluted (HK$ per share) s (AT 17 (0.073) 0.001
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A31 BIEFE

d

A A ) b N Y
2017 2016

2017 2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) wR (166,086) 36,132
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hih2 @z (BE)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: Rl BT MR IR I E A -
Exchange differences on translating foreign MBI IS S FTE £/
operations ME X ZER 59,645 (48,634)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEKE - (FE)
for the year, net of tax HIBRF 8 59,645 (48,634)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAEZHEEEEE (106,441) (12,502)
Attributable to: BUF AL FE(G -
Equity shareholders of the Company R BRI R (105,586) (12,502)
Non-controlling interests e (855) -

(106,441) (12,502)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 December 2017
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2017

2017 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE REE 18 476,596 468,135
Interests in leasehold land held for own use RILEHEFEE A
under operating lease MEE AR 19 19,845 18,982
Goodwill ma 20 2,830 52,475
Intangible assets mAE 21 2,086 185,145
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 3,470 2,166
Deferred tax assets }Ekfﬁlﬁﬁﬁ 32 6,356 13,054
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 511,183 739,957
Current assets REBEE
Financial assets at fair value UAnEBEFEEEZES
through profit or loss ATABHERNEREE 25 26,559 224,648
Inventories FE 23 142,144 682,205
Trade and other receivables B 5 FEWGRIA K E A FE W kIR 24 315,738 299,802
Current tax assets BNERTR IR & E 2,855 17,209
Restricted cash SR HIR 26 = 1
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS MR 26 274,303 171,003
Total current assets RENEEHE 761,599 1,394,868
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables Z SN FRIE R E MR 33 210,308 888,575
Bank borrowings RITER 30 153,452 144,040
Current tax liabilities EHRIBAE 6,198 9,230
Total current liabilities REBEERAE 369,958 1,041,845
Net current assets REBEERE 391,641 353,023
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBEE 902,824 1,092,980
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2016

2016 4F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITER 30 - 445
Convertible bonds AIBRRE S 31 94 202,176
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 32 4,958 56,426
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBELE 5,052 259,047
NET ASSETS FEE 897,772 833,933
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital f& A 27 6,138 5,460
Reserves (Gt 29 892,186 828,098

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders — ZNA RIFEZSILER

of the Company FE(G AR 898,324 833,558
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR A 2 (552) 375
Total equity fERBE 897,772 833,933

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018 and are signed on ~ FAEE&/M2018F3 A29 B#L/EIW B T A TR

its behalf by: BExe%E:
Guo Yumin Zeng Xiangyang
BER =l

Executive Director Executive Director

HiTEE BITEF



B B AR T
T FFR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A31 BIEFE

Attrlbutable to shareholders of the Company

LINGEY 1
Share-based
Share Share  Capital  Statutory payments  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits  Sub-total interests equity
HRhASHE

Wit Re  RHEE E4RE tERk OXGRE  EXBR  REEA Mt ERER S8R

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Thr  Tér Thr  Tér  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn

At1 January 2016 R20165 1418 5019 341,295 68,665 20829 8,255 (19.284) 492571 917,350 - 917350
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER2ENEEE - - - - - (eed  3%12 (12500 - (1250
Conversion of convertible bond ThhEsEn Q578 - - - - - 70000 - 70000
Diidends paid Bfiks 16 - - - - - - (1493%)  (149352) - (14933
Disposal partialshares of subsidaries HENBLARNSARA = (374) = = = = - (374) 375 1
Appropriation to statutory reserve AREEERE - - - 8,449 - - B = = s
Shares issued under share option scheme R BT E BT 19 3,686 - -5 = = 1,116 = 1,116
Share-based payments R BERIEH 14 = - - - 7320 = = 7320 = 7320
Changes nequity orte year EREREY w0 SBMY AT (BRY  (ME9) @I 35 (B40)
At 31 December 2016 R2016E12A31H 5460 414185 68,665 29278 12,986 (67918) 370902 833558 35 8339
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1 1A 5460 414,185 68,665 29278 12986 (67918 370902 833558 35 833933
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER2ENEEE - - - - - 59633 (165219)  (105586) (855 (106,441)
Share-based payments WRDBERIH 14 - - - - 4,295 - - 4295 = 4295
Conversion of convertible bond THkERER 65 188272 - - - - - 183928 - 18898
Shares issued under share option scheme R EEBRRIEFRIETHIR 2 3085 - - (1 - - 1338 - 1338
Appropriation to statutory reserve AREEERE - - - 10062 - - (10,062) - - -
Dividend paid BffRE 16 - - - - - - (M5) (5% - (5R)

Acquiston of partalshares of subsidaries - R RERRESHHE

from non-controlling interests ARt - - - - - - 356 356 (356) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR 35a)i) - - - - - (13) - (13) 284 m
Changes in equity for the year EniERgy 678 191317 - 10,062 2,566 59620  (199,477) 64,766 (921 63,839
At 31 December 2017 R01TE12A31H 6,138 605502 68,665 39340 15,552 (8298) 171425 898,324 (552) 897,712
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A31 BIEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RETDFERTRE

HK$°000
TR

2016
20164
HK$'000
FET

(Loss)/profit before tax Finl (E518) &7 (182,164) 47,984
Adjustments for: AEIER
Impairment of goodwill EESERE 20 49,645 -
Impairment of intangible assets M EERE 21 162,807 =
Impairment of property, plant and equipment M - BE REERE 18 5,099 =
Write off of property, plant and equipment M - BRE R E M 1,581 =
Allowance for inventories FERE 432 -
Allowance for trade and other receivables B 5 FEWRIE R EAM
FENTRIB R 1,943 =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QR Mk 35(a) (363) =
Amortisation of intangible assets M EEE 20,774 10,121
Depreciation and amortisation of property, M - BB R
plant and equipment HrEe KR EE 41,617 34,179
Finance costs BbE AN 8,513 8,561
Dividend income from equity securities BEEFSFNRBEWA (396) (1,094)
Interest income F B WA 917) (1,336)
Gain on bargain purchase HEUE R - (365)
Fair value change of convertible bonds AMRESH AR BEE (13,154) (33,984)
Net realised and unrealised gain on wealth B EmNEEE
management products MABIBIN S FRE (774) (2,975)
Net realised and unrealised loss on BEEFFMESER
equity securities REIRF SR 21,089 21,597
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE -« BFEREE
equipment &8 27 7
Equity settled share-based payments RSB ARG &
B H 4,295 7,320
Net foreign exchange gains b 0 W 2 F 2R - (523)
Operating profit before working capital changes gLﬁ% """" AR R AC = 120,054 89,492
Decrease/(increase) in inventories A (3Ea0) 539,629 (317,135)
Increase in trade and other receivables %lfﬂ& RIE S A
JE W R I E AN (19,577) (117,050)
Increase in other non-current assets HAb3EmENEEE M (1,304) =
Decrease in equity securities BEFFRD 15,384 5,974
Decrease/(increase) in wealth management B ESRRD, (3EM)
products 162,390 (178,606)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables & 5 &I 308 M H A
FEARTE CRid) /1 (677,040) 726,779
Cash generated from operations LETEBMERE 139,536 209,454
Dividend income from equity securities received B E BEFEHRARSUA 396 1,094
Income taxes paid [SERIZiEEY (16,186) (16,121)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBMERESFE 123,746 194,427
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
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CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and equipment,

REFBFARERE

BEME  BERRE -

2017

2017 5

HK$°000
TR

HK$'000
TAT

intangible assets and other non-current assets EmEEAEREMIERBEE (25,831) (13,878)
Payments for construction of solar power plants Eﬁigﬁﬁ%%%ﬁiﬁﬁ’]mlﬁ - (127,293)
Proceeds due to termination of the acquisition £ IR BB IR B A FROR - 129,511
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ’imi R K

plant and equipment FABHATISFIA 890
Acquisition of subsidiaries G =YNG - 3,705
Payment for the acquisition of subsidiary BT FEWE

in prior year )EYNCIEN S RN 1,733 =
Net cash-outflow for disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARABEESREFE  35@a) (559) =
Interest received B UF B 917 1,336
Net cash used in investing activities WEEB AR FE (22,850) (6,619)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEEFSRERE
Net proceeds from exercise of share options TR RAAE R PTG IR FRE 1,335 =
Borrowings raised EEER 166,459 100,296
Repayment of borrowings BEgEMR (164,116) (142,362)
Release of restricted cash for borrowings BRI EFRFIREE 1 3,352
Interest paid EATHLE (8,513) (16,515)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Company {47 AL RS (24,552) (149,352)
Disposal partial shares of subsidiaries ST A R &I AR (D - 1
Net cash used in financing activities BMBEESMARESFHE (29,386) (204,580)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BeREESEEER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i (Rd) F8E 71,510 (16,772)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE) L 31,790 (5,685)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R1A1ENBEERES

1 JANUARY Z£EEH 171,003 193,460
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R12A31BNERERERS

31 DECEMBER Z@EEH 274,303 171,003
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND ReRBESESHEERAIN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S K8k 274,303 171,003
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A31 BIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 24 February 2012 and
registered as an exempted company with limited liability under
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries
hereinafter are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The address
of its registered office is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principal place of business is Unit 1903, 19/F, Jubilee Centre, 18
Fenwick Street, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 13 July 2012.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Sheen Tai Group
Holding Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI"), is the immediate and ultimate parent and Mr. Guo
Yumin, a director, is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

—RER

BRI EBR AR ([ARRE]) 201242
R24 BIRIBERSHEENE 22 B A FE(1961
FEIFED - LERE RER]) ER &S M
R B—REBREERDT o NAT RENE
NAFHEA [ REE] - RRTMEMBREEM
ik A& Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° 7%
NAFELEMBREBET D HA 185 R
19181903 E « AR AIRME 201247
R1I3REBBMERSMARAR ([BAM])
FIRET -

RRARAB—HREEKRAR - ANBRARNE
REBEINERE M RAM T 22 ©

ARAREERR @ IREEEEERAR AR (KR
BaBRES ((EBEARES]) EMaIH
DR REERRERAR  MEFBEREE
A SR B E R ARAESITT -
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ZEFAVBRREZREBESHAMAR(E
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BEEANBERBBUWHERE LR ([ FEM R
SEA D BRERER(EFBGER D)
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017. None of these impact on the
accounting policies of the Group. However, the Amendments
to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
require disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The effect of the amendments
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements has been
the inclusion of additional disclosures in note 35(b).

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2017. These new and revised
HKFRSs include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

BAMBHREENFEIR - 2RTH

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

ERUBREENE SR - REZFAINEA

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment:
Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions
BRI ELERE 2 5% (BER]) -

AR BER AT « UM RERINZSM D REE

HKFRS 16 Leases
BB BmELE 165 - HE

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
BHBERI GRS 23 5% -
Fr 1S B B2 B2 ) TN RETE 14

3. BRMFIIREBIERMBREE

A
(a)

(b)

PEF BT AT RASHE ST BB M A s
-]

BAGRTEN RS BM T BURH ] MEIEET
MEBM I REER - BRAER 2017
FIA1ARBRZENFERMENS -
BREITHAREN SRR L EERE
MEE - AM - BASHEAUNE7H
B RERER - WETEREANE
RELBMEHNABES  BRREN
EMEANESEF LIRS ES - ARAERT
HAREBGAMBRERNZECHAN T
35(b) HIRRIMRFEA

€ 28 i B i) R 4 R A9 HT R] B AR 4E
A EBMBREEA

AEEVEREEACEMEEERAR
20171 A 1 BFRAB BT BUF S A A 3T
FIRAMERT BB B RS 2R o IR EAR
SEBABNF R RS BB RS L
AIBIETSIEIA -

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RSB #AS 2%
B S HBRER

1 January 2018
2018F1 A1 H

1 January 2018
2018F1 A1 H

1 January 2018
2018F 1 A1 H

1 January 2019
201951 A1 H

1 January 2019
20191 A1 H
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIT REBITETBUBEHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) Al (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. While the assessment has been
substantially completed for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the
actual impacts upon the initial adoption of the standards
may differ as the assessment completed to date is based on
the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ending 30 June 2018. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standards are initially applied in that interim financial
report.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date and
will not restate comparative information.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the basis of the
facts and circumstances that exist at that date, the directors
of the Company have assessed the impact of HKFRS 9 to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as follows:

€ 28 i B i) R 4 R A9 HT R] B A4S
Rl B BMBREER (H)

ANER B TR R W46 FE AR BRI % SHE 5T AN
FERIMTEASE - BATALL - A%EE
AT FERIME T A E AR A IS
WMTREREATE - BRETERTER#E—
WEHIBER T XGRil - BEABEEBIMBR
EAERE O R BB IERELERIFE 15
S FHMEEARTER - HERNZEE
RAIREEMNERFENREMTR - KR
BESBERZ G TIRIEASEE B 1A
SHERMEL - MARAEBEEZE2018F
6 A 30 B 17N A Ay BRB 5 R 5 B R e
FZEEARI AT ee g BRI L MR E o 1t
G R B BRI RS B A S
ARG - ANEBIRA B E e HRIEE
(BIEBEEESGER) ©

ERMBH/EEAEIR -SRMITA

EATEHEEAF IFERRES ST
EAFEFEMTE : HRAZE - F
B SRS LERFEIRSIATEMEED
B E e ERREREE
BB ERER -

EEMBRELENEIORIREBPEER
201841 A1 Ak 2 &M E E BRI 4
R o AR ERTBIFA AR A A HRER T 2E
AlBE g EY &R

BREAEBMN2017F12A31HO SR
BERCRBENI T (BEITIHER
ZEGFENSERBEAMEL) - KAF]
EETEAAMBMEEAEIREAE
BEiRAE M BHmERAOFENT ¢



VB 12 A% S WA R A , . | : o
e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. HRMAFIREEITEBUMBREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) R (%)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) B FEMR1E s R 4 R RT R A4S
effective (continued) AIEABMKEREER (&)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued) ERPBHMEEAEIR - ST A (F)
(a)  Classification and measurement @ DM E
HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification BERMBHRELRFEIFEE=E
categories for financial assets: measured at (1) FTECREEMNDLRIZE (1) A8
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss HAAGTE  QUAREBEE
(FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other comprehensive BHZ tJr)\ HifE s (AT A8
income (FVTOCI) as follows: FVTPL) M E QYA AR BEF=ZAR
ﬁ%iﬁﬁ)\ﬁ‘rﬁzﬁé%m(%T%ﬁ
HFVTOCI) ©
- The classification for debt instruments is - EBIANSBEREBIEE
determined based on the entity’s business BemEEN®MERRRZ
model for managing the financial assets and the ﬁ?ﬁ’]é\?’ﬁﬁ%mug FELE
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset. THEE - MEBITAEDER
If a debt instrument is classified as FVTOCI then FVTOCI*»E CBIBREAE R
effective interest, impairments and gains/losses BERHEW EIEERIE
on disposal will be recognised in profit or loss. AR ©
- For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL - HRAFLEME  EDER
regardless of the entity’s business model. The FVTPL( TR E B M X B R
only exception is if the equity security is not K)o U’E*W'J SN 73 i B AN 55
held for trading and the entity irrevocably HUWIFFHIEEE - BIZER
elects to designate that security as FVTOCI. If TR El 038 12 1 52 5 A IR
an equity security is designated as FVTOCI then TERFVTOC! o i e 48 3 5 48
only dividend income on that security will be 7 AFVTOCI - H'JEEE B 5
recognised in profit or loss. Gains, losses and KRR B U A G R 1B A T
impairments on that security will be recognised in R & L%E’]H& CBER
other comprehensive income without recycling. BEREREMEEKEA
TR (Al EEm) o
Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group BB PG - NEBE T EE R
expects that its financial assets currently measured B HEK AT 2N S REEFRE
at amortised cost will continue with their respective MBEBV B REEREIREEE
classification and measurements upon the adoption of ERRELEEHNDEKEE -

HKFRS 9.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

(@)

(b)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged
from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair
value change of a financial liability designated at FVTPL
that is attributable to changes of that financial liability’s
own credit risk to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or loss). This
change in policy will have no impact on the Group’s
net liabilities and total comprehensive income but will
impact on reported performance amounts such as
profit and earnings per share.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit
losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result
in an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s
trade receivables and other financial assets. Based on a
preliminary assessment, if the Group were to adopt the
new impairment requirements at 31 December 2017,
accumulated impairment loss at that date would be
similar with that recognized under HKAS 39.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods and
rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction contracts,
which specifies the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIT REBITETBUBEHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) Al (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

HKFRS 15 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption. The Group intends to adopt the standard using
the modified retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives
will not be restated.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are expected to be
affected:

Timing of revenue recognition

Currently, revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised over time, whereas revenue from the sale of
manufactured goods is generally recognised when the risks
and rewards of ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract. HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being transferred
over time:

a) When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIT REBITETBUBEHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) Al (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

Q) When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

The Group has assessed that the new revenue standard is not
likely to have significant impact on how it recognises revenue
from the provision of services.

For contracts with customers in which the sale of sales
manufactured goods and properties developed is generally
expected to be the only performance obligation, adoption of
HKFRS 15 is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s
revenue or profit or loss. The Group expects the revenue
recognition to occur at a point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally when goods
are delivered at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted the goods.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIT REBITETBUBEHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) Al (48)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related
interpretations. The new standard introduces a single
accounting model for lessees. For lessees the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed and lessees
will recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
leases (with optional exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16 carries forward the
accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS 17 substantially
unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to classify leases
as operating or financing leases.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The Group intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption.

Based on a preliminary assessment, the standard will affect
primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating leases.
The Group’s office properties and leasehold land leases are
currently classified as operating leases and the lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under HKFRS 16 the Group may need to recognise and
measure a liability at the present value of the future minimum
lease payments and recognise a corresponding right-of-
use asset for these leases. The interest expense on the lease
liability and depreciation on the right-of-use asset will be
recognised in profit or loss. The Group’s assets and liabilities
will increase and the timing of expense recognition will also
be impacted as a result.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFIT REBITETBUBEHREE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) Al (&)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As disclosed in note 37, the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
properties and leasehold land amounted to HK$22,592,000
as at 31 December 2017. These leases are expected to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-
use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The amounts will be
adjusted for the effects of discounting and the transition
reliefs available to the Group.

HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation of HKAS 12 Income Taxes sets out how to
apply that standard when there is uncertainty about income
tax treatments. Entities are required to determine whether
uncertain tax treatments should be assessed separately or
as a group depending on which approach will better predict
the resolution of the uncertainties. Entities will have to assess
whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. If yes, the accounting treatment
will be consistent with the entity’s income tax filings. If not,
however, entities are required to account for the effects of the
uncertainty using either the most likely outcome or expected
value method depending on which method is expected to
better predict its resolution.

The Group is unable to estimate the impact of the
interpretation on the consolidated financial statements until a
more detailed assessment has been completed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the
accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any
remaining goodwill and any accumulated exchange reserve
relating to that subsidiary.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Consolidation (continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity shareholders of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the equity shareholders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. TEESTER (&)
(b) ¥BEHREFE

(b) Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at
the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and
the services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to
the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

AEBRBUIERNER S HTUREBHTE
RAEGIIR o XHE H TR A E IR
BEEWERBNAAREE - BEITEA
TH BEELREREFAKIAREBTE -
WRB R AN B B E 4+ R ER R
HIFER RS - RBEETIHERR
R EERBE - HRENKEE A )
MR EERE -

mEERESRBHAREREMBERR
AREAEERBENAABEFENERT
SRR - ARBRIGAIHREERAR
MAREFEBLAEERRESRER
Z8 0 DR EBRRAER S NEEREN
A BB

HROBETZEBAMH  EREHALZ
MEBAR S RWERZ AR EBE
BEXEE - MAELZBENGAEE
NEER - AABEEMAZEBA G
EERESBENTERE -

AP & B2 SEERE 25 1) IR IR
RRKBE B EMBRR ZAIBAIEE
MBBRARBEZLIEE -



98

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT ERRM T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A31 HILFE

IR == A

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Business combination and goodwill (continued)

(9)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest
level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on
a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the exchange reserve. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold land held for own Over the term of the lease
use under operating lease

Solar power plants 20 years

Buildings 20 years

Plant and machinery 5-20 years

Office equipment and others 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Yacht 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A31 HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(e)

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Leases

(i)

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over
the remaining term of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. At the commencement of the
lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of
the fair value of the leased asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at
the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same
as owned assets over the shorter of the lease term and
their estimated useful lives.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

(9)

(h)

0]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Software and cloud platform operating agreement are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Software
Cloud platform operating agreement

3 -5 years
10 years

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development and held for
sale

Properties for sale under development and held for sale are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
include acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and other
direct costs attributable to such properties. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

On completion, the properties are reclassified to properties
held for sale at the then carrying amount.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

4. FESFBEK(H)

(f)

(9)

(h)

()

BIEE (BERKRMD)

R BT &L EIHARRAR R
RBERERIR - #HmE N MhE Al fE
REHANAERELEE

it 3-54F
EF 5L E R 104
rE

&2 AR AN A] # IS FE M & P B
RBYIAR o XA AT BT - &
R RERRZEANBIERME - B
TRIZEELFFEZMBEEERTER
URkHEER(ER) - JZRFEL
LABEEKBREFAGEEERETRE
EMHE TR AT ANE TS 808 -

EEZRFEFENTE

R E ML E YR AR KA &
FERZBRIEEFIK - EZZJS@%H&E%?X
A FANEHBAER - EERK - BEXE
ZEERAREMFEN AR EERK
o ATETEERIAB B EBBIERH
FHEBERETRAEEMBEEMBOMbATK
RSB -

RELR - MENEERARABERERN
DRARBIEHENDE -

BRARKILEIASHTA
EAREXATASRIRI AT -

TREELEBBENGEMBARREKA

27
o °©



B B AR T
T FFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wraft

wh|3

TSR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

()

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial
assets within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
either financial assets classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition. These financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value of these financial
assets are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()

Financial assets (continued)
(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. These assets are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
(except for short-term receivables where interest is
immaterial) minus any reduction for impairment or
uncollectibility. Typically trade and other receivables,
bank and cash balances are classified in this category.

(k) Trade and other receivables

)

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(n)

(o)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is
any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
bonds into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consisting of a liability and an equity component. At the date
of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The difference between the proceeds of
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the loans into equity of the Group,
is included in equity as convertible bonds reserve. The liability
component is carried as a liability at amortised cost using the
effective interest method until extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion
related to the equity component is charged directly to equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Convertible bonds (continued)

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert
the loans into equity instruments, other than into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price, are
regarded as combined instruments consisting of a liability
and a derivative component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the derivative component is determined using an
option pricing model; this amount is carried as a derivative
liability that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the liability
component and is carried as a liability at amortised cost using
the effective interest method until extinguished on conversion
or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
derivative components of the convertible bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components on initial recognition. The portion related to the
derivative component is expensed immediately.

Derivative financial instruments

All derivatives are initially recognised and subsequently
measured at fair value.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not
designated or do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised in profit or loss as they arise.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of manufactured goods is
recognised on the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are accepted and the title has
passed to the customers.

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred
to the purchasers, which is when the construction
of the relevant properties has been completed and
the properties have been delivered to the purchasers.
Revenue from sales of properties excludes sales related
taxes and is after deduction of any discounts allowed.
Deposits and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
advances received within trade and other payables.

Sales of electricity

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period when
electricity is generated and supplied to the provincial
power grid. Revenue excludes value added tax (“VAT")
or other sales taxes.

Service fee income

Service fee income in relation to property management
service and other ancillary services are recognised when
the services are rendered.

4. EERFEBOR(H)
(s) WARER
WARE WS R EZ A A EETE -

I E

KBNS ATEERAREB RIIA L

BERISEAt ERHER -

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HEEm

EMARZERRER N REB
(—REERERUEMAEER
AFEFZERMER)  ERHEER
B anZ A e

HEME

EFfAERZAERRR N DHRER
EETR(NEAMEZEEE R
KEBRAMEEXNTFESH)
HRHEMEZBA - HEMEZ
WA BIEHE RN A B &Mk
ER AT - EERBBAER
A Bt H & MR MRV T 2 A0 20 BA
RANRAGZRMBAREANE S
AR EMENRIBE THE KR

=)
Koo

BEH#HE

WARZEERAERERRENS
FTHIRIRER - EAOWATBIEEE
Bt (MIBER]) KREMHER

BRAEE WA

B RAMEE LIRS R AR E R
ZIRTE B W AR IR AR TS B HERR,

107




108

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12 B31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Sales of software

Revenue is recognised after the completion of
installation, testing and inspection activities and
upon acceptance that the computer software sold is
operating as designed by both parties.

Operation revenue of cloud platforms

Operation revenue of cloud platforms is recognised as
services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

4, FEETBE (&)
(s) WA (&)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

BHHE
WAEZKEE - ARMBER

WEARPEXMHEEREMER
BRI B RAER

EFEZEEBWAREHIRSME

HEWA
He WA AE GEENEEH A RE

7
e

RS

- FLTERENREWAER
RS EURR I8 B A N STy T
=1

- LWEREOREKAERE
18 B R AR BRR SRR -

FEWA

B A T2 B T L () 22X (5
BB RORRER -



B B AR T
T FFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HZE2017F12 B31 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(t) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and vest
fully with employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") are members of central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments.
The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the
central pension schemes to fund the retirement
benefits. The local municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of the Group. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the central
pension schemes is to meet the required contributions
under the schemes.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits, and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(u) Share-based payments

(v)

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or, if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
The fair value is measured at the date the Group receives the
services and is recognised as an expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w) Government grants

(x)

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
deducted from the carrying amount of the assets. The grant is
recognised in profit or loss over the life of a depreciable asset
by way of a reduced depreciation expense.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x)

(y)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax expense. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC
enterprise income tax purposes.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(2)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using
pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is
being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to profit
or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment.

(aa) Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets (other than those at fair value
through profit or loss) are impaired, based on objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows
of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been affected.

For trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the delayed payments in
the portfolio, observable changes in economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables, etc.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. FEETHEXK (&)
(aa) SWEERE (&)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed (either directly or
by adjusting the allowance account for trade receivables)
through profit or loss. However, the reversal must not result
in a carrying amount that exceeds what the amortised cost of
the financial asset would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.

(ab) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ac) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt

with below).

(a)

(b)

Revenue recognition

The Group’s sales of goods are recognised when criteria
set out in note 4(s) are met. Managerial judgement is
applied regarding, among other aspects, conformance with
acceptance criteria and if transfer of risks and rewards to the
customer has taken place to determine if revenue should
be recognised in the current year and the customer credit
standing to assess whether payment is likely or not to justify
revenue recognition.

Revenue may materially change if management’s assessment
of such criteria was determined to be inaccurate.

Legal titles of certain land and buildings

As stated in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
the titles of certain buildings related to a production plant
acquired from a third party were not transferred to the
Group as at 31 December 2017. Despite the fact that the
Group has not obtained the relevant legal titles, the directors
determined to recognise those buildings as property, plant
and equipment, on the grounds that they expect the transfer
of legal titles in future should have no major difficulties and
the Group is in substance controlling those buildings.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31 December 2017 was approximately HK$476,596,000
(2016: HK$468,135,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During the
year, income tax of approximately HK$16,078,000 (2016:
HK$11,852,000) was credited (2016: charged) to profit or
loss based on the estimated profit.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(9]

(d)

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was approximately HK$2,830,000 (2016:
HK$52,475,000) after an impairment loss of approximately
HK$49,645,000 (2016: HK$Nil) was recognised during the
year. Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of other intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for other intangible assets at the end of the
reporting period. The other intangible assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an other intangible asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or CGU and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Management reassesses
the estimation at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of other intangible assets at
the end of the reporting period was HK$2,086,000
(2016: HK$185,145,000) after an impairment loss of
HK$162,807,000 (2016: HK$Nil) was recognised during the
year. Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

()

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad
and doubtful debts, in particular of a loss event, requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual result
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such
estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2017, accumulated impairment loss
for bad and doubtful debts amounted to approximately
HK$9,323,000 (2016: HK$7,040,000).

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on the
ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories. The
assessment of the allowance amount involves judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.
Allowance for slow-moving inventories amounted to
approximately HK$432,000 (2016: HK$315,000) was made
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expense. These estimates are based
on current market conditions and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in customer’s
demand and competitor’s actions in response to severe
industry cycles. The Group will reassess the estimates by the
end of each reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk
is mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on the
Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower,
loss (2016: profit) after tax for the year ended 31 December
2017 would decrease/increase (2016: increase/decrease) by
approximately HK$1,937,000 (2016: HK$5,584,000). This is
mainly due to the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.

SRR EE

AEBZEBARZTRERBEAR : SMNERR -
BERR  EERR - REBEZERFFEER
R AEEZEBERERASFHHSMTIS
ZEHATRRINE - WESREAREE 2 HERRNE
EZBEMNZERERK -

(a) sMEEBR

REEmEEMINERR - REAE A
NEBR Y BERABEEUAEEE
B2 EHE - A% E B AT ERLIN
25 BEKRBESIRTINEERBOR
AEETYEREINERR - WERBNTE
2R EHBEAINERS

(b) KEREE

AEE T ZEBHENBRAE SRR E H R
RERR - EEEEBETRRKEHRE
KNREASERAMAR - NEBMNK
(B 3= 22 5 P FE B S P AT SRAR AN RE 55

AT GURE AT THERN I S B R E ER ey
IERREE

BB £ FA T %10% (2016 4F :
10%) » BIEZ2017F 12 A31 BILEE
HIBR B8 518 (2016 4F « % F)) #m L,
#2016 4F : #EH0, S5 ) 491,937,000
7 70 (20164 © 5,584,000 7T ) ° It T3
FTEHNBIEESREN DA BEES N
@( °
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise credit risk, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. In addition, the directors review the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt regularly to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors consider that

the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has certain concentration
of credit risk as 27.0% (2016: 32.4%) of the total trade
debtors was due from the Group’s largest customer and
82.4% (2016: 69.7%) of the total trade debtors was due

from the Group’s five largest customers.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. Amounts
due from related companies are closely monitored by the

directors.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
acceptable credit-ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would

expose the Group to credit risk.

6.

ctREAREE ()
(o FER

AEBEEERRIEREEHRUGIAR
HAOEWSOR - BEERRRERE -
EZEUYCRFNEMEERMNE - B
ERBBBR — BRI RRE SRR
MR PHRZRZERNEERHME - Ut &
EEHENSERNESER ZAIRE S
VAT OR B4 A] 4K (B (& 75 e R 2 R (B S
BeRlmE EERRAKEZEER
BERIBREE o

R2017%12 8318 AEEEKRER
REFH FRIEN FE U IR SR AAEE R 27.0%
(2016 F :32.4%) r MALEBEEKER
REF R FRIENE BN AR SRR 82.4%
(20164F : 69.7%) * A EHAEE—
BEMNEERBES -

AREEHIERR  BREEHR/ER
RIFERRHZEF - EFHEERK
BB AR Z A -

R ZEHF I BEBEREEFRE
BEERAEREEFRZBITRER
BiE - SRRTEREERZEERRE
fR

AEBRARUEMAIESARBRAR
AAZEERBEER o

o
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. TRIEREE(H)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) "EBESRE

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and AEFZBRATHERB I RTERZR
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains FESH K - MBRAEEEF W
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in cREAENECSHERRBNEDES
the short and longer term. T o
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted cash BEAEEETESHBE A LARMIEA
flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities is as RERELIHOTOT -
follows:

il k1) R
Less than
1 year or on Between Between
demand 1and 2 2and 5 Over

DR years years 5 years Total
1FRRER 15225 25E5F S5FLE &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

AL FHL FEL  FER FHL

At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31H
Trade and other payables & 5 ERFIER

H A R 5RI8 202,508 - - - 202,508
Bank borrowings RITER 156,026 - - - 156,026

At 31 December 2016 M2016%F 12 A31H
Trade and other payables & 5 ERTZIE R

Hin e 308 185,026 = = = 185,026
Bank borrowings RITER 146,487 220 = = 146,707
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate bank borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at floating rate of interest so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk primarily relates to
its bank deposits, bank borrowings that are interest bearing.

The Group’s bank deposits bear interest at variable rates that
vary with the then prevailing market condition.

The Group’s bank borrowings approximately HK$71,934,000
(2016: HK$67,077,000) bear interest at fixed interest rate and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rates risks. Other
bank borrowings are arranged at variable rates, thus exposing
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss (2016: profit) after tax for the year would
have been approximately HK$1,207,000 (2016: HK$368,000)
higher/lower (2016: lower/higher), arising mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on bank borrowings.

Categories of financial instruments at 31
December 2017

ctREAREE ()
(e) FI=EBs

(f)

AEBERIRDIMA R @R B EE S KR
TERAM - XEBZBRAHEBER
FEFENEKFEAB A BEFRRLR

PRE&IE

A B E R A R E R B E A RIRTT
FRRIRITEREM -

AREORIT R ERRTTRE
HFBFEL S -

7N £ @ 78R 1T B 5K £971,934,0007%8 T
(2016 £ : 67,077,00078 7 ) 1% & 7F FI| &
R BtmE AR BEFERRER - Hi
IRITEFIRFDFERY: - At S A%E
AR SRFERR

M2017512 8318 F=+H T
BR100 AR M E Hth B ERFTTE
REF 2 FERTEEEQ2016% - &)
g N, E A (2016 4F < R A AN) 49
1,207,00078 7T (20164 : 368,000/87T)
FERRIBITERZFBSRAZE M, R

Ao

2017512 B31BWEMIESD

2016
20164

HK$000 HK$'000

Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — held for trading
Loans and receivables BER R ENFIA

(including cash and cash equivalents)
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

(BRRSIRSFERRE)

B SH AT EN SRR E

FTHET THET

AR EEFTEREESTAEH
BENEREE - BHIFER

26,559 224,648
549,067 407,066
355,406 346,684
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. TRIEMREE(E)
(g) Fair values (9) AAEHE

REEMBRARARIZ R EE S FE
EReHARZERHEREXBZARE
of financial position approximate their respective fair values. BEE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. DREEFE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The following disclosures of
fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out

of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

AABEEMS2EE ARG ERREESF
R PHEEERERKBEBREABEATNE
e TXREERAABEERTENAAE
8- BIEFTEAR BEMNMBEZE AERLL
DR={BER

F-ERBAE: AEEANFERESZA
REEXBEREREMS L
HRME CREAE) -

E_ERBAE ZE-ERAMEBRAOBREN
S BERBEEERIME
ABRCBAE-

F-EBABAER: BEXRENIAUBEEHA
=0

AEENBRAERBES LA EHE
EOEF = AR RBAREHER
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at

31 December 2017:

7.

DN AEEE (&)

() R2017F12B31BAREE

BOERIFEOT -

7 d

Fair value measurements using:

|

Total

AREEFEFNER &%
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
3 E-BER EZER E=ER 2017 %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TART TER TEx
Recurring fair value measurements: ZEHAAEEE :
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at fair value through NRAEBEFEEEZHEHA
profit or loss EHERNLREE
— Listed -BLtW 19,366 - - 19,366
- Unlisted (note 1) - REm(FEE) - 7,193 - 7,193
Total &t 19,366 7,193 - 26,559
Recurring fair value measurements:  ZEEMH QA EEE
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities at fair value through A A EfERHE AE A
profit or loss EHBRNSRARE - - 9% 9%

Description
I

Recurring fair value measurements:

" v 4 d 1

g.

Fair value measurements usin
AREEFELAER
Level 1 Level 2
F-ER EER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET

Level 3
EZER
HK$'000

A7

Total
At
2016
20164
HK$'000
THL

LBEUAREBENE

Financial assets: PRIBE
Financial assets at fair value through NAAEBEFEEEEHA

profit or loss EHERNEREE

— Listed -BLm 55,839 - - 55,839

- Unlisted (note 1) - R EM(FEE1) - 168,809 - 168,809
Total CE 55,839 168,809 - 224,648
Recurring fair value measurements: BERRRBENS:
Financial liabilities: PRIBME
Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ WANA EfEEHE A E A

profit or loss EHBERNERAE - = 202,176 202,176
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. DREEFE(E)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (a)
31 December 2017: (continued)

During the two years, there were no changes in the valuation
techniques used.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements:

Note 1: The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is based on the market comparison method. The
valuation refers to the expected return rates announced by
the banks.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities measured at fair (b)
value based on level 3:

R2017F12B3MBAAEEE
FERWENMT © (8)

WIS PR 0 A2 A L
23 -

REZE2017F 2201612 A31 B IE4
B REsRMTEERABENE B
& FoERRE=EREER -

F_BRAA(EEEERNBERIMMN
WAE:

FisE1 - AR EENEARBDIALSHE
RO SBAED A RERADBLE
ERERE o A ERINRT AR
IR -

BREF="BRRELOAEBETEN
BEHER

L

2017

2017 &

Convertible Convertible

Description bonds bonds

Hut R E S AT E S

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January #1A18 202,176 237,563

Convert to new shares BRI, (188,928) (1,403)

Total (gains) or losses recognised RIB R

in profit or loss (#) (Uezs) skEs 1B 4858 (#) (13,154) (33,984)

At 31 December ®12A31H 94 202,176
#) Include (gains) or losses for assets HEERREHREEEE

held at end of reporting period /) (Ueas ) skEs 8 (13,154) (33,984)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including
those for liabilities held at end of reporting period are
presented in other gains and losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

REBEERN RSB IRARE (BRERER
SHRFAFBENRERER) TREA
BRRANEMKEIERZ) -
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by
the Group and valuation techniques and
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31
December 2017:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements.
The financial controller reports directly to the Board of
Directors for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the financial
controller and the Board of Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally
engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform
the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

- Stock price volatility of the Company (estimated based
on the historical daily volatility of the Company’s share
price as at the valuation date, quoted from Bloomberg)

- Expected revenue growth rate (estimated based on
management’s business forecast and historical revenue)

- Expected revenue volatility (estimated based on
the average revenue volatility of nine comparable
companies from 2011 onward.)

7.

DN AEEE (&)

(9]

MN2017%128318 » X&EEE
AzEERFRARDAEER
EZHERMRBAERE

AEEUBREABEVBREMTEER
BEZAREBEMNE  BEREZERIA
EBEME W HEEERNERSERZ
ERAREEFE PHEEREESEF
ELREERFRAERDHEMRGHE -

RE=BRLABENE TEEBEFE
ERARERY CBXERIHRRZ
SNEPEEERETHE -

E=ERARBEFECAZEIZTAH
EPAELER:

- AREZERERE(REZBH®R
ZARBREERBRZBREZ TS
BESHREGE)

- BHWARRE(REBEEEEZE
TR BB AfAET)

- EMMAREGRBAMTE LS
ARIE 2011 £ 22 FHRARIE
fht) o
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7. AREEFE(E)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by () M2017F12H831H' &® &
the Group and valuation techniques and FRAZHERFRRARAAEE
inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 AEZEERMRBABERS :
December 2017: (continued) (%&)

Level 3 fair value measurements E=BHRAAEBETE

b

Effect on fair

value for
increase of Fair value
Valuation Unobservable inputs AREE
Description technique inputs BAEEME 2017 2016
it fEE R TURRHAE E MNEEZHE 2017 20166
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THT
Convertible bonds Black-Scholes model Stock price 67.5% Increase 94 202,176
AR ES with Monte Carlo volatility (2016: 55%) 1
Simulation method ~ FR{E)K1E 67.5%
Thr - R EE (2016% : 55%)
EEEARFEFR Expected revenue 0% (2016: 29%)  Increase
RIEE growth rate i
BHBAERE 0% (2016
29%)
Expected revenue 27.6% Increase
volatility (2016: 19%) by |
LN 27.6%

(2016 %F : 19%)

During the two years, there were no significant changes in RREFE  FTRAGERTSEERE
the valuation techniques used. g o
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WARZDMHE

(a) Revenue (@) WA
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and AEBNFEXES AT ERERE
sales of BOPP films, sales of sub-processing cigarette films, HEBAKRERNNFEE EHENTEHEES
properties development and related services, generation of f& - MEZRFABRE - HRBERE
photovoltaic power and cloud-related business in the PRC. E- 90
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold less returns, WA RIEEHEBEBES 130 - 1%
discounts, value added taxes and other sales taxes and BERMEMEER MRERS - FREE
rendering of services. The amount of each significant category BWAERINESEEINT

of revenue during the year is as follows:

2017 2016

2017 2016 F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Manufacturing and sales of ERERGE
BOPP films AV RL (RS 8
— Cigarette films - BIEER 206,175 16% 165,630 35%
— Non-cigarette-related films - EBRIEER
BEME 111,930 9% 106,162 22%
Sub-total NET 318,105 25% 271,792 57%
Sales of sub-processing SHEMT
cigarette films BIEHR 70,447 6% 138,776 29%
Properties development and MEEZERR
related services 1ER RS 812,348 65% 1,374 =
Generation of photovoltaic HIREE
power 45,477 4% 31,907 7%
Cloud-related business EEB 4,329 - 34,505 7%

Total A&t 1,250,706 100% 478,354 100%
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group has five operating segments as follows:

Manufacturing and sales of BOPP films: this segment
engages in manufacturing and sales of cigarette
packaging films and non-cigarette-related packing
films (e.g. films for packing straws, food, cassettes and
stationery tapes),

Sales of sub-processing cigarettes films: this segment
engages in trading of sub-processing cigarette films;

Properties development and related services:
this segment engages in development and sales
of residential properties and providing property
management services;

Generation of photovoltaic power: this segment
engages in generating and sales of electricity; and

Cloud-related business: this segment engaged in
provision of development of cloud computing related
software, outsourcing cloud platforms and providing
cloud computing solutions and related services.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that

offer different products and services. They are managed separately

because each business requires different technology and marketing

strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as

those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment profits or losses do not include net income from disposal

of subsidiaries, net realised and unrealised loss on equity securities,

dividend income from equity securities and unallocated head

office and corporate expenses. Segment assets do not include

equity securities and unallocated head office and corporate assets.

Segment liabilities do not include unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

(b) ZEPEHE

o  ENFAKEMNAER : o H
HERBIERZENIEEEEEN S
LER(MAERRRE  Rf -
HMEEERE X AR S A OE
&)

J HENIEEEE : kHHEEE
SINTRENEEEREE

J YRR LAERS - ko RERE
REET =M RIRHYEERR
7

o HIREE: WHHEHEN K

o EXW: moRMEHFEHREER
BEM  IEEFEREHREE
BRIRTT B R ARRARRTS o

REE 2 A $RE D BB R R AR E an & AR A
RIEEBEN - ANBIARB AT 2 B R &
HEREAR - WEREBEORER -

g

RED A S AT BUR BAR A B H R MY st 4 P
ME—B - DHMBRETBREENEARFK
CBEESNCEREABEFER BB
BEHNRBWARRD AN ARZH - 2
BEETBREEESIADRELNAEE
c DEBETEREADEENMARAR

=

fn”' >‘

W
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WAKRSDHHE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHE ()

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) HEE BERES
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, BEG 2RO EIER  EELBE
assets and liabilities is as follows: ZERIT
g oAl ] Ohi g Add ALk addh\ [l Actibls ) bl M)

Manufacturing and  Sales of sub-processing Properties development  Generation of
sales of BOPP films cigarette films and related services  photovoltaic power  Cloud-related businss Total
EERRBEONANE HENTAERE  URSEREERE iag EXH &t
0 006 W7 006 W17 06 W7 006 W17 006 W17 006

WM7E W6E  WME N6E WNE  06F W0E 065 N0F  06F  00E 0168
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T TEn TR TEn TEr TEn A TEn TEr  TEn  fEr TEn

Reenuefomentemdl ~ TRESHD

customers XEha 318105 27179 - 10447 18776 812348 1370 45411 31907 1 439 34505 1250706 4783%
Reportable segment PLEVEDON

revenue 38105 271792 70441 138776 812348 1374~ 4541 31907 439 34505 1250706 47835
Reportablesegment ~ TEEAGER/

gross profit/(loss) (Z8) 68568 77151 22,038 55333 1 59,084 74 1878 19800 (2331) 2057 - 156135 17355
Reportablesegment ~ TEEAHHA

(loss)/profit before tax (58)/#A A0 2460 66036 28562 5079 (255 13426 17649 (244046) 54929 (146,118) 101,048
Ineret income from gLt

bank deposits 81 1m m 39 5 197 18 15 [t} - 58 183
Inerest expense Hemst 5261 35 2404 25 (R AR - - - T
Deprecaton and fEnas

amortisation 15255 14658 1185 1346 503 S50 1304 10216 - 24846 1233 54833 3908

Otermateriaiemsof — HARSHA
income and expense: EEYVEEE

TH
)

Impairment of goodwil HE - - - - - - - - W68 - 1965 =

mpaiment of poperty, % - AER

plant and equipment EAE - - - - - - - -5 -5 s
Impaimentof ntangble ~~ EWEERE

asels - - - - - - - - 162807 - 162807 =
Reportablesegment  THEAFEE

assets 404260 359918 95369 147,991 204003 845336 - 341488 309345 - 61349 33341 119471 1985931
Additions to non-urrent £ S

segment assets AHEENEE

during the year M 23 ues 2007 k7l 263 - - B0 191 370,050

Reportable segment PLEGEER
liahlities mn 187 84591 142606 - 91591 733784 M4TM 28499 1 3288 237619 | 313162 126185
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8 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8.
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii)

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

WA R 7 &R & (&)

(b) 7 EE|E ()

(i) THEIHEANNEE  BEERE

BRI

’

2017

2017 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FBT
(Loss)/profit (B8) BH
Reportable segment (loss)/profit AJERAER S EBAE AL
before tax (E518) % F (146,118) 101,048
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries KB A mdEs 363 =
Net realised and unrealised loss on BEEZFNEER K
equity securities REIRFEE (21,089) (21,597)
Dividend income from equity securities B & &A% S WA 396 1,094
Unallocated head office and RAOPCLRE AN E] X
corporate expenses (15,716) (32,561)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax ~ #R& T AT (E518) % (182,164) 47,984
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AR EEE 1,196,471 1,985,931
Equity securities BEBEES 19,366 55,839
Unallocated head office and ROTRABEBF A B EE
corporate assets 56,945 93,055
Consolidated total assets RABERE 1,272,782 2,134,825
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities ARy EAE 373,162 1,261,285
Unallocated head office and Ko BLBELA
corporate liabilities NRIEE 1,848 39,607
Consolidated total liabilities REaERE 375,010 1,300,892
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 8. WAKRSDHHE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHE ()
(ili) Geographic information (i) HEER
No geographic information is shown as the revenue AXREENRAREEZFREE
and profit from operations of the Group are derived EREMNER  WEERWEHE
from its activities in the PRC. BE o
(iv) Revenue from major customers (iv) REETEEFHKBA

2016
20164

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Segment of manufacturing and sales 2§53 1 £ )

of BOPP films and sales of hERREENT
sub-processing cigarette films BIEEE D &b
Customer A =P 150,030 122,017
Customer B ®FEZ, 119,122 140,324
269,152 262,341
9. OTHER INCOME 9. EHAbgA
A GG b A0 b )
2017 2016
2017 F 2016 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Government grants (Note) BT e (BEE) 605 141
Compensation e 234 =
Sales of scrap materials HERER 12,230 6,100
Dividend income from equity securities BEBEREHFHREWA 396 1,094
Interest income F 2 WA 917 1,336
Rental income s ON - 233
Sundry income A 2,103 1,118
16,485 10,022
Note: Government grants mainly related to the subsidy received from the Mt BB EEE BRAEBER A i )5 BT

local government authority for the achievements of the Group. REWEL 2 f4B) ©
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10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. Httz= R EE
‘ 2017
2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE « BE LR EEE (27) (7)
Write off of property, plant and equipment M - BB R (1,581) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A R RE 363 -
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) & 5 et (B518) /5458 961 (10,158)
Net realised and unrealised gain on wealth BMERHNEZERR
management products REIF W FEE 774 2,975
Net realised and unrealised loss on equity securities B & 755 T 210 M ARSI FEE (21,089) (21,597)
Gain on revaluation of convertible bonds AR E S E AR 13,154 33,984
Gain on bargain purchase AEWE R = 365
(7.445) 5,562
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. REKA
: 2017
2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Interest on bank borrowings SRITERF B 6,353 3,826
Interest on convertible bond (note 31(a)) AR ESALE (F3E31() - 1,312
Other interest expense H A FI B 2,160 5,297
Total borrowing costs EER AL 8,513 10,435
Amount capitalised B &H - (1,874)
8,513 8,561
The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed BEEENIMETHEERNMEE—MRAEZT %

generally is at a rate of Nil% (2016: 5.6% — 8.515%) per annum. (20164 : 5.6% —8.515%) °
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12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

12. FIBH(ER) X
B B R -

2016

20164
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax REABIE - BB FEH
Provision for the year REZEME = 707
Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax BNEAREIE — R Bl EE TSR
Provision for the year IF S B 21,178 15,238
(Over)/under-provision in prior years RIBEFE (BEEEE)
BETR (5,288) 368
15,890 15,606
LAT + IR ERT 12,292 =
Deferred tax (note 32) IEIERETE (FIRE32) (44,260) (4,461)
(16,078) 11,852
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands () BREASHEREBHERRAEEARAIA

(ii)

and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
these jurisdictions.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended (i)
31 December 2017 is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of

the estimated assessable profits for the year. The payments of

dividends by the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are

not subject to withholding tax.

MY NREEEANZS AIAERAME
PSR

HE2017F12A31BIEEENEER
BREFRIEAFENGHFHETREFIA
16.5% (2016 4F : 16.5%) T K5+ & -
M B A BN E BRI AR R HAR
BRBRMTEIOR -
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12.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“New Tax Law") which became effective on
1 January 2008 and the PRC’s statutory Corporate Income Tax
rate is 25%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to advanced
technology enterprises established in the PRC, Jiangsu Sheen
Colour Science Technology Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Ener
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd. are subject to PRC corporate
income tax at a preferential tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Entities engaged in qualified power generating projects,
are eligible for a corporate income tax exemption for the
first year to the third year, and a 50% reduction for the
fourth year to the sixth year starting from the year in which
the entities first generate operating income (the “3+3 tax
holiday”). Xuzhou Sheentai New Energy Power Generation
Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group)
obtained the “Notification of Corporate Income Tax (“CIT")
3+3 tax holiday” in 2016 and was entitled to the 3+3 tax
holiday retrospectively from 2015 to 2020.

Entities engaged in software related business are eligible for
a corporate income tax exemption for the first year to second
year, and a 50% reduction for the third year to the fifth year
starting from the year in which the entities first generate
operating income (the “2+3 tax holiday). Xuyi Guangcai
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group) obtained the “Notification of CIT
2+3 tax holiday” in 2017 and was entitled to 2+3 tax holiday
retrospectively from 2016 to 2020.

According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends receivable by non-PRC-resident corporate investors
from PRC-resident enterprises are subject to withholding
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or arrangements,
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. Under the tax
arrangement between the Mainland of China and Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and the relevant regulations,
a qualified Hong Kong tax resident which is the “beneficial
owner” and holds a 25% equity interest or more of a PRC
enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding tax rate of 5%.
The withholding tax rate applicable to the Group is 5%.

12. BB (EBR) ZH (&)

(iii)

(iv)

M2007%F3A16H F+EZHEAR
REASERARZRSZBAT(PEA
RAFMBMERERZE) ([FRE]) - B
20084F 1 A1 BAEM - PEEEEME
TR 5 25% ©

AR 538 FB PATE AR BARK S /9 S B i b 2 9
EEER  IHFWBEREARARMNS
EREBRBRERARAREZ2017F
12 A31 BIEFEREBTE 15% Fan+
B EATEH -

HRERERERELABENGETTAES
REERERANFERTE—SE=F
EEERESHEEHRE  WHREMNEEN
FEIRE50% M EATEH ([3+43F
BERH]) - BMIERFEEBRLEERA
RI(AEENME2ENBAR)R2016
FEREIEEMSH(EMBR]D
33 B ERHMBR] - B2015F %
200 F EHIA T B ER33HBER
,HH °

NERHERESOCERTAEEREL
KEWANFERITFEF—EF_FEEE
BESHBEHRE  YRE=Z2FAFEA
R 50% M EMEH (243 BER
H]) - FIEV EERER AT (K%
EmEE2ENB AT R 2017 FERE
[EMSR2+3 BB ERAMEA] - 5
2016 FE 2020 FE B A B = H 2+3
MBEERE -

RIFFBUE R L BEAR - BR3E2008 F
1R 1 B ERER 64 ) A5 5 16k 1 3l 2 B
BRC BRABERBEERBREEERK
FEIEREFRNOBREZAR10% MEN
B o RIBH B A EE B RITTHIR 2 H
RSB RARRER - H RTEIDER
BB A WHFE 25% A _EBRAER
BERBENBERAIZERBIANRE
5% ° SERARANEENFEIRER5% °
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H=E2

12.

01712 A31 BILFE

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 12. FRfE%E (&%) X (&)

(v)  According to the New Tax Law and its implementation rules, (v)  REBEFBUEREEHEMR - SERRE
where the research and development expenses incurred by EHTERBEANRER  KREKE
an enterprise in its research and development activities do HEEAAZSHERN  CEERATEE
not form intangible assets and are included in the current MEHER - RAFEERELERE
period’s profit or loss, 50% of such research and development #150% * {EARFEEATIFTEEP IR

expenses shall be deducted from the taxable income amount

RETLEER  HRETLEERAH

of the year; where intangible assets are formed, pretax 150% TERL ALY o
amortisation shall be made based on 150% of the costs of

the intangible assets.

The reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and product Frisdi GK%) /X HEBRFAT(EE) #F5k
of (loss)/profit before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as DU R Z 52 BRI -
follows:

(Loss)/profit before tax

2016
2016

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

AT (B18) /% F (182,164) 47,984

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before tax,

IR R A R SR

calculated at the rates applicable in RN R E VA

the jurisdictions concerned (B1R) /MFmaEiiE (22,082) 12,712
Tax effect of the preferential tax rates BEHENTIATE (4,727) (8,944)
Additional deductible allowance for RGN 2 B 3 A

research and development expenses (939) (1,184)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR BRI & 9,871 6,459
PRC withholding tax AR TR0 2,593 3,244
Tax effect of non-taxable income FEFETIU AT R 2 (9,319) (5,915)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERN B IEEENTIETE 3,996 5,112
(Over)/under-provision in prior years RBAFE GRERE) BHETR (5,288) 368
LAT T IRER 12,292 -
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary RIERE S = AR B I s 2

differences (2,072) -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not BB RERNTIBEIBN

previously recognised MIAE (403) =
Income tax (credit)/expense TEH (%) /S (16,078) 11,852
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13. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

137

13. FR(EE) E5R

gk GIA) THIEHEER  AEEFAE
18), wFmT

2017

2017

HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAET

Amortisation of intangible assets (included in B EERE(BER
cost of sales) SHERAR) 20,774 10,121
Depreciation e 41,124 33,681
Amortisation of leasehold land FAE s 493 498

Operating lease charges: LEREMRS

— Land and buildings - T R Y 4,648 9,940
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEME S 1,400 2,180
Cost of inventories sold FrEFERA 975,651 278,083
Allowance for trade and other receivables B 5 FEWGRIE I E A FE R IBR B 1,943 1,483
Write off of property, plant and equipment M - BB e 1,581 =

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation,
amortisation and operating lease charges of approximately
HK$56,627,000 (2016: HK$49,913,000) which are included in the
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 14 for each of these
type of expenses.

CEFTEXNABEEIRA ITE - BER
ZLEMEEZ M 456,627,000 7T (2016 4 :
49,913,000 7T) * BEAFA_EXEBETEHIEE
145 RS ERZ 28R -
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14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEBRIBX
PAONES)
2016 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHBT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - e KoERL 58,333 53,537
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE 2 45 & LARR A9
expenses RERZNRX 4,295 7,320
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRABFIFT B0 R 10,068 4,341
72,696 65,198
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EUEESMEAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the AEEXRFERUSEMEATEEAM0
year included 4 (2016: 4) directors whose emoluments (2016 F : 4 ) EF  EMESEREE
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 15(a). The B3R R M 7E 15() FTAI DT R R BR - H
emoluments of the remaining 1 (2016: 1) individual are set #1167 (2016 4  1467) AL ZBE &I
out below: ™

2016

2016 4F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ e MR 1,229 684
Equity-settled share-based payments LA 2 45 B LA R A7 AR LR

expenses K SZ RS 170 =
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFETBIRHEK 1 =
1,410 684

The emoluments fell within the following bands: e TeEHER

0 (d 1

: Number of indivfdual

AH

2017 2016
2017 & 20164

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T = 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T E 1,500,000 % 7T 1 =
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15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 15. EEEARER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The remuneration of every director is set out below: KZEBEEMEEIWOT -
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s MEBATEEES (FHRALATRE
services as a director, whether of the Company or its BB A B HAE) BB XS SR EWE &

subsidiary undertaking
" ‘
Employer’s
(Note i) contribution
Estimated toa
money value  retirement
of other benefit

benefits scheme
Discretionary GED) Exm
Fees Salaries bonus  HERIN RINER Total
e e L FESE  EMMR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx T T TR

Executive directors HTES

Guo Yumin BER 550 - 1,650 58 18 2,276
Xia Yu BE - 500 450 58 - 1,008
Zeng Xiangyang L[R5 - 677 750 185 18 1,630
Guo Cheng EiF] = 500 450 116 - 1,066
Bau Siu Fung (Note (ii)) BN (PR Gi) - Al - 13 2 86
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE

directors

Lo Wa Kei, Roy EER 225 - - 51 - 276
Fong Wo, Felix HA 225 - - 51 - 276
Fan Qing Pl 225 - - 51 - 276

Total for 2017 2017 £45 1,225 1,748 3,300 583 38 6,894
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15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking

15. EEEAN RS ()

(a)

EEMe (&)

REBATERES (FTMALEARARE
i AR HAE) e XN REREME

yEmponer’s

(Note i) contribution
Estimated (F]
money value  retirement
of other benefit
benefits
Discretionary Cigd)
Fees Salaries bonus . J ; Total
e e MiETEa HEeR =H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT TET TET
Executive directors HiTES
Guo Yumin FER 550 - - 107 18 675
Xia Yu EE - 500 250 107 - 857
Zeng Xiangyang Bl - 682 250 284 - 1,216
Guo Cheng ] - 500 250 196 = 946
Bau Siu Fung (Note (i) &N (PR (i) = 1,200 300 284 18 1,802
Independent non-executive ~ BYFHTEE
directors
Lo Wa Kei, Roy EEE 200 - - 71 - 271
Fong Wo, Felix kil 200 - - Ul - 271
Fan Qing Bl 200 - - 71 - 271
Total for 2016 2016F 45 1,150 2,882 1,050 1,191 36 6,309
Notes: (i) Estimated money values of other benefits represented BIEE : () HEEFTEE & 5B AE -
share options.
(ii) Resigned on 20 January 2017. (ii) 2017 F 1 20 HEHE »
Directors’ material interests in transactions, (b) EBERXRG RHHEHNZEKX

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements and contracts amongst group companies, no
other significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company and other director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

s

BiRa B mR M 38 MBEE AR SR
ARBIREELIIN - RERKFRERERE
W EFETMEMARRRIZMARRE
ENEEEATHEEAREEEEAER
BEAREEEBEMIBEARS  TH R
BH -
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16. DIVIDENDS

2017 Interim of HK$0.01

(2016: 2016 Interim of HK$0.05)
per ordinary share paid

16. RE

]

2017
2017 5

HK$"000
TR

HK$'000
TAT

RS 2017 EFREARR B
T ®AL0.01E T
(20164 : 2016 FEHHAMR B

0.05%7T) 24,552 109,198
2016 Final of HK$Nil RIS 2016 FREARL S
(2016: 2015 Final of HK$0.02) T RIRTET
per ordinary share (2016 %F : 2015 KHA
A% 2.0.02%7T) - 40,154
24,552 149,352

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Board of

BEREHIRRE AR AIZEFETERRVEE
2017 F 12 A31 BIEFEZ RHRE -

Directors of the Company does not recommend payments of any
final dividends for the year ended 31 December 2017.

17. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is
based on the following:

(Loss)/earnings

(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of

17. R (BE) &F
BRERNREE(ER), B IRE AT
=i

: 2017 ‘
2017 &
HK$'000
FET
(B58) &7
BT ESRER

calculating basic (loss)/earnings per share (E518) /BFH (518) /B (165,219) 36,132
After tax effect of change in fair value of AHAIRES B A BEE SR

convertible bonds (note 31(b)) g2 (MsE31(b) (13,154) (33,984)
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of REstEgiREs

calculating diluted (loss)/earnings per share (B18) /&BFH (Ba) /B (178,373) 2,148
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ FA{EstEFHREA

the purpose of calculating basic (loss)/earnings (F518) / BRIEEmR

per share DntE 2,406,203 2,087,718
Effect of deemed conversion of convertible bond  #48 A8 AT AR (E 5 A F2 £ 28,037 11,789
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ FA{Est E &8 (E518) /A F

the purpose of calculating diluted (loss)/earnings K& @A ANAE 158K

per share 2,434,240 2,099,507

The Company’s share options as at 31 December 2017 do not give

rise to any dilutive effect to the loss per share.

R2017F12 8318 ARE| 2 BRETSEH
EREEELE T MEETE -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

d

(0]i{1¢]

)
b

18. 1% - BERRE

(0

d " gy

Solar power Plantand equipment Motor Construction
plants  Buildings machinery and others vehicles Yacht in progress Total
BAERE
AGRERE BEY HEREHE KAt RE EE ERIE E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TEL THT THL TR
Cost RA
At 1 January 2016 ®2016F 1810 152,506 79,085 180,735 1,722 8,456 35,573 275 464,352
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEFB A - - 43,929 1,180 - = = 45,109
Additions e 37,227 138 2,496 1,143 427 123 90,343 131,897
Disposals RE - - 3) (114) = = = (17)
Transfer from construction ~ BEEETR
in progress 90,066 278 269 - - - (90,613) -
Exchange differences EHEE (14975) (5005 (13472) (453) (473) = 5 (34383)
At 31 December 2016and #2016 12 8318 R
1 January 2017 0171410 264,824 74,496 213,954 9,478 8410 35,696 - 606,858
Additions e 16 393 2933 863 185 20 21,324 25,734
Disposals RE = = (1,936) = = = = (1,936)
Wite off ik (1436) (137) (178) (386) - - - (2,137)
Transfer from construction ~ HEERETR
in progress - 19,927 1,073 77 - - (21,077) -
Exchange differences ERES 19,123 6,138 15,549 582 524 = 9 41,925
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 4318 282,527 100,817 231,395 10,614 9,119 35,716 256 670,444
Accumulated depreciation RiHTERH8
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 ®2016F 1810 - (24,396) (71,567) (5,731) (5,901) 2.37m) - (109,966)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHB AR - - (2,197) (683) - = = (2,880)
Charge for the year RERE (10,185) (4,066)  (10,367) (891) (1,032) (7,140) = (33,681)
Disposals RE - - 3 107 - - = 110
Exchange differences EHES 425 1,694 4,862 368 345 - - 7,694
At31December 2016and  F2016% 12 31 AR
1 January 2017 2017F1A810 (9,760) (26,768) (79,266) (6,830) (6,588) (9,511) - (138,723)
Charge for the year REHE (13,021) 3936  (15270) (1,139) (594) (7,164) = (41,124)
Disposals RE - - 1,019 - - - = 1,019
Wite off s - 4 161 354 - - - 556
Impairment losses HEBE = = (5,099) = = = = (5,099)
Exchange differences EXES (1,205) (2,060) (6,343) (462) (407) - - (10477)
At 31 December 2017 ®2017E12 318 (23,986) (32,723 (104,798) (8,077) (7,589) (16,675) - (193,848)
Carrying amount kAR
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 A31H 258,541 68,094 126,597 2,537 1,530 19,041 256 476,59
At 31 December 2016 R2016512A31A 255,064 47,728 134,688 2,648 1,822 26,185 - 468,135
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18.

19.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2017 the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings
amounted to HK$123,049,000 (2016: HK$125,979,000).

At 31 December 2017, the Group were in the process of obtaining
the relevant building ownership certificates of certain buildings with
carrying amount of HK$20,690,000 (2016: HK$Nil).

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR OWN
USE UNDER OPERATING LEASE

The Group’s interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease represent prepaid operating lease payments and
their net book value are analysed as follows:

18.

19.

Y% - BERRE (&)

MN2017%F12 8318 CEFEARERR
TERERZYE BELREZEEESSE
/123,049,000 7T (2016 4 : 125,979,00075
JL) °

R2017F12A31H - AEBEEEREESEE
/20,690,000 7T (20164 : THT) WA T
BFNEBEFTMERER -

RELEHERFERNAE L
Ky fE s

AEBREQEEERESANEE L EN
RETENGEAERERLREFES

2017

143

2017 &

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

At 1 January ®m1A1AH 19,460 21,287
Amortisation 5 (493) (498)
Exchange differences M 5, Z= 58 1,390 (1,329)
At 31 December M®12A31H 20,357 19,460
Current portion BIHAER (512) (478)
Non-current portion FERNEAEB 19,845 18,982

At 31 December 2017 the carrying amount of interests in leasehold
land held for own use under operating lease pledged as security for
the Group's bank borrowings amounted to HK$20,357,000 (2016:
HK$19,460,000).

R2017F 128318 BHRIEAAEEETT
BERERNBRELLEHERSFAANHEEL
4 25 Y BR T B /% 20,357,000 7 7T (2016 4F ¢
19,460,000/ 7T) °
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20. GOODWILL 20. &
2016
2016 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Cost A
At 1 January B1ATHE 52,475 -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W RERT B A RIFTEAE - 52,475
At 31 December M12A31H 52,475 52,475
Accumulated impairment losses 2t REER
At 1 January ®1A1H - -
Impairment loss recognised in the current year RAFERERAREEE (49,645) =
At 31 December ®12A31H (49,645) -
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December ®12A31H 2,830 52,475
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at REBEHRFWECHEDRNKERSEETE
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that HAXEREBEHCBeEESN - HEZ
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been BREESEAT :

allocated as follows:

2016

2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Cloud-related business: T
Treasure Cloud Group (note (a)) Treasure Cloud Group (Fff#E (a)) - 49,645
Yancheng Renhe Network IR AFABR B ERAT
Sci. & Tech. Limited (“YCRH") (note (b)) (TEEm AR ) (5L (D)) 2,830 2,830
2,830 52,475
(a) Treasure Cloud Group (a) Treasure Cloud Group
For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing in respect of ¥ 1A U B Treasure Cloud Group f 7 2
acquisition of Treasure Cloud Group, goodwill arising from BEAR  BrESHEEANRMESR
the business combinations was allocated to the CGU of Treasure Cloud Group 8931 & B A By -
Treasure Cloud Group, which is the Treasure Cloud Group’s Bl Treasure Cloud Group RIZE 275 ©

cloud-related business.
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20. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Treasure Cloud Group (continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value in use calculation, which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a nine-year period (2016: ten-year period). Cash
flows beyond the nine-year period (2016: ten-year period) are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth
rate of 3% (2016: 3%) for the CGU which is consistent with
the forecast included in industry reports. The growth rates
used do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for
the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows
are discounted using a discount rate of 25% (2016: 20%).
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant segments.

Due to a slow-down in the sector with fewer cloud-related
business projects, the Group has revised its cash flow
forecasts for this CGU. The recoverable amount of the CGU
has been reduced to HK$32,790,000 and an impairment
loss of HK$49,645,000 recognised on goodwill and
HK$162,807,000 on intangible assets and HK$5,099,000 on
property, plant and equipment.

YCRH

For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing in respect
of acquisition of YCRH, goodwill arising from the business
combinations was allocated to the CGU of YCRH, which is
the YCRH’s cloud-related business.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value in use calculation, which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted average
growth rate of 2% for the CGU which is consistent with
the forecast included in industry reports. The growth rates
used do not exceed the long-term average growth rates for
the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows
are discounted using a discount rate of 16%. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant segments.

20. BE(E)

(a)

(b)

Treasure Cloud Group (#&)

WEeELENAA KBS EIZRBERER
AERAET - FREBEFEFERA
MR & mETE 8 = A E 2 BTt &/ KR
EZENFHRE (2016 F « +FHIR) TS
BEAEM - ZRESELBNRNEH
(2016 %F : +HFHM) EHNRESRER
Fi3% (2016 5 : 3%) M {5 bt F 1518
REHEE - G REFEITEREAERE
Bl—B - I RRIEBBREELEN
s S EBHFRAGRE - BERE
1 25% (2016 4F : 20% ) HYBLER SRETTRL
B o AR R M ARMKRTIE - AR
ERADBAOEERR

HRITEREEEBEERY  ~&E
BB AESEEBMNMBSREAR -
ReEESEN 2T BEEBERE
32,790,000 7L - BRIt E - &K
BERYFE  BEREKED HIERRES
849,645,000 7T + 162,807,000 7T &
5,099,000 # 7T, °

B3 A A

HNYBEEAMBEERERNR - A
EAGELNHEDBENAMNRSE
BN BNEE A M EHTS

ReELBUNAKESERRERER
FHETDERERE - EREEEERAR
RengRARNEREMtENRER
FHRNMGRERER - ZRSELE
R AF BB R AR SRERA 2% Nl
i IIg R ERME - B REEITE
WEAPERR — 2 - RERFRAES
ReELEUMRERBNTFHRME
RE R MEIL16% HEHIR X EITAL
B o AR R HAINGRHIER - AR
BRAD BB E R
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BLEE
o
Cloud
platform
operating
Software agreement Total
E¥E
B4 EEMR &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT FHT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2016 M2016F1 A1 H 1,231 = 1,231
Additions wE 9,780 - 9,780
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1y =N 1,230 183,707 184,937
Exchange differences N ZR (485) = (485)

At 31 December 2016 and M2016F 12 A31B X

1 January 2017 20171 A1H 11,756 183,707 195,463
Additions e 97 - 97
Exchange differences X ERE 848 - 848
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 12,701 183,707 196,408
Accumulated amortisation and Rt B RREEE

impairment losses
At 1 January 2016 R 201641 A 18 (149) - (149)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W R BT B A A (96) = (96)
Amortisation for the year NEEEE (936) (9,185) (10,121)
Exchange differences X EE 48 - 48

At 31 December 2016 and M2016F 12 A31B K

1 January 2017 2017451 A1 H (1,133) (9,185) (10,318)
Amortisation for the year NEEEE (2,403) (18,371) (20,774)
Impairment loss BEEE (6,656) (156,151) (162,807)
Exchange differences MR ER (423) = (423)
At 31 December 2017 2017812 A31H (10,615) (183,707) (194,322)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H 2,086 = 2,086
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 10,623 174,522 185,145
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21.

22,

01712 A31 HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The average remaining amortisation period of the software and
cloud platform operating agreement are 3.6 years (2016: 4.5 years)
and 8.5 years (2016: 9.5 years) respectively.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
cloud platform operating agreement in 2017, having regard to the
market conditions of the Group’s products and services. These assets
are used in the Group’s cloud-related business segment. The review
led to the recognition of an impairment loss of HK$156,151,000
for cloud platform operating agreement and HK$6,656,000 for
software that has been recognised in profit or loss. Details on the
determination of the recoverable amount has been disclosed in note
20(a).

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as
follows:

Place of

DETGEN
place of
incorporation/
establishment
e/

R ASRLE

operation
and
business
EXR

£ 3L

Name of company

AR%H

Ling Xian Fei Yu Import and FARFELOCRI) 10 September 2007/ The PRC
Export (Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd. ("XFY") ~ ARAF ([LXFY)) The PRC |
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (EEORME2) 2000898108/

i

Jiangsu Sheen Colour Science T RENRERAR 6 March 2002/ The PRC
Technology Co, Ltd. (*)55C") (T1ssc ) The PRC i
(Note 1) and (Note 4) (MEORMGY)  w0%3868/

i

Qingdao Ener Packaging Technology ~ EEEEAERK 27 June 2007/ The PRC
Co,, Ltd. ("QD Ener") BRAA(TQD Ener]) The PRC e
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (W) R(KE2)  2007F6R2718/

i

21.

22.

/\\\ﬁ/ﬁE (IQI‘E.)
FHARET LB HHANFORGREERD

R53.65(20164F : 454 ) %85 (20164 -
95%) o

iﬁ+&$‘£@§&&ﬁ&i‘%mﬁﬁ- AEER
017 FEEAEET A2 EHENI RS S5 -
HZ$§FFHBA$EIE’J*%}’%“*B btk 28 B

BYREF L E WL B ERREE
8156,151,0007% 7T } 6,656,000/ 7T+ I 2
RBEANER - BT KB SENFBRME
20(a) #EE °

REB A RINRE
R2017F12 A31 BB AR BWT ¢

Issued Group's
and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
BEI A5EN
HREAR EREE ArRAERE ANBARKE IERK
HK$23,180,000 100% = 100% Investment
23,180,00037 holding and
trading of
cigarette films
REERA
599,000,000 100% = 100% Printing of
9,000,000 dgarette films
BEREDR)
U5$12,000,000 100% = 100%  Manufacturing
12,000,000% 7 of cigarette
and BOPP films
BERENE
EGliih

HEE
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22. AMTEBATIMIRE (1)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as A2017F 12 A3 BB ARIFEBWT « (8)

follows: (continued)

DECEN| Place of

place of operation Issued Group's
incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment husiness up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
HRRL/ EXR BES AEEW
AFER R AHRY E3 8 HREx EREE ArRERE AWRARNE IEEH
Xuzhou New Advantage Real Estate  MEES R ER% 24 July 2013/ The PRC U5$30,000,000 100% = 100% Property
Development Co,, Ltd. ("NARED") AR/ 7] ([NARED)) The PRC BB 30,000000%T development
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (W) R(KE2) 01387848/ nEER
i
Hong Kong Sheen Tai Investment ERIERRARRAR 10May2013/  HongKong  US$25,000,000 100% - 100% Investment
Limited ("HKSTIL") (THKSTIL)) Hong Kong F%  25000000%7 holding
013558108/ K&K
Sheen Tai (HK) New Energy Investment  |B% (7837808 IRE 27 November 2013/~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% Investment
Limited ("STNEIL(HK)") BRAR Hong Kong ) 100787 holding
(TSTNEIL(HK)]) W3ENAB/ REER
Sheen Tai Energy Investment R REABRAE 18 November 2013 HongKong Us$100 100% 100% - Investment
Lid. (“STEL") ([STELLY) BV & 100%7 holding
W13E115188/ RERR
ZRGARRS
Sheen Tai International Investment ~ EREIRRABRAA 2May2013/  HongKong  US$20,000,000 100% 100% - Investment
Ltd. (*STIL") (TsTiL)) B/ E& 2000000£7 holding
01355828/ REMR
EEGERNS
Century Leader Asia Limited BRENERAT 2 April 2007/ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% - 100% Investment
("CLAL") (cLALl) Hong Kong &5 100008 holding and
00754528/ trading of
e dgarette films
FERRA
Sheen China Group Holdings Inc. JBESEARBRAZ 27 November 2008/ HongKong Us$10 100% 100% - Investment
(*SCGH") (TSCGHI)) B/ 3 10%7T holding
0085118278/ REMR

RERSRE
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22. AMTEBATIMIRE (1)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as A2017F 12 A3 BB ARIFEBWT « (8)

follows: (continued)

Date and

place of operation Issued Group's
incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment husiness up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
HRRL/ EXR BEAR AEEW
AR%R AL AGRBE 5k HREA EREE mARARE BNEARER IEXR
Sheen China Group Holdings Limited ~ EZEEZRARAA  5September 2008/~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% = 100% Inactive
("SCGHL") ([SCGHL]) Hong Kong ) 18T E4 373
00859558/
Sheen China (Hong Kong) Limited ~~ |EZ (E%) BRAR 20 August 1997/ HongKong  HK$12,600,000 100% - 100% Investment
("HKSC") (THKSCJ) Hong Kong F% 1260000057 holding and
1997888208/ trading of
Bk dgarette films
BABRA
Shenzhen Shuntai New Energy Science  RIIIES A8 BRI 31 March 2015/ The PRC  US$36,663,640 100% = 100% Investment
Technology Co, Ltd. (“SZNE") BRAR(SINEL) The PRC BB 366636405 holding and
(Note 1)and (Note 2) (D R(E2) 2015838318/ frading
" BABRA
25
Xuzhou Shuntai New Energy Power  B/HIEZETERRE 21 April 2015/ The PRC RMB39,000,000 100% = 100%  Generation of
Generation Co,, Ltd. ("XZNE") BRAE (TXNE)) The PRC H AEE photovoltaic
(Note 1) and (Note 3) (1) R (HE3)  2015%4R21B/ 39,000,000 power
" %S
Hong Kong Taiwo Holding Limited ~~ ZRZHARER A7 31Juy2015  HongKong HK$100 100% - 100% Inactive
("HKTHL") (THKTHLY) Hong Kong Bk 10057 XK
015578318/
Treasure Cloud Limited Treasure Cloud Limited 4 January 2016/ Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% - Investment
("7C") (el BV & 127 holding
01651548/ RERR

ZERRRRE
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22. AMBARINKRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as MR2017912 A3 BB ARIGEBWT « (4&)
follows: (continued)

DECEN| Place of

place of operation Issued Group's
incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment husiness up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
HRRL/ EXR BES AEEW
AFER R AHRY E3 8 HREx EREE ArRERE AWRARNE IEEH
Sheen Tai Cloud Network Limited EREREERA 31 August 2016/ Hong Kong Us$100 52% 52% - Investment
("STCNL") ([STCNL)) BV &% (B holding
01658A318/ &K
ARARRES
Falcon Wisdom Limited ("FW") BEBRAA(AW])  18December 2015 HongKong HK$1 100% = 100% Investment
Hong Kong &k 187 holding
055128188/ REnR
China City Cloud Network Sc. & Tech.  FRESIT BRI 29August 2016/ Hong Kong HK$100 52% - 100%  Investment
Limited ("CCCN") BRAR([CCN)) Hong Kong & 100787 holding
016587298/ REBR
Hong Kong Sheen Dragon Investment &8szt B AR A 7] 28July 2004/ Hong Kong HK$100 100% - 100% Investment
Company Limited ("HKSDI") (THKsDI)) Hong Kong & 1007 holding
N0457R288/ REBR
Sheyang Tengyun Information STGREEERE 30 May 2016/ The PRC HK$25,000,000 100% - 100%  Cloud-related
Technology Co,, Ltd. ("SYTY) BRAA(TSYTY]) The PRC BE 2500000057 business
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (rrORME)  2016%58308/ 25K
i
Xuyi Guangcai Information Technology  AFESREHE SRR 27 May 2016/ The PRC HK$25,000,000 100% - 100%  Cloud-elated
Co, Ltd. ("XYGC") BRAR(Xv6C]) The PRC E 25,000,000 business
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (W) R(KE2) 016558218/ 255
hE
Xuzhou Shuntai Agricultural BHIEREERE 16 February 2016/ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% = 100% Agiculture
Technology Co, Ltd. ("XZNY") BRAF (DN ]) The PRC # ARE technology
(Note 1) and (Note 3) (WO R(WEE3) 2016528168/ 10,000,000 RERH

P
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22. AMTEBATIMIRE (1)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as A2017F 12 A3 BB ARIFEBWT « (8)

follows: (continued)

DECEN| Place of

place of operation Issued Group's
incorporation/ and and paid effective Held by Held by Principal
Name of company establishment husiness up capital interest  the Company  the subsidiary activities
HRRL/ BEL BES AEEW
AFER R AHRY E3 8 HREx EREE ArRERE AWRARNE IEEH
Shenzhen Qianhai Tengzhiyun Network 31380 2 ZRERE 5 May 2016/ The PRC = 100% = 100% Inactive
Sai & Tech. Limited ("SZQH") BRAR(SZoH) The PRC hE BXH
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (WO R(WE2)  201655A58/
hE
Harbin Binghe Information Technology  F &k ifE SR 7 June 2016/ The PRC = 100% = 100% Inactive
Co., Ltd. ("HEBBH") BIRAE ([HEBBH]) The PRC i BER
(Note 1)and (Note 2) (Bt 1) R (Bfs2) WI6E6ATR/
e
Shenzhen Qianhai Taizhiyun Network  FHIATA% 2 ERERE 14 December 2016/ The PRC - 52% - 100% Investment
Sci. & Tech. Limited ("SZQH") BRAR([52QH)) The PRC G holding
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (rORME2) 0168128148/ RELR
48
YCRH AR 12 September 2013/ The PRC RMB1,000,000 52% - 100%  Cloud-related
(Note 1) and (Note 3) (P 1) R (PtzE 3) The PRC H N business
213598128/ 1,000,000 %%
48
Xuzhou Lvzhou Property Management /N EEE 17 March 2016/ ThePRC  US$200,000 100% - 100% Property
Co, Ltd. ("X212") BRAA(DL]) The PRC BE 20000057 management
(Note 1) and (Note 2) (mrORME2) 01638178/ VES
hEl
City Cloud Network (China) AMERLE (RE) i 1June 2017/ Hong Kong US$46 100% 100% = Inactive
Sci. & Tech. Limited ("CCNC”) ERAR(CONC) BV B 46ET B2
017%6818/
ABARRHES
Note 1: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The MHEE1 - BNAMEZLIBEMRSE - ZZERENE
official names of these entities are in Chinese. T7 B RBIAFR SURYE ©
Note 2: These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises in PRC. MiEr2 : ZEEBRTERINEDRE -
Note 3: These entities are limited companies established in PRC. MisE3 : 5% RPBKZBEREERA] ©

Note 4: The entity is a sino-foreign joint venture with limited liability MizE4 : ZEBATEKLZTINGEBRETLE -
established in the PRC.
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22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 22. RBATRMIRE (&)
As at 31 December 2017, the bank and cash balances of the MR2017F 128318 AEEF KB R A
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) RAREBTAREDEZRITRESES
amounted to HK$217,804,000 (2016: HK$262,405,000). /$217,804,0007% 7T (2016 4F : 262,405,000
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's TC) ° 5 AREE F i A NE 7B B <F Fh R ANE B IR
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of &0 2 4508 ~ EERNEEZTERTE -

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

23. INVENTORIES 23. FE

2016
20164

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Packaging materials manufacturing and trading B &M

Raw materials R 27,511 52,269
Work in progress ER 15,299 7,698
Finished goods SR 67,680 32,746
110,490 92,713
Property development MEER

Completed properties held for sale FEEEREER Y 31,654 =
Properties under development for sale BRIAHEEDE - 589,492
31,654 589,492

142,144 682,205

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense BRAZ LW ABRNTFEEESTAT

and included in profit or loss is as follows:

2016

2016 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FBT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEMREE 975,219 277,768
Allowance for inventories FERE 432 315

975,651 278,083
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24. BE5BWRIAREtEWRRIE

L

2017

2017 £

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Trade and bills receivables H 5 ek TE & R = 257,913 218,848
Allowance for doubtful debts REREHHE (3,655) (2,829)
254,258 216,019

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Ze -~ TR R E M EUGIE
— related parties - BAE 60 =
— third parties -E=% 60,908 83,305

Current portion of interests in leasehold land BB EHERERRN

held for own use under operating lease HE T aE=MENEE o 512 478
315,738 299,802

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. The
credit terms generally range from 30 to 180 days from the invoice
date. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEERZEFHBEZBRFIUNEEFTRNAEE - 7
BHRE—RNMN30BE180E M - 8P
BHEAREERRE - ASEKRIBEREEE
W BR SR BRIS AL I - 25 B4 HASRRE 1T E 1A
= -

RIBBHZEH  AEEEZRUGARERE
B (RIRR ) 2 SRl DT 0T

2017

2016

2017 2016 4F
Trade Bills Trade Bills
receivables receivable receivables receivables
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B5 =

WA e FEYFRIA JEW R IR
THERT THET AT FAT
Less than 30 days PR30 H 101,962 20,409 126,112 1,599
31 -90 days 31290 H 66,066 - 56,397 8,145
91 — 180 days 91E180H 16,429 - 11,235 1,686
181 — 365 days 181 £ 365H 18,488 - 9,671 45
Over 365 days 365 B E 30,904 - 1,129 -

233,849 20,409 204,544 11,475

153
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2017, an allowance was made for estimated
irrecoverable trade receivables of approximately HK$3,655,000
(2016: HK$2,829,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables:

B 5 WA & R R IR R R R

4. BZRUWHREAREMEVRRE (&)

R2017F 12 A31H » st Tl kEE 5 &
Uy 3% 38 5t 2 8§ 493,655,000 7T (2016 4F -
2,829,000/87T) °

O 5 ) o (GOt A

2016

2016 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

At 1 January M1A1H 2,829 4,648
Allowance for the year IRER 598 =
Reversals (o) - (1,819)
Exchange differences M =58 228 -
At 31 December M12A31H 3,655 2,829

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of HK$42,539,000
(2016: HK$43,926,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no
recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade and bills
receivables is as follows:

M2017F12A31H B 5 B W K E LD
42,539,000 7t (2016 4F : 43,926,000 7T )
BARARHIRRE - S RE T EAHAR R
WBUEF ZSESRWHBEREREE Y
BRERDATUOT -

2016

20164

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FABT

Less than 1 month LR 1EA 23,422 19,767
1 to 3 months 1&31@A 7,399 17,310
More than 3 months 3fEAMLE 11,718 6,849
42,539 43,926

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2017, an allowance of HK$1,345,000 was
made (2016: HK$52,000 was reversed) for other receivables and
an allowance of HK$Nil (2016: HK$3,354,000) was made for
prepayments.

AEEE HRKFIRRHEEIARBHE -

MR2017%F 12 A318 - ESEMEURFRIERTIR
P 181,345,000 7T (2016 4F = #% [252,000 7%
JL)  WERTEMNRIEFRBEHE TS T(2016
£F : 3,354,000 7T) °
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 25. UAAREBETEEHESFH T AER

PROFIT OR LOSS BENEHEE
: 2017
2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Equity securities, at fair value BEEZS BRAREE
Listed in Hong Kong REBLEM 19,366 55,839
Unlisted wealth management products R ETEEBEM 7,193 168,809
26,559 224,648
The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are classified as FHEMEE RRESHERFEESR -
held for trading.
The fair values of listed securities are based on the closing prices. ISR AR BEDERKHEERE -

26. RESTRICTED CASH AND BANK AND CASH 26. SREIBESURBITRESLELH

BALANCES

The Group’s restricted cash represented deposits pledged to banks AEEZZRERSEEERTRITERERE
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in note BEERRITEEER TR (WERE M RE N
30 to the consolidated financial statements. FE30FTH) ©

As at 31 December 2017, the bank and cash balances of the M2017F12A318 - AEB 2RI KRR
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$218,010,000 (2016: HEHAARBEE - £%/5218,010,000% 7T
HK$94,505,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies (2016 4F 94,505,000 77T © #5 AR AN
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations s 7B B <7 R B HNE B IR (R0 [ A5 TE - ST R A
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign EEERTE -

Exchange Regulations.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

2017 2016

2017 F 2016 4F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE Ex-] Eignr 4= ©F
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T A% FHET T FAT
Authorised: VERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each SAXME{E0.0025 87T
B E B 8,000,000 20,000 8,000,000 20,000

Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each FRXME{E 0.0025 7T

K& @A
At 1 January ®m1A1AH 2,183,968 5,460 2,007,690 5,019
Shares issued under share option RIEEAR R 83T
scheme (note 34(b)) B (PRTEE 34(b)) 8,880 22 7,400 19
Conversion of convertible bonds AR ES %
(note 31) (BH7E31) 262,400 656 168,878 422
At 31 December M®12A31H 2,455,248 6,138 2,183,968 5,460

AEEEREAZ BNE EREREBELRE

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Total
debt comprises borrowings and convertible bonds. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, retained
profits and other reserves).

18 A B B B 1 SR A T BA LR SR
GE

AEBRARLAIEEERNEHE - AEBEEE
BARGER  YREBEERABERBHREEN
RBRFHELAR - RERAREARERE -
AEETBERHENORE - BITHRD - K
MO SEFEYE  BERRENEBHBE
BENRDER

AEEEREEABLTERER - ZHLEXRIA
EFRRARRHERENTE - EHEEE
BREERTHREES - KABREAREESR
B2 B AR AR BB (BDASAS ~ R B8 0 ) e 2 b fok
)



B B AR T
T FFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 B31 BILFE

27.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

During 2017, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2016, was to maintain the equity and debt in a balanced position
and ensure that there was adequate working capital to service its
debt obligations. The Group’s gearing ratios at 31 December 2017
was -11% (2016: 28%):

The decrease in the gearing ratio during 2017 resulted primarily
from conversion of convertible bond and increase in bank balances.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a
public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial
covenants attached to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars monthly on
substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches in the
financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

27. R (4&)

20174 AREMRBE2016FTE - IR
RERAREEHTE  BRETVEELES
FENEBEHEE - XAEER2017F12A31H
CEAEBEHERAE-11% (20164 : 28%) °

2017 FEEBBR RIS HEEHENRERA B
BB 5 B SR TAE SR ANFTER -

AEBERZRRATINRERRE : ()T #55
B P ETfr - HE= 4 25% MR AR
R - R()VEERITERM G EREE -

rEEGARERMBPETRELIIRIER
BRBEENEARNEENRE @ ZMESET
AEERE[FEA-ETAERE25% KRR
R EARE °

ERVBRABSRITINEREREE - &
F2017F K% 20164512 A31 BILEE - {hER
AEBIMERITERUE R I H522E -
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28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28. XA TBBRRARRKFHESS
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the
Company

(a) ARATFBARIREK

v IS Pttty b (N
As at 31 December

R12831H
2017 2016

2017 & 20164
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries M B AR MR E 22 486,116 506,293
Current assets REBEE

Financial assets at fair value AR BEEBEES:TA

through profit or loss EHEENEREE 13,864 44,071
Other receivables H b e R IE 1,941 1,935
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BB A RFRIA 259,141 134,221
Bank and cash balances RTINS K8k 33,781 55,316
Total current assets REBEEHATE 308,727 235,543
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables At JEA FRIE 1,194 2,162
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS KB A R SUR 63,998 68,428
Bank borrowings RITER - 35,000
Total current liabilities REBEEHARE 65,192 105,590
Net current assets RBEERE 243,535 129,953
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 729,651 636,246
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 94 202,176
NET ASSETS BEE 729,557 434,070
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXR G
Share capital [N 27 6,138 5,460
Reserves ] 28(b) 723,419 428,610
Total equity A 729,557 434,070

MEFEMN2018F3 A29 B EIT R TIIAL
REREZFSEE:

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018 and is
signed on its behalf by:

Guo Yumin Zeng Xiangyang
BER ZakE
Executive Director Executive Director

BITEFE HITEF
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28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 28. AR TBBIRRREFESS (8)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) FRTFREED
Share-based
payments
Share Capital reserve Retained
premium reserve MRPBHER i Total
RDRE BARE  WXARE RE T &F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T T AL BT
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A1H 341,295 81,955 6,893 2,381 432,524
Profit for the year FREF - - - 67,443 67,443
Conversion of BRATARES
convertible bond 69,578 - - - 69,578
Shares issued under R AR 2
share option scheme TR, 3,686 - (2,589) - 1,097
Share-based payments PR AR 14 - - 7,320 = 7,320
Dividends paid ERRE 16 - - - (149,352) (149,352)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F 128318 414,559 81,955 11,624 (79,528) 428,610
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1A18 414,559 81,955 11,624 (79,528) 428,610
Profit for the year FREF - - - 125,478 125,478
Conversion of BRATARES
convertible bond 188,272 - - - 188,272
Shares issued under B 2
share option scheme TR 3,045 - (1,729 = 1,316
Share-based payments ARG AR 14 = = 4,295 - 4,295
Dividend paid ERRE 16 - - - (24,552) (24,552)

At 31 December 2017 R20174612 A31H 605,876 81,955 14,190 21,398 723,419




160

SHEEN TAI HOLDINGS GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT ERRM T

wh|3

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12 A31 HILFE

29. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and
proceeds received from the issuance of the shares of
the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the contribution
from the ultimate controlling party and the difference
between the nominal value of shares of the subsidiaries
acquired over the nominal value of shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the reorganisation of the
Group on 21 June 2012.

(iii) Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the applicable PRC regulations, all PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to appropriate
10% of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year/
period losses) to the statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of each relevant
PRC subsidiary. The transfer to the statutory reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to equity
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of
the subsidiary.

29. #E
(a)

(b)
(0]

(i)

(iii)

REH

EMEEWmﬁuﬁﬁéé .
5 o

RENEENRR
R 6 E

By EEEAARMRNEERETAR
AR TR FT 1S SRR 2 R 2 88

REFASEESARE - ARRMBRERE
FRPHNESAIHDIRTAR T%%’ﬁ%
BEEE ) IKALE B HAIR - AARAREME
N—REBB &#U%ﬁﬁmkﬁ

B

BN FHB T EERLERTNIIE RS
BB A Ry 2 E{EEA R RN 20124
6 A21 REMAREMM TN 2 HE
ZEF e

EERE

REBERNPEIER - ARBENMAAEHE
BB A RIZAR R E B KRN (B
—(AFE,HREEE) B 10% BR =%
EfE  BEEZEREEZSEET RN
BAREMEARAS50% ° BAR DK
BT RaRMBREEERHE - EZERM
e AN ESEREENIEREA - I
B R RH RET B IR SUE A EME
7 o
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29. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 29. f#E (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (b) fFEEHMHENAE(E)
(iv) Share-based payments reserve (iv) UBOABERNZSHEE
The share-based payment reserve represents the fair DARS A7 A EERE A S S R (B FE AR B BT 5 4(u)
value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised AR A E AR AER AN E T
share options granted to employees of the Group BERE T AEEREMNRITEBERIENE
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy Bk st # B AR (EE -

adopted for equity-settled share-based payments in
note 4(u) to the consolidated financial statements.

(v) Exchange reserve (v) ERfRE
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange P W R B IR B I IS M BT B TR R P
differences arising from the translation of the financial EENFAELRZ% - ZHEERBELREY
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt TEMERMGT A Y 2 @HBEERR -

with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 4(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

30. BANK BORROWINGS 30. BITEN

2017

2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Secured BB 47,956 16,000
Unsecured IR 105,496 128,485
153,452 144,485

The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITERBEFRET ¢

Within one year or on demand —FANIEEK 153,452 144,040
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —%F LA E » (B EBBRF - 217
More than two years, but not more than five years M@ LAE - BETBIBRF - 228

153,452 144,485
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30. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

31.

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

30.

RITER (&)
7K 5 B 4R 1T B AR R TET € 8 00 BA T 31 S M 3t

2016

2016 4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK$ BT 20,000 51,445
United States dollars (“US$") ESAUE VA, 13,562 25,963
RMB AR 119,890 67,077
153,452 144,485

As at 31 December 2017, the average interest rate of bank
borrowings was 4.82% (2016: 3.91%) per annum.

Bank borrowings of HK$71,934,000 (2016: HK$67,077,000) are
arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. Other bank borrowings are arranged at floating
rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Bank borrowings of HK$47,956,000 (2016: HK$16,000,000) are
secured by a charge over the Group’s leasehold land (note 19),
buildings and machinery (note 18).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(a) 2014 Convertible Bond

On 30 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bond
(the “2014 Convertible Bond”) in the principal amount of
HK$165,000,000 to a director and ultimate controlling party
of the Company, Mr. Guo Yumin. The maturity date of the
2014 Convertible Bond was on the third anniversary of the
date of issuance (i.e. 30 June 2017). The 2014 Convertible
Bond bore interest at 3% per annum. No security or
guarantee was granted in respect of the 2014 Convertible
Bond. The 2014 Convertible Bond could be converted into
398,069,960 shares at the initial conversion price HK$0.4145
after the effect of a share subdivision (subject to adjustment
pursuant to the terms of the convertible bond).

31.

R2017F12 A318 » BRITERNFHFRA
4.82% (20164 : 3.91%) °

$RITE 071,934,000 7L.(2016 F : 67,077,000
BT MEEMEGF ERSAEEEBAREE
PR - At RITERIRZEF R L - #
MLAEBEBRIRSRAERER

$R1ITE R 47,956,00078 7T (2016 4F : 16,000,000
BIL)UAAEB ZAE L (KFE19) BF K
H#2S (FIRE18) 2 EIRIEEIR -

AR RS
(a) 2014 FRHRRES

20146 A30H * XARIMAARGE
ERTEEH B ERAEEEITAEEE
165,000,000% 7T & 7] #2 f% & % ([ 2014
FEAIRES ) - 2014 AR IEFER
FTHEH=RAFTE A (RN20179F6 A30
H) 8B © 2014 AT R EH IR FFE 3%
HE o ARBTER 2014 FE AR EFH
MR E A ER 2014 F A ARG
H Al AR A U RV P IR (E 0.4145
P (IR IR AR AR E S MG FR T AT EE)
#1 5398,069,960 ALAZ) o
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 31. ARES (F)
(a) 2014 Convertible Bond (continued) (a) 2014 FETARES (8)

The Company might at any time before the maturity date of AR R AIBERFE 2014 F Al R AR F 5B HA
the 2014 Convertible Bond, by serving at least seven days HA - MARERESFNFEASLZERT
prior written notice on the holder of the 2014 Convertible DRERNEmMBAN  SMNEEEELDN
Bond with the total amount proposed to be redeemed from @rEk - RBK TERM 2014 F AR
such holder specified therein, redeem the 2014 Convertible BEHBONASHE(ERRANMNE) B
Bond (in whole or in part) at 100% to the principal amount O 2812014 F o[ E S (2 EPek AP EB
(together with the accrued interest) of the part of the 2014 7)o BEARARIERI R E(] 2014 F A3
Convertible Bond to be redeemed. Any amount of the 2014 BELREEGEI R -

Convertible Bond which was redeemed by the Company
would forthwith be cancelled.

At 31 December 2016, there was no outstanding principal 2016 12 A31H » 1201446 A 30
amount of this convertible bond issued on 30 June 2014. HETH A RRESTEREESHE -
For the 2014 Convertible Bond, the detailed components are 2014 AT AR E S I s AR B 9 D AT
analysed as follows: (N

(i e ( 1

Host liability Derivative

component component Total
FEEERS STEIERD a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHTT FHIT
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 418 69,198 1,403 70,601
Interest expense FERX 1,312 = 1,312
Convert to new shares = = FARD (70,510) (1,403) (71,913)
At 31 December 2016, 72016512 A31H -
1 January 2017 and 200171 H1B R
31 December 2017 201712 H31H - - -
(i)  Interest expense on the convertible bond is calculated () ABMRESFOFEXEEEERF
using the effective interest method by applying the EENEBRFNEI83%AEAE
effective interest rate of 3.83% per annum to the 5 ©

liability component.

(i) On 19 July 2016, Mr. Guo Yumin exercised his (i) M2016F7819H  FEREAE
conversion rights of 2014 Convertible Bond at the initial AYIZEIR(E 0.4145 B TiTEE Y
conversion price HK$0.4145. As a result, the Company 2014 F A AR B 5 A ML AR AEE o
issued 168,878,166 ordinary shares accordingly (note bt - AR A A3 97 168,878,166 % &

27). A% (M5E27) »
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)
(b) 2016 Convertible Bond

On 17 March 2016, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with Bloom Shine Investments Limited (“Bloom Shine”) and
announced a plan to issue four tranches of convertible bonds
(the “2016 Convertible Bond") with total principal amounts
of HK$236,160,000 to Bloom Shine. The maturity date of the
2016 Convertible Bond is on the second anniversary of the
date of issuance. The 2016 Convertible Bond will not bear
any interest. The 2016 Convertible Bond can be converted
into 328,000,000 shares at the initial conversion price
HK$0.72 (subject to adjustment pursuant to the terms of the
convertible bond).

Bondholder can assign or transfer in whole or in part the
2016 Convertible Bond (multiples of HK$576,000 of the
fair value of the 2016 Convertible Bond), provided that the
2016 Convertible Bond cannot be assigned or transferred to
connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company except in compliance with the Listing Rules and the
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs.

If the bondholder does not exercise his or her conversion
rights, the Company shall, in any time after the issue of the
2016 Convertible Bond and before the first anniversary of the
issue of the 2016 Convertible Bond, have the right to redeem
any unexercised 2016 Convertible Bond with an amount
equivalent to 160% of the unexercised principal amount on
a specified date of redemption by giving a 5-days prior notice
to the bondholder (such notice being irrevocable and cannot
be opposed by the bondholder).

If the bondholder does not exercise his or her conversion
rights, the Company shall, in any time after the first
anniversary of the issue of the 2016 Convertible Bond and
before the second anniversary of the issue of the 2016
Convertible Bond, have the right to redeem any unexercised
2016 Convertible Bond with an amount equivalent to 140%
of the unexercised principal amount on a specified date of
redemption by giving a 5-days prior notice to the bondholder
(such notice being irrevocable and cannot be opposed by the
bondholder).

Any amount of the 2016 Convertible Bond which is redeemed
by the Company will forthwith be cancelled.

31. AR ES (])
(b) 2016 F£rARESH

M2016F3F17H - A 2 7 EBloom
Shine Investments Limited ([Bloom
Shinel) 5T 32 B B 1 # I 5 5 5 &l
[@ Bloom Shine#¥ 77 PO #t A 32 & (& &
(M2016 F Ak fER]) - A& @zEET
236,160,000 7T ° 2016 A] # f% & % #
RETEHMBAFTE BH®R - 2016F 7]
B EFH G TR ERFE - 2016 F A
EFH IR S EBRE0. 728 T (AR
B MBREFNGERTUARARE)EiRE
328,000,000 RS

BHEHA AT HEsEE 2016 A B E
A (REREHED - LA2016 AT HRRES
B A BER 576,000 TIEEHEE) -
12016 AJ ARG E SN A] H i sk 88 T
EAL(EERLEMMAA)  BARESE
MR AR UREE - & 0F R ARDEERI ST RIBIE

Al ©

MREHIFENLBITELRRE - AR
AIRRARAIMESFREBEASTLELB
Mo FEEIT2016 AT IR E A 18 R BT A]
BRESH M —AER - BER A HERE R E A
KRITEM 2016 AT ES - SEHEER
FEMER B AIRITHEASTEN 160% M
ZEBANRTAHE RN EESFEA
R o

IMREHFFHFBEANLBITEHBRRE A2
AIAIRARAIAGEHFFAEASLEZELE
Ao EET2016 BB ES R —BFE
REITARRESF MBS AT - BER A
BRI RITHER 2016 [N ES - &
HHERETERBABRITEASEN
140% @ M ZBEE A HE K] E
BHIFHARE -

EARRREOHERM2016 A RERESE
RIS RS o
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)
(b) 2016 Convertible Bond (continued)

On 30 June 2016, the Company had issued the first tranche
of 2016 Convertible Bond in the principal amount of
HK$141,696,000 to Bloom Shine. The maturity date of the
2016 Convertible Bond is on the second anniversary of the
date of issuance (i.e. 30 June 2018). The 2016 Convertible
Bond can be converted into 196,800,000 shares at the initial
conversion price HK$0.72 (subject to adjustment pursuant to
the terms of the convertible bond). The first tranche of the
2016 Convertible Bond may be converted into conversion
shares commencing from the sixth months after the date of
issuance and ending on the maturity date of the first tranche
of the 2016 Convertible Bond.

If the operation revenue of cloud platforms before tax and
surcharges is not less than RMB30,000,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Company shall issue the
second tranche of 2016 Convertible Bond with principal
amounts of HK$47,232,000 to Bloom Shine on or before 31
March 2017 or other date as agreed between two parties.

If the operation revenue of cloud platforms before tax and
surcharges is not less than RMB37,500,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (the “2017 Revenue Guarantee”),
the Company shall issue the third tranche of 2016 Convertible
Bond with principal amounts of HK$23,616,000 to Bloom
Shine on or before 31 March 2018 or other date as agreed
between two parties.

If the operation revenue of cloud platforms before tax and
surcharges is not less than RMB48,750,000 for the year
ending 31 December 2018 (the “2018 Revenue Guarantee”),
the Company shall issue the fourth tranche of 2016
Convertible Bond with principal amounts of HK$23,616,000
to Bloom Shine on or before 31 March 2019 or other date as
agreed between two parties.

If the actual operation revenue of cloud platforms before
tax and surcharges during a guaranteed period is less
than the guaranteed revenue for that guaranteed period
(the "Difference”), Bloom Shine may pay to the Company
in cash an amount equivalent to the Difference (“Cash
Compensation”) on or before 31 March 2017, 31 March 2018,
and 31 March 2019 or such other dates as agreed in written. In
such case, Bloom Shine shall be entitled to obtain the relevant
tranche of the 2016 Convertible Bond since the guaranteed
revenue shall be considered to have been satisfied.

If no Cash Compensation is provided by Bloom Shine, the
second tranche 2016 Convertible Bond, the third tranche
2016 Convertible Bond and the fourth tranche 2016
Convertible Bond payable to Bloom Shine or its nominee shall
be reduced in proportion to the amount of the Difference.

31. AR ES (])
(b) 2016 FrIEMRESH (&)

MN2016F6 A30H  ARAREMHE A
Bloom Shine #7755 — #t 2016 A] 2 & &
% A e F8 = 5 141,696,000 T °
2016 AJ R EH SN ETHEMAFTE
B(BN201846 A30H ) i - 2016 7]
BMREF AR S ERE0. 728 L (7]
RIBEARRESFNGR T ARR)EIR A
196,800,000 % A% 15 25 — #2016 A i
EES A BT R ANEAEE —
AT R AR (5 5 B HA B HAR 88k A s AR

,T/'\ o

WMEBZE2016F12A31HILFEEF
BB INE 2 /TR & B WA T D
# A K #30,000,0007T © A RQ AR
20173 A3MBZAKETEN
H 4t B HA M Bloom Shine %17 & % &
47,232,000 70 M) 5 — #£2016 F AJ #2j%
&% o

MREHZE2017F12831HILFEEF
EMBRBAK INE 2 AR & ERAT D
R AR 37,500,000 7T ([2017 FUW AR
F) - NARIZAER2018E3 31 B2
A 3k & 75 17 7E H9 E Atb B 2 A) Bloom Shine
BT ASEA23,616,0008 LM E =t
2016 F AR ES ©

MBEEHZE2018F 12831 BILFEEF
BHBRB MK INE Z & ERATD
R AR 48,750,000 7T ([ 2018 G W AR
F) - NRQFER2019FE3 8312
Ak & 75 % 7F B E b B #i1@) Bloom Shine
EITASEE 523,616,000 7T 89 5 IOt
2016 F AR ES o

INBAEREIEEF S IR AN E 2
AT BRR B A DR AR MR R UL
25 ([Z%]) * Bloom Shine Al 742017 4 3
A31H 201843 A31BHNX201943 A
31 AR EEBEAEM B BmAR
REISMEEREZANRSBE([HEM
B - REBERT » AR AEERE
RULZS - Bloom Shine & #EEEUARBE#E X
KR HARR B 5 o

& Bloom Shine I IR IR S (E - 8
&% {7 Bloom Shine sk K& AR —#E
2016 FFRIMARME S - F=H#E2016 F AR
R fES N F 0L 2016 F Al 2R EH iR
ZELLBIEIR ©
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)
(b) 2016 Convertible Bond (continued)

The Difference for that guaranteed period shall be rolled over
to the next guaranteed period and the guaranteed revenue
for the next guaranteed period shall be increased by the
amount of the Difference. Accordingly, the amount of the
relevant tranche of 2016 Convertible Bond payable reduced
pursuant to the clause above shall be rolled over and added
to the amount of the tranche of 2016 Convertible Bond
payable in the next guaranteed period.

If the actual operation revenue of cloud platforms before tax
and surcharges during a guaranteed period is more than the
guaranteed revenue for that guaranteed period, there will not
be any upward adjustment of the principal value of the 2016
Convertible Bond.

On 22 February 2017, the first tranche 2016 Convertible
Bond was fully converted into 196,800,000 ordinary shares at
the initial conversion price HK$0.72 (note 27).

On 31 March 2017, the second tranche 2016 Convertible Bond
in the principal amount of HK$47,232,000 had been issued to
Bloom Shine pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement. On
the same day, the second tranche 2016 Convertible Bond was
fully converted into 65,600,000 ordinary shares at the initial
conversion price HK$0.72 (note 27).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the operation
revenue of cloud platforms before tax and surcharges
contributed to the Group failed to meet the 2017 Revenue
Guarantee. Accordingly, as Bloom Shine has not made any
Cash Compensation to the Company, no third tranche 2016
Convertible Bond has been issued to Bloom Shine. Besides,
the difference between the operation revenue of cloud
platforms before tax and surcharges contributed to the
Group and the 2017 Revenue Guarantee of RMB37,500,000
has been rolled over to the period for the year ended
31 December 2018 and the 2018 Revenue Guarantee is
increased by RMB37,500,000 to RMB86,250,000.

31. AR ES (])
(b) 2016 FrIEMRESH (&)

EREEFZEEN TEERAESHETE
BROANEREEGENEZESE - B
I+ AR AR bl R SRR S AR B LK Y
2016 F AR ESFSEREARKRT
{E & (R HARE N AAB R HE R B0 2016 S AT 2
R (EHSEE -

RN REIRE T & BRI 2 Al
MERSEWABBERBROEREK
= BTN gD 2016 F Al BRREFHI AR

R2017F2A228 » 5 —#20164F 7]
BREFDENPERE0.72BTEE
# #8 5196,800,000 A% & 3@ A% 4 (Bt 5F
27)

R2017%F3A318 REESHHER
Bloom Shine #1778 %8 47,232,000 78 7T
K #2016 F [ #RARES - RAA
FH 2016 F AR ESF B IRV T &R
E0.72 78 7B B8 2 /5 65,600,000 A%
B (H7E27) ©

HE2007F12A31BILEFEE  BER
REEMBRREMINEBAZEFLAZEEE
U AR BEEB2017 FURAARF o
It - #37 Bloom Shine I R [A1 AN A BEH
EIRESHE - WEZHL 2016 F AR
BB & %17 F Bloom Shine ° It 4h
EFAAAREEERAMBRT &M NE
A& BEIRAE2017FRAREZZRE
A R #37,500,0007T B A 8 £20184F
12ANALEFERH - M2018F WA
REBEE AR ¥ 37,500,000 AR
86,250,000 7T °
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)
(b) 2016 Convertible Bond (continued)

The Group had designated the first tranche of 2016
Convertible Bond as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Of this potential future issued convertible
bond, the second tranche to the fourth tranche of 2016
Convertible Bond were contingent consideration which were
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, the whole 2016 Convertible Bond were
measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. The fair values of 2016
Convertible Bond were disclosed in the table below.

For the 2016 Convertible Bond, the detailed components are
analysed as follows:

31. AR EZ ()

(b) 2016 FrIEMRESH (&)

ANEBEDHIFES #2016 FE Al AL EH
ABURAAREBENE BEE S AL IS
HEEE E o TEARKRABERITH AR (&
FH o FREEMAL 2016 F AR E
SRBEANUAREAETEBEEZ T
ABHERHSHABENIARE -
bt - BE2016 FAl R ESF RS BRE
HARAREBEFEBHEEEH ABL -
2016 F AR EHFM AR BEE TERFP

2016 4F T 008 £ 4 ) BE AR AL B0 9 DT
T

167

\dr i b DDA alh b bl ] [
First Second Third Fourth
tranche tranche
of 2016 of 2016 of 2016 of 2016
Convertible  Convertible Convertible Convertible

Bond Bond Bond Bond

tranche tranche

F—H#t ot =it EEi

2016 & 2016 &
MRRESR TRRESR  TRREF TRRESR &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET THT TAT T

2016 2016 £

At 1 January 2016 20165 1H1H = = = = =

Initial fair value of convertible bond AT EH M MIA AL BIE 138,936 53,056 22,896 21,272 236,160
Change in fair value of AR ERD

convertible bond AhEEE (10,701) (11,728) (5,454) (6,101) (33,984)
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 128,235 41328 17,442 15,171 202,176
Change in fair value of AR AR

convertible bond DREEZ 13,461 5,904 (17,442) (15,077) (13,154)
Convert to new shares IR BRI (141,696) (47,232) = = (188,928)

At 31 December 2017 R20174612 A31R = = = 94 94
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. ELEMIE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the EEGAMBRARERNREERBEE, (&
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements B)BBEKE D FAEESENT ¢

during the year are as follows:

Provision for
inventories Undistributed Fair value
Deferred tax Unrealised Accrued and trade profits of adjustment of
arising from: profit expenses  receivables Tax losses  subsidiaries assets
FERES
BELHE JEWEHIE WEARN  EENAR
EEH: RETRA FEf%it B BEEE  ASEERN BERE At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2016 R2016E 1810 1,690 1,822 1,488 3,278 (5,044) (4.828) (1,594)
Exchange differences EHES - (104) (102) (448) - - (654)
(Charge)/credit to profitorloss ~ (31BR &) /3HAJB% (244) (267) 180 5,761 (3,44) 2,275 4,461
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEH B AR = = = = = (45,585) (45,585)
At 31 December 2016 R2016E12A318 1,446 1,451 1,566 8,591 (8,288) (48,138) (43,372)
Exchange differences EHES - 95 127 288 - - 510
(Charge)/credit to profitorloss ~ (31BR &) /3HAJB% 1437 (264) 356 (8737) 3,614 47,854 44,260
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A318 2,883 1,282 2,049 142 (4.674) (284) 1,398

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: FEMBARRROEE
" o v G (4 ( 1

2017 2016

2017 F 2016 4

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHxT FH&T

Deferred tax assets TR IR & B 6,356 13,054
Deferred tax liabilities FERIES F (4,958) (56,426)
1,398 (43,372)
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses REMERR AEEEFRPBAHEEE
of HK$12,532,000 (2016: HK$27,646,000) available for offset 12,532,000 7T (2016 4F : 27,646,000/ 7T) A]
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised FARHESH AR AR s ) o BB PR 2 s ) 2RO 2 7]
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included A - WEBRELERIEEE - 5t AKRME
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$2,588,000 (2016: 27 TE B 18 #Y B3 18 2,588,000 7% 7T (2016 4F -
HK$4,449,000) that will expire in 2020 (2016: 2019). Other tax 4,449,0005 7T) #$ 7220204F (20164F : 20194F)

losses may be carried forward indefinitely. [E W o Ho (518 B 1 T] MR PR AR AL EE o
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33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

33. EZRENREREMEMNTRE

" »

2017

2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHT

Trade and bills payables B Z A R ER B 126,565 92,544

Advances received B R 8,354 686,376
Other payables and accruals E b e RIE K ERT B A

— related party - AR 26,629 12,830

- others - Hftp 43,092 95,260

Due to a director and ultimate controlling party JERTE B R s
— Mr. Guo Yumin -FERSEE 5,668 1,565
210,308 888,575

2 S EMFERENZENRR T (EREAR
B

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on invoice
date, is as follows:

2017 2016

2017 & 2016 4F
Trade Bills Trade Bill
payables payable payables payable
25 25

ERE EBAEE e FIE FEEE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET T3 FHET

Due within 1 month or on demand 118 A RE| sk e Esk 105,679 3,602 74,511 1,060
Due after 1 month but 1@ A&E3M™A

within 3 months N EIER 8,758 - 13,785 =
Due after 3 months but 3EA%E6EA

within 6 months AEHA 1,719 - 1,512 =

Due more than 6 months 6 {E A& 2|57 6,807 = 1,676 =

122,963 3,602 91,484 1,060

AEEREFRNFEREMENRENRES
BIYATIIERHE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2017

2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Us$ E7T 3,602 1,060
RMB AR 122,963 91,484
Total A&t 126,565 92,544
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

34. ARG B/EREI

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the then sole shareholder
passed on 22 June 2012, a pre-IPO share option scheme (the “share
option scheme”) was approved and adopted to provide grantees
with the opportunity to acquire equity interest in the Company.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time), directors and advisers of the Group and to

promote the success of the business of the Group.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary

share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants at the date of the

grants are as follows:

RIS —RER 20126 522 AARBHE
AZR  BAARBERERETE ([
RESTEI ) B RN - AFR AREHRSE
BARDRRIBEAAERS ©

BB e ERS MR ERENTTBAR -
AAKERES (28) - EF RERRHEINE
VAR AR R BRAE AR ©

A MR T35 AR BB A R 7 — R
B - A LARH B B -

(@) IR B EIPTRRBRHE A G R IR E S
LI

d 1 AN O

Options granted to

BFUT ALTHERE

Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Directors Employees
el =t FEEH Z#A = =1
22 June 2012 14 July 2013 13 July 2018 200,000 800,000 1,000,000
20126 H22H 201347 H14H 201847 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2014 13 July 2018 300,000 1,200,000 1,500,000
201296 A 22H 20144 7R 148 20184 7R 13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2015 13 July 2018 400,000 1,600,000 2,000,000
201246 A22H 201557 A 148 201847 413 H
22 June 2012 14 July 2016 13 July 2018 500,000 2,000,000 2,500,000
20126 H22H 20167 H14H 201847 H13H
22 June 2012 14 July 2017 13 July 2018 600,000 2,400,000 3,000,000
201296 A 22H 20174 7R 148 20184 7R 13H
29 January 2015 29 January 2016 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H429H 201641 H429H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2017 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 20174 1H29H 202541 H28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2018 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 20184 1 H29H 20254 1 A 28H
29 January 2015 29 January 2019 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201551 H429H 201941 H29H 202541 A28 H
29 January 2015 29 January 2020 28 January 2025 420,000 2,500,000 2,920,000
201541 H29H 20201 H29H 202541 H28H

4,100,000 20,500,000 24,600,000
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34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 34. LR AEBRIZN ()
(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) EERREMEE MNEFSITEBOT

options are as follows:
L () () Aol LOANOLCL b bl A i) LN A

Pre-IPO shares options Share options granted

granted on 22 June 2012 on 29 January 2015
R201256 A2 AR AN RhBRE
BRAREEAMRRE R2015%18298
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise No. of exercise No. of No. of
price options price options options
mER BhE mER BhE BhE
e 4 i 4 4
HKS '000 '000 '000
BT T BT T T
Outstanding at 1 January 2017 #2017 181 BRI HK$0.1507 &7t 8,880 HK$0.8250387 57,900 66,780
Lapsed during the year EREMR - - HKS0.8250% 7 (4,250) (8,250)
Exercised during the year (note 27) FRTE (HE27) HKS$0.1507 & T (8,880) - - (8,880)
Outstanding at 31 December 2017 R2017F 12 A31 AT HKS0.1507 &7t - HKS0.8250 &7 53,650 53,650
Exercisable at 31 December 2017 R2017E12 A31 AT HKS0.1507 & 70 - HK$0.8250 &7 21,460 21,460
Outstanding at 1 January 2016 R201651 A1 BHAITE HK$0.1507 7% 16,555  HK$0.8250 87 57,900 74,455
Lapsed during the year ERER HKS$0.1507 7 (275) HK$0.82507% 7 - (275)
Exercised during the year FR{TE HK$0.1507 7 (7,400) - = (7,400)
Outstanding at 31 December 2016 2016512 A 31 BAfTE HK$0.1507 57T 8,880 HK$0.82507 7 57,900 66,780
Exercisable at 31 December 2016 R2016512 A31 BEFIfE HK$0.1507 &7t - - 11,580 11,580
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of RER - BITEEBRIENTEE B
share options exercised during the year was HK$0.39. FHRRE R 0.3987T °
The share options granted on 29 January 2015 outstanding at 201541 A29 B #L & M 72017 F 12
31 December 2017 had an exercise price of HK$0.8250 (2016: A3TEBEMKRITENERAREERE
HK$0.8250) and a weighted average remaining contractual fi% # /9 17 (£ & 5 0.82507% 7 (2016 FF :
life of 7.08 years (2016: 8.08 years). 0.8250/87C) * %R NINEFHELER A

7.084 (20164 : 8.08%4) °

The numbers of options and weighted average exercise prices MBS B Rt 1T E TR R IF
were presented as after the effect of the share subdivision 418 201599 A 24 B ERZIZEBRRA
with effect from 24 September 2015 on the basis of each N BT ARBIR RO T 4RI AR
issued or unissued share of the Company subdivided into 4 ity 2 EHEZT o

subdivided shares.
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. R BE&ERERME

CASH FLOWS
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEMBAR
()  On 6 December 2017, the Group disposed of its ()  HR2017F12H6H » K&EE ML
wholly-owned subsidiary, Cheng Jun Group Limited FREE(RRAERFRKLES
and its subsidiary, Union Winful Limited, to Mr. Guo FIHEHZENBARHMEER
Yumin, a director and ultimate controlling party of the BEREAREMNBARBAKESR
Company, at a consideration of US$100. AR RER100ETT

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: REEBHZFRENT :

€ L o (G

HK$'000

FH&T
Other receivables HAb U GRIA 1
Bank and cash balances RITNIR S AR 3
Other payables A FERTRR R (57)
Net liabilities BEFHE (53)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB A ARk 54
Total consideration BRE 1
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEMRSRLFE -
Cash consideration received BUIRESRE 1

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BERSRASEEER (3)

)
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35. B E&RERMIE (E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (a) HEMBLT (E)

(i)  On 7 December 2017, the Group disposed of a non- iy M2017F12A878  AEERK
wholly owned subsidiary, Joy Treasure Investments ES1 ETHEF2ERBMMBAR]
Limited, and its subsidiaries at a consideration of HEREERARNMNEKNBAR -
US$51.

Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: REERHZFEENT ¢
HK$'000
FBT
Other receivables H b fE U RIE 1
Bank and cash balances HRITRIRS R 557
Other payables H A ERTARK (1,170)
Current tax assets ENEARR IR & = 32
Net liabilities afE¥s (580)
Less: Non-controlling interests B FEIE AR R 284
Group’s share of net liabilities disposed of ANEEFHMHHEHEFEE (296)
Release of exchange reserve B 3+, 145 [ 8¢ (13)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB A ARy 309
Total consideration LR(E =
Consideration satisfied by cash LIRS ERMNIRSNRE =
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRERLEE
Cash consideration received B S EE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EEReRASEFMEIAER (557)

(557)
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

35.

ma

(b)

REnERMEE (&)
BMEEBFFELENER

TRAMASEREZBAELNRES
B BRRSNIFRSEE - MEESR
EENBEEAREGARERERTR
EREBBEDBERIARAKRES RN ER
BERBEENRERHEE -

At

1 January Interest Exchange  Fairvalue 31December

2017 Cash flows expense  Conversion differences changes 217

R2017E AMEE  RuvE

1818 ReR  NERX Bh ENER £8 128318

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

T i T Tin AT Tan

Convertible bonds (note 31) AR ES (HE31) 202,176 = - (188929) = (13,154) %
Bank borrowings (note 30) BTER(H30) 144,485 4,010 6,353 - 6,624 = 153,452
346,661 4,010) 6353 (183.929) 6,624 (13154 153,546

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. AREE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

7201

7F12A8318 ' AEEWEFEMEKNK

REME (20164 « £&) -
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37. LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2017 the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

37.

HEASE

MR2017F 12 A318 @ RETATRELLEHE
A RSEBAERMNFTAESAOT

\

" Y

id ( Y
2017

2017 &
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T
Within one year —FR 2,137 3,314
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEERF (BIEEEME) 4,080 4,030
After five years hF% 16,375 16,559
22,592 23,903

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its offices and leasehold land. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of 1 to 25 years and rentals are fixed over the
lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, transactions with
the following parties are considered to be related party transactions:

Mr. Guo Yumin

BEREE

Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (Note)
RN EE R AR AR LA (M)

Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (Note)
RN EREHERBEAR AR ()

Cheng Jun Group Limited
HEEEFRAT

Union Winful Limited
BAKEERAR

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The
official names of these entities are in Chinese.

38.

REMENFTEAREREE THARBEL
wENZEE - HEEBNFHEMB1E25
FrEENEERRNEEA TN EESAEE

EXREBAERS

REZE2017EK2016F 12 A31 BILEER -
HTSIE HRTOR SRR BERITRS

Director and the ultimate controlling party
of the Company
RNRRERFERLIES

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin

B ERELHA

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERTEEER

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HBERGEEHE

Owned by Mr. Guo Yumin
HABEREEHR

s : R R L BB RS E -
ZTRAP R -

ZEERNE S

175
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38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EXBEKAER S (&)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) TEEBEAEHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEBFTEEEBEAEHM(BIENMN
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors ISP E X TES RAMT 14T E
as disclosed in note 15 and certain of the highest paid YN FETRSHEES S ZE) &40
employees as disclosed in note 14, is as follows: T
2016
2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Short-term employee benefits EHEERET 10,928 8,475
Post-employment benefits BRI 2R 230 200
Equity compensation benefits e 1,476 2,735
12,634 11,410

Total remuneration is disclosed in note 14. HINABRER I 5E 14 3555 ©
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38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BB AR S (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (b) HMEEAERS
In addition to those related party transactions disclosed in Kk 47 & B R 3R 2% B 5F 35(a) T I B8 2 A Bt
note 35(a) to the consolidated financial statements, the FRZHN  NEBRERNERE G H
Group had the following transactions with its related parties NTR5 :

during the year:
2017
2017F
Interest on
Management Interest Rental Proceeds from Repayment of  convertible
fee expense expenses  borrowings  borrowings bond
RN TR
ERE FSREX HEMX Frie s RERR i)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

Xuzhou Ruilong Real MR ERERS
Estate Development BRAT
Co., Ltd. 996 1,135 686 28,868 (17,844) -

2016

20164
Interest on
Management Interest Rental Proceeds from Repaymentof  convertible
fee expense expenses  borrowings  borrowings
figk
ERE MERX kAT Frie R BRER E5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR TER TER TER TER
Xuzhou Ruilong Real FMRERTERSE
Estate Development BRAT
Co,, Ltd. 1,137 2,875 539 25,664 (108,493) -
Xuzhou Xingchen Real BNERFEHERS
Estate Development BBRAT
Co., Ltd. - - - 12 (19) -
Mr. Guo Yumin PEREAE = = = = = 1,312

1,137 2,875 539 25,676 (108,512) 1,312
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38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EXBEKAER S (&)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (c)

SRR 5 A BR

MN2017F K% 2016512 A31H » K&E
A DA T B 7 RO BR%EE ¢

) oA (GOdL

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

2016

2016 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Trade receivables B 5 EWFIA
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real - RN BEE A 3
Estate Development Co., Ltd. BRAH 4,913 4,581
— Xuzhou Xingchen Real Estate - BINEREEME
Development Co., Ltd. BIRRA] 1,012 943
Trade payable H S ENRIE
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate - RN B HhE A 3
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT (5,695) (4,246)
Due from related companies JRE U5 At 77 mR A
— Cheng Jun Group Limited - HEEEERAT (i) 18 -
— Union Winful Limited - e xEaRAT i) 42 =
Due to a director and ultimate EN—REE
controlling party R B AR I 75 SRR
— Mr. Guo Yumin -BEREE (i) (5,668) (1,565)
Loans from a related company BaEs 7 B3R
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate - BRI BE B thE A
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT (i) (25,177) (12,804)
Due to a related company JiE < S 5 50E
— Xuzhou Ruilong Real Estate - RN B HhAE A 3
Development Co., Ltd. BRAT (i) (1.452) (26)
(32,007) (13,117)

(i)  The amounts due from/(to) related companies and a
director are interest-free and expected to be recovered

within one year.

(i) Loans from a related company of RMB13,000,000
(2016: RMB Nil) (equivalent to HK$15,586,000 (2016:
HKS$Nil)) is interest bearing at 4.35% per annum;
RMB8,000,000 (2016: RMB11,000,000) (equivalent
to HK$9,591,000 (2016: HK$12,804,000)) is
interest bearing at an interest rate referencing to the
benchmark lending rate per annum of the People’s

Bank of China.

(i

(ii)

U (R B AR R —RES
FEBRE - BRBHR —FAK
[B] o

W BEEAAERARE
13,000,0007C(20164F: ARMEZ
7t) (FBE R 15,586,000/ 7L(2016
F: THEIL) ) IRFENEA35%ET R
AE#8,000,0007T(20165F: AR
#11,000,0007T) (F8E 79,591,000
BIT(2016%F: 12,804,000/87T)) Ty
maEhEARANMBEERELEF
FRBIZRE—FIRGTE -
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38.

39.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of Xuzhou Ruilong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and Mr. Guo Yumin above
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they are
financial assistance received by a listed issuer’s Group from
a connected person or commonly held entity, which are
conducted on normal commercial terms or better and are not
secured by the assets of the Group.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year’s presentation. The changes included (i) the
reclassification of certain gains or losses previously classified under
other income or other operating expenses to other gains or losses; (ii)
the reclassification of non-current portion of interests in leasehold
land held for own use under operating lease previously classified
under property, plant and equipment to a separate line item in the
consolidated statement of financial position; (iii) the reclassification
of the current portion of interests in leasehold land held for own
use under non-current assets to trade and other receivables under
current assets; and (iv) the reclassification of prepaid LAT previously
classified under trade and other receivables to current tax assets.
These new classifications of the accounting items were considered
to provide a more appropriate presentation of the results and the
state of affairs of the Group.

38.

39.
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the assets and TXABRETXMFMRELERR CASER
liabilities of the Group prepared on the bases set out in the note below: TIEEEAREERBRZIME

"y > . i ’,4 1 )
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 % 20165 20154 20145 20134
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T FAETL FHET FHT
RESULTS ¥E
Revenue WA 1,250,706 478,354 469,241 712,534 706,134
(Loss)/profit before tax Al (B518) 5F (182,164) 47,984 381,164 190,601 175,820
Income tax credit/(expense) FTiSRiige,/ () 16,078 (11,852) (54,634) (39,497) (47,489)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/SRF (166,086) 36,132 326,530 151,104 128,331
Attributable to: AN AL -
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AR (165,219) 36,132 326,530 92,507 77,934
Non-controlling interests FEFE R R (867) = = 58,597 50,397
(Loss)/profit for the year FN(EBE),5F (166,086) 36,132 326,530 151,104 128,331

O & atd

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 2016 4F 2015 20144 20134
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax FET T FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets EREEE 511,183 739,957 386,918 218,319 391,387
Current assets TEERE 761,599 1,394,868 1,027,481 976,587 470,243
Current liabilities mEAE (369,958)  (1,041,845) (417,314) (577,371) (383,375)
Non-current liabilities FnaE (5,052) (259,047) (79,735) (80,807) (6,025)
Net assets FEE 897,772 833,933 917,350 536,728 472,230
Attributable to: AT AT :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AR 898,324 833,558 917,350 441,868 382,489
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (552) 375 = 94,860 89,741
Total equity B 897,772 833,933 917,350 536,728 472,230
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the ATHEEFTEEMHEURFERFENZY] -

current year’s presentation.
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